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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 25 FEBRUARY 2021  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Myburgh.   Good 

morn ing  eve rybody.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Good morn ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cha i r,  as  you know.   The 

proceed ings today and tomorrow were  or ig ina l l y  schedu led  

fo r  the  hear ing  o f  Bombard ier ’s  Ru le  3 .4  app l i ca t ion  wh ich  

you granted,  a l low ing them to  c ross-examine th ree  

w i tnesses and to  lead two w i tnesses o f  the i r  own.  10 

 You w i l l  know tha t  Bombard ier  re la tes  to  the  

Transnet  s t ream.   They were  awarded par t  o f  the  1  064 

Cont rac t .   You had been  prov ided Cha i r  w i th  

cor respondence tha t  Bombard ier  w ishes to  w i thdraw i t s  

app l i ca t ion  and a lso  to  an  e f fec t  take  back the  a f f idav i t  

tha t  was f i led  a t  the  Commiss ion .  

 Bombard ier  i s  today rep resented today by  

counse l .   Perhaps I  cou ld  a l low h im to  p lace  h imse l f  on  

record  and then address you in  re la t ion  to  those issues.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja-no,  tha t  i s  in  o rde r.   I f  i t  i s  go ing  to  20 

be  conven ien t  to  speak f rom there ,  tha t  i s  f ine  bu t  

o therw ise ,  they can san i t i se  the  pod ium and you go there .   

You can choose  wh ich  one su i ts  you,  Mr  Van Zy l .   But  

then. . .  

ADV VAN ZYL:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   The mic  wou ld  need to  pu t  on .   

Yes.  

ADV VAN ZYL:    Yes,  thank you.   I  hope to  be  qu ick .   I  am 

Fred van Zy l .   I  have been ins t ruc ted  on beha l f  o f  

Bombard ier  Transpor ta t ion .   And I  conf i rm  what  

Mr  Myburgh has sa id  tha t  the  in ten t ion  th is  morn ing  o f  my 

c l ien t  i s  to  w i thdraw the  prev ious app l i ca t ion  and the  r igh t  

to  c ross -examine and lead ev idence.    

 And second ly,  to  request  tha t  we –  I  am not  sure  

what  the  r igh t  te rm ino logy wou ld  be  but  to  up l i f t  the  10 

in tended a f f idav i t s .   And the  reasons fo r  tha t  has been se t  

ou t  in  a  le t te r  tha t  has been sent  to  the  Commiss ion  wh ich  

I  wou ld  request  permiss ion  to  hand up fo rmal ly  on to  the  

record .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   The reg i s t ra r  w i l l  take  tha t .   May I  

ask  you to  speak  up a  l i t t le  b i t .   I  th ink  your  vo i ce  is  so f t .   

Maybe i t  i s  because I  th ink  you are  no t  shor t  and the  m ic  i s  

fa r  f rom your  mou th .   [ laughs]  

ADV VAN ZYL:    Cha i r,  i f  I  may br ie f l y  jus t  p lace  on  record  

then what  the  c i rcumstances  were?  Bombard ie r  20 

Transpor ta t ion  had e f fec t i ve l y  been taken ove r  by  A ls tom 

SA as the  new mother  company and A ls tom has the  s t rong 

pr inc ip le  tha t  i t  appears  to  tha t  i t  w i l l  no t  respond to  

ev idence to  any  commiss ion  or  any au thor i t y  ac ross  the  

wor ld  bu t  i t  has  no t  ver i f ied  in  acco rdance w i th  i t s  very  



25 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 350 
 

Page 5 of 163 
 

s t r i c t  s tandards o f  compl iance.    

 I t  i s  in  those c i rcumstances tha t  we s ince re ly  

apo log i se  fo r  the  inconven ience caused and the  t ime taken 

but  my c l ien t  i s  s imp ly  no t  in  a  pos i t ion  to  respond  to  th is  

ev idence today and out  o f  caut ion  is  w i thdrawing  and to  

make i t s  own invest iga t ions.  

 And tha t  has been fu l l y  exp la ined in  these le t te rs  

and I  suppose in  l igh t  o f  the  recent  events ,  we have to  

make c lear  tha t  we a re  in  a  very  much d i f fe ren t  pos i t ion  o f  

no t  w i thd rawing  or  re fus ing  the  ev idence but  s imp ly  10 

ind ica t ing  tha t  we  are  no t  in  a  pos i t ion  to  cont inue.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  guess tha t  

techn ica l l y  inso far  as  the  r igh t  to  c ross-examine tha t  

Bombard ier  had  been g ranted and the  r i gh t  to  adduce 

cer ta in  ev idence  is  concerned,  I  guess techn ica l l y  what  

you are  ask ing  fo r  i s ,  fo r  leave not  to  p roceed w i th  the  

cross-examinat ion  and not  to  p roceed to  adduce ev idence.  

ADV VAN ZYL:    As  i t  p leases.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because i f  i t  was befo re  those r igh ts  

were  granted,  the  you cou ld  w i thdraw the  app l i ca t ion  20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAN ZYL:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . fo r  leave to  c ross-examine.   You cou ld  

w i thdraw the  app l i ca t ion  fo r  leave to  adduce ev idence.   So  

now tha t  those were  g ranted a l ready,  techn ica l l y,  you are  
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s imp ly  ask ing  fo r  leave not  to  pursue the  cross-

examinat ion  and  not  to  p roceed w i th  the  lead ing  o f  

ev idence in  te rms  o f  tha t  o rder.  

ADV VAN ZYL:    Indeed Just ice .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAN ZYL:    That  i s  indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   In  regard  to  the  

request  no t  to  pursue cross-examinat ion  and  not  to  

p roceed to  adduce ev idence,  I  have no d i f f i cu l t y  g ran t ing  

leave.    10 

 In  regard  to  whe ther,  as  you say,  whether  the  

cor rec t  te rm ino logy,  w i thdraw or  abor t  o r  whatever  the  

a f f idav i t s  tha t  had a l ready been lodged w i th  the  

Commiss ion ,  tha t  m ight  be  more  compl ica ted  than the  o ther  

because,  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  the  a f f idav i t s  a re  a l ready in  the 

Commiss ion .    

 I t  may we l l  be  tha t  one cannot  say  they shou ld  

be  taken away f rom the  Commiss ion ,  as  i t  were ,  bu t  i t  may 

we l l  be  tha t  the  new owners  o f  Bombard ier  m ight ,  be fore  

the  Commiss ion  comple tes  i t s  work ,  hav ing  had the  chance  20 

to  look  a t  those a f f idav i t s ,  they  m ight  communica te  w i th  the  

Commiss ion  to  say,  i f  tha t  i s  the  pos i t ion ,  to  say  those 

a f f idav i t s  shou ld  no t  be  seen as  present ing  the  cur ren t  

owners ’ v iews o r  pos i t ion  o f  the  cu r ren t  owners .    

 So a l l  I  am s imply  say ing  is .   I  am not  in  a 
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pos i t ion  to  immedia te ly  say  I  g ran t  leave fo r  you  to  take  

the  a f f idav i t s  away because i t  m igh t  need more  th ink ing .   

But  what  I  th ink  you might  need to  do  is  jus t  re f lec t  on  how 

i t  shou ld  be  done .    

 Maybe you migh t  communica te  w i th  the  Lega l  

Team of  the  Commiss ion  and maybe,  u l t imate ly,  there  

m ight  be ,  subsequent  to  pub l i ca t ion ,  to  dea l  w i th  the  

s i tua t ion .    

 Then I  can app ly  my mind more  fu l l y  because in  

e f fec t  tha t  i s  ev idence tha t  has a l ready been p laced  before  10 

the  Commiss ion .   I t  i s  jus t  tha t  i t  i s  wr i t ing ,  i t  i s  no t  o ra l  

ev idence but  never the less  i t  i s  ev idence tha t  has been 

p laced before  the  Commiss ion .    

 So I  wou ld  say.   Ref lec t  on  i t  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  

you may need to  re f lec t  on  i t .   Communica te  w i th  the 

Commiss ion ’s  Lega l  Team and a t  the  r igh t  s tage,  then 

maybe someth ing  can be communica ted  to  me and  then I  

can u l t imate ly  ind ica te  what  my f ina l  pos i t ion  wou ld  be .   I s  

tha t  f ine? 

ADV VAN ZYL:    We are  c lea r ly  tak ing  no te  o f  tha t .   Thank 20 

you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAN ZYL:    I  can  te l l  you  tha t  my c l ien t  has a l ready  

s ta r ted  the  p rocess o f  ve r i f i ca t ion .   I  do  no t  an t ic ipa te  f rom 

what  I  have seen so  fa r  tha t  tha t  p rocess is  go ing  to  be  
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ab le  to  be  comple ted  t imeous ly  bu t  I  can assure  you Cah i r  

tha t  my c l ien t  w i l l  most  cer ta in l y  take  the  inv i ta t i on  and 

what  you have sa id  ser ious ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAN ZYL:    I t  i s  most  un for tunate  tha t  we have on ly  

the  shor t  t ime had a  process bu t  then out .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAN ZYL:    And then we now found ou rse lves here .   

But  we w i l l  -  most  cer ta in ly,  we  take the  work  o f  the  

Commiss ion  very  ser ious ly  and to  the  ex ten t  tha t  we can 10 

cont r ibu te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAN ZYL:    My c l ien t  has g iven the  assurance tha t  i t  

w i l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   No,  no .   That  i s  f ine .   I t  may we l l  

be  tha t  a l l  tha t  m ight  need to  be  done is  tha t  when the  

repor t  i s  p repared,  i t  shou ld  be  s ta ted  on record  tha t  these  

were  a f f idav i t s  tha t  were  f i led  a t  a  cer ta in  t ime.    

 And tha t  there  was a  request  to  –  a t  th is  t ime to 

take  them out  o r  whatever  the  te rm ino logy is ,  once there  20 

were  new owners .   So tha t  whatever  i s  made o f  them,  i s  

made in  the  con tex t  o f  whoever  were  the  owners  a t  the  

t ime.    

 So but  you w i l l  ge t  a  chance to  re f lec t  and then 

ind ica te  what  you r  submiss ions wou ld  be .  
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ADV VAN ZYL:    As  i t  p leases Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .   Thank you very  much.   I  

th ink  then –  I  have granted leave  in  regard  to  two  mat te rs  

and the  o ther  one is  jus t  le f t  pend ing  because i t  needs 

fu r ther  cons idera t ion .   Ja ,  okay.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.  

ADV VAN ZYL:    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.   Anyone who w ishes to  be 

excused,  i s  excused.    10 

COUNSEL:    . . .a l l  my th ings in  p lace  and. . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Take th is  un t i l  I  am to ld  I  need i t .  

REGISTRAR:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Morn ing  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  and good  morn ing  

everybody.   Good  morn ing  Mr  Sacks.  

MR SACKS:    Good morn ing  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rpe rson,  you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  20 

yesterday we had in te r rup ted  Mr  Sacks ’ ev idence,  dea l ing  

w i th  the  f low o f  funds and the  repor t  he  had compi led  on  

tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rperson,  I  have re f lec ted 
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overn igh t  and I  have ra ised w i th  Mr  Sacks tha t  in  l igh t  o f  

the  issues tha t  the  Commiss ion  is  concerned w i th ,  there  

are  cer ta in  de ta i l s  re la t ing  to  when payments  were  made 

and what  the  amount  was.    

 In  the  long run ,  fo r  the  purposes o f  the  

Commiss ion ,  i t  does not  take  the  mat te r  fu r ther  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  h ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    What  we wan t  i s  the  overa l l  p ic tu re .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  h ’m.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And –  bu t  no t  on ly  to  speed th ings up  

but  a lso  to  ensure  tha t  we do no t  lose  focus o f  what  we  

want .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  I  have ra i sed w i th  Mr  Sacks and I  

want  to  ra ise  w i th  you Cha i rperson,  tha t  the  approach I  

want  to  adopt  in to  the  res t  o r  mos t  o f  the  res t  o f  the  repor t  

i s  fo r  Mr  Sacks  to  conf i rm the  cor rec tness o f  what  i s  

conta ined in  the  tab les  w i th  the  commentary.  

 And there  are  cer ta in  mat te rs  tha t  a re  qu i te  20 

impor tan t  fo r  example  who were  the  d i rec tors  o f  the  

compan ies  in  concern ,  who were  the  aud i to rs  and so  on .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    There  w i l l  be  those mat te rs  tha t  we 

w i l l  concent ra te  on  and the  res t  the  cons idera t ion  o f  h is  
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repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And the  next  mat te r  tha t  I  want  to  

ra ise  w i th  Mr  Sacks i s .   You w i l l  reca l l  Cha i rperson  tha t  in  

h is  ev idence Mr  Sacks sa id  tha t  there  were  two emai ls  f rom 

Ms Gaza tha t  ra ised red  f lags  be fo re  the  cont rac t  had been 

s ighed.   I t  was a f te r  the  award  had  been made.    

 Mr  Sacks has now managed to  ge t  those emai ls .   

They are  conta ined in  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  Mr  Hodge Bauw(?)  

in  response to  what  Mr  Montana had a l leged in  h is  10 

incomple te  a f f idav i t .  

 So I  w i l l  ask  Mr  Hodge because I  th ink  they a re  

qu i te  re f lec t i ve  o f  what  the  contents  o f  those ema i ls  –  o r  

what  –  how s t rong the  message was.    

 Then I  leave tha t  par t  and then I  ro l l  on to  the  EM 

100 ’s  because as  I  have ind ica ted  to  you yesterday  

Cha i rperson.   The –  some o f  the  invest iga t ions tha t  

Mr  Sacks d id  were  based on what  was sa id  in  the  Swi fambo 

a f f idav i t .  

 Now in  the  CM 100 ’s  o r  no t ice  to  the  CM 100 ’s  20 

tha t  Mr  Mashaba lodged w i th  the  master ’s  o f f i ce .   He 

re f lec t s  o r  ind ica tes  what  the  funds  were  fo r  o r  where  he  is  

no t  happy about  payments  tha t  were  made by  Swi fambo.   

He ind ica tes  what  tha t  i s .  

 Now Cha i rperson,  fo r  the  pu rposes o f  the  
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Commiss ion ,  in  my v iew,  we need not  go  –  we can d ispute  

the  cor rec tness o f  tha t  bu t  we are  no t  in  a  pos i t ion  to  do  so  

a t  the  moment  bu t  what  Mr  Mashaba says in  those CM 

100 ’s  i s  fo r  the  purposes o f  the  Commiss ion  qu i te  

impor tan t .  

 And tha t ,  e f fec t i ve ly,  i f  –  and I  do  no t  mean to  be  

crude but  tha t  i s  f rom the  horse ’s  mouth ,  as  i t  were ,  and  

we can take  tha t  as  represent ing  h is  pos i t ion  because the 

CM 100 is  e f fec t i ve l y  an  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes-no,  tha t  i s  f ine .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.   I s  tha t  okay?  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  tha t  w i l l  be  in  o rder.   Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Mr  Sacks,  you have heard  what  I  

have communica ted  to  the  Cha i rperson about  the  

approach. . .  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.   Now in  –  you f in ished a t  page 

902 o f  Bund le  L .   That  i s  s t i l l  your  repor t .    

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  tha t  i s . . .   Yes,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am so r ry.   Where  are  we go ing  to  

resume f rom on. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    From page 902 Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    N ine . . .?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    N ine ,  zero ,  two.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    O f  SS-24,  Bund le  L .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  n ine ,  zero ,  two.   Okay thank you.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now a t  14 .2 .2 ,  you summar ise  the  

amounts  tha t  Swi fambo rece ived and pa id  bu t  wou ld  i t  be  

cor rec t  tha t  you  thereaf te r  in  Tab le  5 ,  summar i se  how 

Swi fambo had u t i l i sed  –  we l l ,  had u t i l i sed  the  funds  i t  had 

rece ived f rom PRASA re la t ing  to  the  main  benef ic ia r ies  and 

you ident i f ied  yes terday.  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And Tab le  5 ,  i f  you  cou ld  j us t  ind ica te  

tha t  –  r igh t  a t  the  top  you say the  amount  rece ived f rom 

PRASA was R 2  650 . . .   R  2  650 207 950,29.   And  then i t  

made d i sbursements  o f  –  to  Voss loh ,  Mashaba ent i t ies  

l inked to  these persons.   How much is  pa id  to  Voss loh? 

MR SACKS:    Cha i rpe rson,  the  amount  i s  

R 1  873 474 161,62.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And do Mashaba and Mashaba  l inked 

ent i t ies?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rpe rson,  the  payments  l inked to  20 

Mashaba and Mashaba l inked ent i t ies  i s  R 102 928 001,75.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And Mr  Mashe le?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  the  payments  l inked to  Mashe le  

i s  R 39 54 840,00 .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then there  were  o ther  
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d isbursements  in  the  reg ion  o f  R 231 mi l l ion  or  a  l i t t le  

more  than R 230 mi l l ion .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And what  was the  ba lance in  

Swi fambo’s  accounts  as  a t  the  30 t h  o f  November  2015?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  the  ba lance a t  

30  November  2015 was R 111 276 943.89.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now jus t  to  pu t  the  res t  o f  the  repor t  

in  contex t .   The  res t  o f  the  repor t  ac tua l l y  in  respect  o f  

each o f  those main  f igures  breaks down wh ich  way the  10 

ent i t ies . . .  

 In  o ther  words,  th is  i s  the  b ig  p ic tu re  and now in  

the  res t  o f  the  a f f idav i t ,  you ind ica te  tha t  th is  i s  the  amount  

tha t  went  to  Mr  Mashaba h imse l f  th rough th i s  en t i t y,  tha t  

en t i t y  and tha t  en t i t y.   I s  tha t . . .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rpe rson.   These are  jus t  

summar ies  tha t . . .  up f ron t  to  ass is t  the  po l i ce  in  

unders tand ing  co l lec t i ve l y  what  money f lowed.   However,  

as  t ransfers  re fe r,  each t ransact ion  as  is  –  inc lud ing  the  

bank s ta tements  i s  de ta i led  in  the  res t  o f  the  repor t .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now we wi l l  go  th rough those to  the 

ex ten t  tha t  they are  re levant .   Le t  us  then look a t  Tab le  6  

wh ich  is  a  po in t  you made yesterday tha t  on  the  

5 t h  o f  Apr i l  2013,  Swi fambo rece ived the  f i rs t  payment  f rom 

PRASA.  
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MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then you looked a t  how tha t  

money was d is t r i bu ted .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?   

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  i t  i s  s tandard  procedure  fo r  

these f low o f  funds ana lys is  spec i f i ca l l y  in  th is  t ype o f  

p lace ,  i s  to  invest iga te  the  t imef rame when monies  

rece ived and mon ies  pa id .  

 And spec i f i ca l l y  as  counse l  re fe rs  in  Tab le  6  

under  paragraph  14.3 ,  I  no ted  tha t ,  as  was d iscussed  

yesterday,  the re  was qu i te  an  ex tens i ve  t ime- lapse 10 

between when Swi fambo rece ived  the  f i rs t  payment  f rom 

PRASA in to  the  incor rec t  account ,  Swi fambo Ra i l  Ho ld ings  

and when i t  made i t s  f i rs t  payment  to  Voss loh  and i t  was  

116-days la te r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then the  –  wou ld  the  res t  o f  the 

–  o f  f low in te res t  Swi fambo’s  account ,  whethe r  Swi fambo 

Ho ld ings or  Swi fambo Ra i l ing ,  they  –  you ind ica te  when the  

funds were  rece ived and how many days la te r  money was  

sent  to  Voss loh .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And you conf i rm the  cor rec tness o f  

those f igures?  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    The one tha t  s tands out  i s  the  116-

days per iod  be tween the  f i rs t  payment  tha t  Swi fambo 
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rece ived and the  f i rs t  payment  made to  Voss loh .   I s  tha t . . .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And the  o thers  a re  in  the  reg ion  o f  

th ree  weeks and somet imes one week and so  on .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now in  regard  to  the  116-days  per iod  

be tween when PRASA rece ived –  when Swi fambo rece ived  

R 416 odd mi l l ion  f rom PRASA to  the  t ime i t  made the  f i rs t  

payment  to  Swi fambo.   You have done a  ca lcu la t ion ,  

look ing  a t  the  bank accounts ,  o f  what  amounts  i t  had 10 

d is t r ibu ted  to  o ther  peop le .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And tha t  is  what  i s  re f lec ted  in  the  

f i rs t  document  you presented yesterday.   Cha i rperson,  you  

w i l l  remember  we  had the  p i c to r ia l  rep resenta t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  s t i l l  have.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay we jus t  want  to  go  th rough tha t  

because i t  may be qu i te  revea l ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t .   I f  you  jus t  –  you jus t  need to  20 

g ive  the  da tes  and to  whom the  payments  were  made and  

what  the  amounts  were .  

MR SACKS:    Okay.   Cha i rperson,  you are  look ing ,  I  th ink ,  

the  f i rs t  d iagram,  page 1 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Page 1?  Okay.   
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MR SACKS:    That  i s  t i t led :  Swi fambo F low o f  Funds,  

Tim ing and Ut i l i sa t ion  o f  F i r s t  PRASA Rece ip t  o f  

R 460 mi l l ion  on  5  Apr i l  2013.    

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR SACKS:    On the  top  le f t  corne r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.   I ’ ve  go t  i t .    

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  those guys requested me to  

exp la in  th i s  documents .   As  you w i l l  –  as  you can  see on 

the  document ,  on  the  le f t -hand s ide  tha t  shows money 

f low ing in  f rom PRASA on 5  Apr i l  2013,  R 460 mi l l ion .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR SACKS:    And tha t ,  as  I  –  I  do  no ted tha t  i t  i s  pa id  in to  

Swi fambo Ra i l  Ho ld ings S tandard  Bank account  and I  no te  

tha t  th is  money,  in  te rms o f  con t rac t ,  shou ld  have been  

pa id  in to  Swi fambo Ra i l  Leas ing .    

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR SACKS:    Then as  you see the  ou t f lows on the  r igh t -

hand s ide .   I  have summar ised pe r  the  bank s ta tements ,  i f  

you  were  to  go  to  the  top ,  i t  inc ludes the  da te ,  the  

rec ip ien t  o f  the  money and the  amounts  o f  the  money.    20 

 And there  is  –  on  th is  document  shows 1 ,2 ,  3 ,  4 ,  

5 ,  6 ,  7 ,  8  ,  9 ,  10 ,  11 ,  12 ,  13 ,  14 ,  15 ,  16 . . .  16  rec ip ien ts  o f  

payments .   And the  las t  payment ,  the  17 t h  and 

30 t h  o f  Ju ly  2013 is  Voss loh  fo r  R 290 mi l l ion .    

 So the  po in t  o f  th is  document  was to  exp la in  tha t  
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on  5  Apr i l  2013,  PRASA pa id  R 460 mi l l ion  to  Swi fambo.   

On the  30 t h  o f  Ju ly,  a  116-days la te r,  Swi fambo pa id  

Voss loh  R 290 mi l l ion .    

 The ba lance,  the  d i f fe rence o f  approx imate ly  

R 170 mi l l ion  was in  the  main  pa id  to  the  en t i t ies ,  the  

ind iv idua ls  wh ich  have been l inked wh ich  we d iscussed  

yesterday.  

 So fo r  examp le ,  the  f i rs t  payment  on  

8  Apr i l  2013,  AMCE which  is  AM Consu l t ing  Eng ineers ,  

wh ich  is  Mashaba ’s  company,  rece ived R 5  m i l l ion .  10 

 So as  I  do  no te  on  th is  document  tha t  w i th in  s ix  

days o f  rece ip t  f rom PRASA,  Swi fambo pa id  R 102  mi l l ion  

ou t  o f  the  bus iness to  Mashaba,  Mabunda,  Mashe le ,  WKH 

Landgrebe in  a  t rus t  wh ich  is  Mashaba ’s  –  l inked to  

Mashaba,  NOH which  is  l inked to  Mabunda,  Nkos i  Sabe lo ,  

Moosa Cap i ta l .  

 So Cha i rperson,  w i thout  too  much  deta i l ,  jus t  fo r  

summar isa t ion  purposes,  in  the  bo t tom le f t -hand corne r,  I  

dea l  w i th  the  to ta ls  tha t  a l l  these ind iv idua ls  o r  en t i t ies  

rece ived.  20 

 And the  po in t  o f  th is  document  i s  t ry ing  to  say 

is .   That  be fore  Swi fambo –  Voss loh  may rece ive  i t s  f i rs t  

payment  o f  R 290  mi l l ion ,  a  116-days a f te r  PRASA had pa id  

Swi fambo,  R 150 mi l l ion  was in  fac t  d isbursed to  Mashaba 

who rece ived R 30.5  m i l l ion .  
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 Mashe le ,  th rough  an ent i t y  ca l led  Bond Wheels ,  

rece ived R 28.32 mi l l ion .   Mabunda,  th rough an ent i t y  

ca l led  NOH,  rece ived R 23.68 mi l l ion .   Par ish ,  th rough an 

ent i t y  ca l led  Moosa Cap i ta l ,  rece ived R 13.5  m i l l ion .   WKH 

Landgrebe,  who aga in  were  the  aud i to rs  o f  many o f  these 

l inked ent i t ies  and Swi fambo Ra i l  Leas ing  aud i to rs  

rece ived R 16.5  m i l l ion .  

 Ne ls  Hoosa in  rece ived R 10.4  m i l l ion  and Nkos i  

Sabe lo  rece ived R 28.5  m i l l ion ,  wh ich  to ta l  a t  

R 151.4  m i l l ion .   These rec ip ien ts  rece ived before  Voss loh ,  10 

is  the  f i rs t  payment  to  Voss loh  was  made.  

 And in  contex t  o f  –  you w i l l  reca l l  Cha i rperson,  

the  pro f i t  tha t  Swi fambo was –  the  marg in  they shou ld  have  

made o f  R 180 m i l l ion ,  jus t  on  the  f i rs t  payments  a lone fo r  

funds rece ived f rom PRASA,  great ly  exceeded the  pro f i t  

tha t  Swi fambo was ought  to  have earned over  the  dura t ion  

o f  the  en t i re  cont rac t s .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.   Now I  th ink  th is  p ic to r i a l  

rep resenta t ion  s ta rk l y  represents  the  po in t  you are  mak ing  

and i f  I  can  put  i t  in  a  s l igh t l y  d i f fe ren t  contex t .   Th is  was 20 

the  pr io r i t y  o f  c red i to rs  as  fa r  as  Swi fambo was concerned.  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  the  counse l  uses the  word  

cred i to rs  loose ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Cred i to rs .   [ laughs]   Ja .  

MR SACKS:    I  th ink  the  pr io r i t ies  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    I  agree.  

MR SACKS:    . . .he ld  by  d i rec to rs  o r  in f luent ia l  peop le  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Cer ta in  rec ip ien ts .  

MR SACKS:    Yes .   Yes,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.   Perhaps tha t  i s  a  be t te r  word .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.    

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yesterday,  I  sa id  to  you one o f  the  

f igures  tha t  s tuck  in  my head was a  payment  o f  

R 10 mi l l ion  to  Landgrebe.   In  fac t ,  i t  i s  R 8 .8  m i l l ion  on  

the  9 t h  o f  Apr i l  and then fu r ther  payments  o f  R 1 .2  m i l l ion 

and then fo r  R 1 .3  m i l l ion  and then R 2 .2  m i l l ion .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    They were  qu i te  busy on  the  9 t h  o f  Apr i l ,  

r igh t?  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laughs]  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.   Then a t  page 906 in  paragraph  

14.4 ,  you ind ica te  the  payments  tha t  were  made to  Voss loh  

fo r  the  locomot ives ,  and you have  a l ready ind i ca ted  tha t  i t  

was a  l i t t le  more  than R 1 .8  b i l l i on .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  –  th is  though is  –  there  is  

someth ing  I  want  you to  exp la in  to  the  Cha i rpe rson,  what  i s  

the  source  o f  th is  in fo rmat ion?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  the  u l t imate  source  is  poss ib l y  

themse lves conf i rmed to  the  South  A f r i can Reserve  Bank,  I  

s tand to  be  cor rec ted ,  they in  fac t  rece ived th i s  money and 

us ing  tha t  conf i rmat ion  f rom Voss loh  themse lves I  was ab le  

to  marry  up  the  payments  ou t  o f  Swi fambo bank accounts  

even though I  was miss ing  one or  two p ieces o f  in fo rmat ion  

bu t  because Voss loh  had conf i rmed the  amounts  I  knew 10 

tha t  those amoun ts  had indeed been pa id .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  i t  i s  Voss loh  who wou ld  conf i rm to 

the  Reserve  Bank and tha t  i s  the  in fo rmat ion  you based 

tab le  7A upon but  you have obv ious ly  checked i t  aga ins t  

w i thdrawals  f rom …[ in tervenes]  

MR SACKS:    Yes,  Cha i rperson,  I  have conf i rmed as  

counse l  sa id .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  the  o ther  in fo rmat ion   in  conta ined 

in  your  ana lys is  o f  bank –  i s  der i ved f rom your  ana lys is  o f  

bank account .   Th is ,  though,  comes  f rom Voss loh i t se l f .  20 

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Then …[ in tervenes]  

MR SACKS:    Sor ry,  Cha i rpe rson ,  s tand to  be  co r rec ted ,  

ac tua l l y  Nat iona l  Treasury  tha t  they conf i rm the  amounts  

to .   Excuse me,  I  jus t  go t  confused between the  two  
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somet imes w i th  the  de ta i l .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  I  th ink  you do say  tha t  in  

parag raph 14.4 .2  o f  you r  p resenta t ion .  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A l r igh t .   Then a t  14 .4 .8  on  page 908 

you look a t  the  payments  tha t  Voss loh  made to  Swi fambo 

and you say tha t  tha t  to ta l led  R811 508.59 and you break 

down the  d i f fe ren t  payments  tha t  were  made.   Can I  ask  

you,  where  these  came –  the  concern  –  or  no t  the  concern  

bu t  what  s tood out  fo r  me is  Voss loh  is  do ing  th ings fo r  10 

wh ich  Swi fambo needs to  pay i t  in  te rms o f  Swi fambo 

cont rac t  w i th  Voss loh ,  i s  tha t  co r rec t?  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now th is  seems to  suggest  tha t  i t  was  

Voss loh ,  the  worker  who was pay ing  Swi fambo the  ac tua l  

paymaster  event .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rperson.   As  I  s ta ted  in  

my repor t ,  in i t ia l l y  as  I  s ta ted  in  my repor t  tha t  811 000 

wh ich  we d iscussed yesterday,  wh ich  these amounts  tha t  

were  f low ing in to  Swi fambo’s  bank accounts  pr io r  to  that  20 

PRASA rece ived the  rece ip ts  and as  I  s ta ted  in  my  repor t ,  

these funds were  os tens ib ly  used to  fund the  se tup  costs  

o f  the  Swi fambo  o f f i ce .   I  d id  s ta te  in  my repor t  tha t  

obv ious ly  these a re  sub jec t  to  conf i rmat ion  and w i l l  have to  

be  invest iga ted  fu r the r.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now you a lso  sa id  yeste rday,  and you 

can jus t  conf i rm i t ,  bu t  i t  i s  in  your  repor t ,  where  you say 

tha t  Voss loh ’s  cont rac t  w i th  Swi fambo was s igned on the  4  

Ju l y  2013.  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now i f  you look a t  these payments ,  a l l  

except  the  f i f th  one were  made to  Swi fambo before  the  

cont rac t  was done.  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And those were  the  smal le r  amounts .   10 

The b igger  amount  on  the  17  Apr i l  2014,  tha t  i s  a lmost  a  

year  a f te r  PRASA had been pay ing  Swi fambo,  Voss loh  

makes a  payment  to  Swi fambo o f  R448-odd mi l l ion  –  sor ry,  

R488 000.  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Was there  any ind ica t ion  what  tha t  

was?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  the  desc r ip t ion  w i th in  Swi fambo 

Ra i l  Leas ing  bank account ,  wh ich  these tab les  inc lude the  

bank s ta tement ,  account  de ta i l s ,  rece ived the  money,  the  20 

date  and the  descr ip t ion  and amounts ,  the  descr ip t ion  says 

e lec t ron i c  bank ing  payment  FR Voss loh ,  ren t  and  o ther  

payments .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Voss loh  was pay ing  fo r  the  ren t  in  the  

meant ime?  
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MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  we check w i th  the  bank 

s ta tements  as  you read them.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

MR SACKS:    The ac tua l  commerc ia l  ra t iona le  fo r  the 

payment  was sub jec t  to  conf i rma t ion  bu t  on  face  va lue  i t  

appears  tha t  Voss loh  was pay ing  ren t  fo r  Swi fambo.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  te l l  you  why I  am in t r igued  by  th is  

and i t  has  on ly  occu r red  to  me now tha t  i s  why I  d id  no t  

ra ise  i t  w i th  you  ear l ie r.   I f  you  tu rn  to  tab le  7A on the 

[ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  you w i l l  see  tha t  accord ing  to  10 

Voss loh  i t  had rece ived money on the  1  August  2013,  i t  had 

rece ived money on the  2  January  2017,  the  17  January  

2017,  the  19 t h  o f  …[ in te rvenes]  

MR SACKS:    Sor ry,  counse l ,  14 .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Sor ry,  14 .   The 19 May 2014  and  the  

8  Ju l y  2014.  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And then i t  then makes th is  payment  

on  the  17  Apr i l  2014.  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Wel l ,  obv ious l y  you cannot  exp la in ,  

those are  no t  s igned o f f .  

MR SACKS:    Aga in ,  Cha i rperson,  a t  face  va lue  i t  sounds  

odd,  as  to  counse l ’s  words.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   But  le t  me ask you a  s l igh t ly  d i f fe ren t  
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quest ion  wh ich  is  no t  conta ined in  your  repor t .   I t  seems –  

and tha t  i s  the  reason examin ing  and I  take  i t  tha t  i s  the 

reason you inc luded the  payments  tha t  Voss loh  made to  

Swi fambo over  th is  per iod ,  ove r  the  pe r iod  2012 to  2014.   

I s  there  anyth ing  you have uncovered as  to  the  benef i t  to  

Voss loh  o f  th is  [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  bes ides the 

money?  

MR SACKS:    I  have –  Cha i rpe rson,  in  the  course  o f  the 

Werksmans ’ invest iga t ion  in te l l igence is  obv ious ly  

per fo rmed and when we were  look ing  a t  –  the  team was 10 

look ing  a t  Voss loh  as  an  ent i t y  and the  cont rac t  i t se l f  we 

were  look ing  a t  the  Voss loh  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  and I  am 

assuming,  counse l ,  tha t  i s  what  you a re  re fer r ing  to  and,  i f  

I  may –  wh ich  I  found i t  qu i te  revea l ing  and i t  was repor ted  

a t  the  t ime dur ing  the  course  o f  the  Werksmans ’ 

invest iga t ion  as  to  how Voss loh  themse lves,  the  greater  

Voss loh  Group,  because Voss loh  Espana,  the  locomot ive  

manufac ture r  i s  a  subs id ia ry  o f  the  Voss loh  Group a t  the  

t ime.   I  do  unders tand tha t  there  has been a  name change 

or  t ransact iona l  ac t i v i t y  in  tha t  g roup to  another  en t i t y,  I  20 

am not  fami l ia r  w i th  those deta i l s  bu t  a t  the  t ime when we 

were  do ing  the  invest iga t ion  –  and,  i f  you  wou ld  indu lge  

me,  I  have b r ie fed  counse l  what  those f inanc ia l  s ta tements  

ac tua l l y  sa id  and  i f  you a l low me to  I  can read them in to  

the  record ,  wh ich  is  qu i te  revea l ing  in  te rms o f  
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…[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SACKS:    …the va lue  tha t  Voss loh  p laced  on th i s  

cont rac t  and in  l igh t  o f  the  funds f low ing to  Voss loh  and as  

my repor t  w i l l  s ta te ,  money f low ing ove r  and above these 

funds,  these payments  tha t  we ta lk  about ,  the  R800 000,  

be  i t  i s  a  lo t  o f  money,  there  was  s ign i f i can t ly  more  funds,  

much more  funds tha t  f lowed  in to  South  A f r i ca  f rom 

Voss loh  not  th rough Swi fambo,  wh ich  counse l  w i l l  dea l  

w i th ,  bu t  i f  you  bear  w i th  me,  I  w i l l  –  these are  wha t  I  ca l l  10 

per t inent  ex t rac ts  f rom the  pub l i c  aud i ted  Voss loh  AG 

f inanc ia l  repor t  and …[ in tervenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   For  what  per iod  was tha t?  

MR SACKS:    Th is  i s  fo r  the  f inanc ia l  per iod  end ing  31 

December  2013  and they s igned the  cont rac t  w i th  – 

Voss loh  s igned the  cont rac t  w i th  Swi fambo in  Ju l y  2013,  so  

th is  i s  s ix  months  la te r.   I  reca l l  a t  the  t ime when we were  

do ing  the  Werksmans ’ invest iga t i on  we were  no t  fami l ia r  

w i th  tha t  cont rac t  be tween Swi fambo and Voss loh ,  tha t  

cont rac t  was on ly  revea led  la te r  in  d iscovery  in  the 20 

Mashaba a f f idav i t  and we were  t r y ing  to  es tab l i sh  what  the  

va lue  was tha t  Voss loh  was  ea rn ing ,  what  was the  pr i ce  

tha t  they were  ea rn ing .   We knew what  PRASA was  pay ing  

Swi fambo and I  w i l l  read the  ac tua l  ex t rac t s  f rom the  

f inanc ia l  s ta tements  w i th  re ference to  Voss loh  s tock ,  per  
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page 8  o f  the  f inanc ia l  s ta tements .  

“Wi th  the  announcement  in  the  beg inn ing  o f  October  

2013 o f  a  majo r  o rde r  f rom South  A f r i ca ,  Voss loh  

ga ined renewed in te res t  o f  investors  and the  s tock  

s ign i f i can t ly  recovered to  the  end  o f  November  to  

p r ices  above 70 Euros. ”  

So obv ious ly  the  in fe rence is  the  major  o rder  f rom South  

A f r i ca  has a  pos i t i ve  impact  on  the  share  p r ice  –  I  am 

assuming s tock  p r ice ,  in  South  A f r i ca  we re fer  to  as  share  

pr ice ,  has a  pos i t i ve  impact  on  the  share  p r ice  wh ich  10 

s ign i f i can t ly  recovered.   The next  quote :  

“Wi th  re fe rence to  A f r i ca  opera t ions per  page 18.   

In  f i sca l  2013 Voss loh  succeeded in  book ing  a  mega 

order  f rom the  South  A f r i can company Swi fambo 

Ra i l  Leas ing  fo r  70  locomot ives .   The cont rac t  i s  

wor th  a  to ta l  amount  o f  a round Euro  250 mi l l ion . ”  

And tha t  was the  f i rs t  ind ica t ion  a t  the  t ime o f  what  

Voss loh  was earn ing ,  250.   We knew Swi fambo –  PRASA 

was pay ing  267  mi l l ion  Euros.   Aga in ,  i f  you  reca l l ,  

Cha i rperson,  i t  was Euro  pr iced  cont rac t  even though i t  20 

t i t led  3 .5  b i l l i on .   The next  quote :  

“Wi th  re ference to  [ ind is t inc t ]  11 .04  t ranspor ta t ion  

sys tems,  per  page 74.   The w inn ing  o f  a  major  

cont rac t  f rom South  A f r i ca  in  the  th i rd  quar te r  o f  

2013 fo r  70  locomot ives  a re  Voss loh  Ra i l  veh ic les  
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in  the  amount  o f  250 mi l l ion  Euro ,  cont r i bu ted  

s ign i f i can t ly  to  th is  deve lopment .   

Wi th  re fe rence to  Voss loh  Transpor ta t ion  Systems 

per  page 75,  thanks to  the  major  o rder  f rom South  

A f r i ca ,  the  o rder  back log  o f  Voss loh  Ra i l  veh ic les  

as  o f  December  31 ,  2013,  was an ex t raord inar i l y  

h igh  leve l .   The orde rs  rece ived in  pure ly  

mathemat ica l  te rms ex tend we l l  in to  the  year  2016 

and p rove they have a  length ie r  loca t ion  w i th  a  

pos i t i ve  sa les  ou t look fo r  the  coming years . ”  10 

And the  las t  quote :  

“Wi th  re ference to  Voss loh  E lec t r i ca l  Systems per  

page 76,  as  was a l ready the  case in  2012,  the  

la rgest  cont r ibu t ion  to  sa les  ou ts ide  o f  Europe was  

in  South  A f r i ca . ”  

So,  Cha i rperson ,  a t  the  t ime as  the  Werksmans ’ 

invest iga t ion  was  be ing  per fo rmed ,  th is  was ve ry  revea l ing  

in  te rms o f  unders tand ing  how s ign i f i can t  th is  cont rac t  was  

not  on l y  to  Swi fambo but  to  Voss loh  themse lves and when 

we dea l  w i th  the  f low o f  funds  in to  South  A f r ica  f rom 20 

Voss loh ,  i t  pu ts  i t  in to  contex t  why i t  was very  impor tan t  fo r  

Voss loh  to  in  fac t  ge t  th is  –  and to  ge t  th is  cont rac t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I t  may be –  and I  know i t  i s  conta ined 

in  the  d i f fe ren t  pa r t  o f  your  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Son i .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Do I  have tha t  page tha t  document  you  

were  read ing  f rom? 

MR SACKS:    No,  no t ,  I  do  no t  th ink  so ,  Cha i rpe rson .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  we shou ld  ge t  i t ,  Mr  Son i ,  and i t  

cou ld  be  admi t ted  as  an  exh ib i t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  you p lease .  

MR SACKS:    And I  w i l l  fo rward  the  Commiss ion  the  

f inanc ia l  s ta tements  fo r  Voss loh  AG as we l l ,  where  these 

quotes  come f rom.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   We wi l l  do  i t  in  a  separa te  

supp lementary  a f f idav i t ,  so  i t  does not  [ ind is t inc t  –  

d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

CHAIRPERSON :   Ja ,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Cha i rperson ,  I  must  apo log i se ,  I  on ly  

found out  about  th is  a  coup le  o f  days ago.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes ,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  th ink  i t  i s  

impor tan t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Abso lu te ly.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I t  pu ts  the  who le  p i c tu re  in  

perspect ive .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Ja ,  ja ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  I  know,  Mr  Sacks,  you dea l  w i th  
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tha t  la te r  bu t  maybe i t  i s  a  good t ime jus t  because  we are  

dea l ing  w i th  the  issue o f  Voss loh  payments  because you 

have ment ioned then they made payments  to  Swi fambo.   I  

wou ld  l i ke  you to  tu rn  to  page 953 o f  you r  repor t .   Page  

953,  Cha i rpe rson .  

CHAIRPERSON :    953.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now you do not  have to  read th is .   

Would  you ind ica te  to  the  Cha i rpe rson what  you dea l  w i th  

in  the  contex t  o f  what  you have jus t  been say ing .   You 

were  say ing  there  were  major  o ther  in f lows in to  South  10 

A f r i ca  f rom Voss loh .   So w i l l  you  te l l  the  Cha i rpe rson what  

th is  i s .  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  the  Werksmans ’ invest iga t ion  

team,  a t  the  t ime we aga in  we per fo rmed invest iga t ions,  

p rov ided w i th  a  repor t  wh ich  was s ty led :  

“P rov is iona l  repor t  on  the  Passenger  Ra i l  Agency o f  

South  A f r i ca  Mat te r. ”  

Th is  repor t  was prepared by  the  compl iance and  

enforcement  d i v is ion  o f  the  f inanc ia l  surve i l lance 

depar tment  da ted  15 February  2017 and I  s tand to  be  20 

cor rec ted ,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  o f  the  Reserve  Bank  and in  

summary …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Sor ry,  jus t  fo r  the  record .   What  i s  

the  compl iance and enforcement  d iv is ion?  I  am so r ry,  the  

f inanc ia l  surve i l lance depar tment .   To  wh ich  depar tment  



25 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 350 
 

Page 31 of 163 
 

does i t  be long?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  aga in  I  th ink  i t  i s  to  the  South  

A f r i can Reserve  Bank.   I t  i s  a  depar tment  w i th in  the  

Reserve  Bank and they were  obv ious l y  in  a  pos i t ion  to  

asce r ta in  money f low ing in to  South  A f r i ca  as  –  or  money 

f low ing in  and out  goes th rough the  Reserve  Bank.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And genera l l y  what  i s  the  pu rpose o f  

mon i to r i ng?  

MR SACKS:    I t  i s  compl iance –  and fo re ign  exchange 

compl iance and enforcement ,  I  wou ld  unders tand.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Wou ld  i t  no t  a lso  be  to  mon i to r  i f  

there  a re  susp ic ious in f lows or  ou t f lows o f  money wh ich  a l l  

count r ies  in  the  wor ld ,  jus t  g iven the  wor ld  we l i ve  in  now,  

a re  requ i red  to  do .  

MR SACKS:    I  con f i rm wi th  counse l ,  Cha i rperson,  on  tha t  

v iew.   So,  in  summary,  th is  repor t  conf i rmed tha t  an  

amount  o f  R88 991 209.38 –  39  cents ,  excuse me,  f lowed 

in to  South  A f r i ca  f rom Voss loh  and my repor t  inc ludes 

ex t rac ts  o f  th is  sa id  repor t  and i f  you  indu lge  me,  

Cha i rperson,  I  can say tha t  an  en t i t y  w i th  the  name 20 

Voss loh  K iepe wh ich  I  unders tand is  an  Aust r i an  d iv i s ion  o f  

Voss loh  AG made  s i x  payments  to  S iyaya Ra i l  

in f ras t ruc tu re  so lu t ions  and techno logy be tween December  

2011 and September  2013 to ta l l ing  R13.6  m i l l ion .   The 

ca tegory  fo r  these payments  i s  re f lec ted  as  lega l ,  
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account ing ,  management  consu l t ing  and proceeds fo r  

management  consu l t ing  and my repor t  inc ludes the  de ta i l s  

o f  these payments  and,  Cha i rperson,  Voss loh  Espana,  

wh ich  we unders tand is  obv ious l y  the  Span ish  subs id ia ry  

wh ich  manufac tured the  locomot ives ,  made s i x  payments  to  

an  en t i t y  S  Inves tments  (P ty )  L td  be tween February  2014 

and September  2015 to ta l l ing  R75 328 121.57.   Category  

o f  these payments  i s  re f lec ted  fo r  p roceeds fo r  

management  consu l t ing  serv i ce  and a rch i tec tura l  

eng ineer ing  and o ther  techn ica l  serv i ces  and,  as  I  s ta te  in  10 

my repor t :  

“Cons ide r ing  the  mater ia l  na tu re  and amounts  o f  the  

payments  l i s ted  above spec i f i ca l l y  as  the  payments  

were  os tens ib l y  made to  Mabunda compan ies ,  th is  

repor t  and the  content  there in…”  

Be ing  the  Reserve  Bank repor t .  

“…needs to  be  invest iga ted  fu r the r. ”  

But  u l t imate ly  th is  repor t  conf i rmed tha t  approx imate ly  R89  

mi l l ion  was pa id  by  Voss loh  in to  South  A f r i ca  to  Mabunda  

l inked ent i t ies  and wh ich  -  I  unders tand wh ich  counse l  w i l l  20 

examine fu r ther  t ha t  the  l iqu ida tor ’s  repor t  dea ls  w i th  th is  

aspect  as  we l l .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now you say the  las t  pa ragraph o f  

your  repor t :  

“Cons ide r ing  the  mater ia l  na ture  and the  amounts  
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invo l ved R75 mi l l ion  be ing  pa id  by  a  person who 

rece ives,  in  the i r  words,  a  mega cont rac t  f rom 

South  A f r i ca  to  an  ind iv idua l  who you say is  

s ign i f i can t . ”  

And why do you say i n  th is  contex t  Mr  Mabunda i s  

s ign i f i can t?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  as  we have exp lo red,  Mabunda 

–  Mr  Mabunda and h is  en t i t ies ,  l inked ent i t ies ,  rece ived 

s ign i f i can t  funds  f rom Swi fambo .   Not  on ly  tha t ,  Mr  

Mabunda ’s  l inked  ent i t ies  were  s ign i f i can t ly  invo l ved in  the  10 

tender.   I f  you  reca l l ,  Cha i rperson ,  one o f  the  f i rs t  i tems in  

the  tender  was  to  p ick  up  the  tender  documents  and 

someone f rom S Group co l lec ted  the  documents  

themse lves and tha t  was the  s ta r t  o f  the  f low o f  Mabunda-

l inked ent i t ies  th rough the  who le  –  f rom incept ion  o f  the  

tender  to  the  award ing  o f  the  tender  to  u l t imate  ou t f low o f  

funds and fu r the r  to  these f lows f rom Voss loh  in to  South  

A f r i ca  o f  R89 mi l l ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And in  te rms o f  the  ana lys i s  you d id  

o f  the  major  –  I  do  no t  want  to  ca l l  them cred i to rs  anymore  20 

because –  bu t  the  majo r  benef ic ia r ies  o f  the  ou t f lows f rom 

Swi fambo,  Mr  Mabunda and h is  company are  a  major  

benef ic ia ry.  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  the  f low o f  funds ana lys is  

shows tha t  Mabunda- l inked ent i t ies  rece ived f rom 
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Swi fambo over  the  course  o f  the  t ime o f  ana lys is  

R54 651 981 and the  en t i t ies  inc lude names such as  

Inawaste(? )  the  S iyaya Group ent i t ies  and Sovo S  Group.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  tha t  wou ld  mean tha t  in  respect  o f  

th is  cont rac t  Mr  Mabunda and h is  compan ies  rece ived more  

than R140 mi l l ion ,  take  the  88 ,4  p lus  54  tha t  you were 

ta lk ing  about .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   That  i s  more  than the  pro f i t  tha t  

Swi fambo was go ing  to  make out  o f  the  en t i re  dea l .  10 

MR SACKS:    As  per  the  cont rac t ,  yes ,  Cha i rperson.  

the  en t i t ies  inc lude names such as  Inawaste(?)  the  S iyaya  

Group ent i t ies  and Sovo S  Group.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And I  th ink  you  sa id  yesterday but  you  

w i l l  te l l  me i f  I  m isunders tood,  I  th ink  –  and you sa id  

yesterday fo r  rea l l y  do ing  no th ing .  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    O ther  than be ing  the  m idd leman.    

MR SACKS:    You are  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now adopt ing  the  approach tha t  we 

ind ica te  tha t  we  wou ld  jus t  dea l  w i th  the  b ig  amounts  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Son i .   Can I  ask  th is  

quest ion?  And your  be ing  an  account  and a  fo rens ic  m ight  
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enab le  you to  answer  i t .   What  a re  the  chances tha t  the  

pr ice  fo r  the  locomot ives  tha t  was quoted to  PRASA was  

in f la ted  in  o rder  to  make prov is ion  fo r  amounts  tha t  wou ld  

have to  be  pa id  to  the  m idd leman by Voss loh?  In  o ther  

words,  I  do  no t  see tha t  i f  I  am go ing  to  manufac tu re  t ra ins  

to  se l l  to  h im i f  the i r  t rue  pr i ce  i s  R100 then my pro f i t  i s  

p rov ided there ,  tha t  i f  I  a l low you to  be  m idd leman,  I  am 

go ing  to  s t i l l  quo te  R100 espec ia l l y  i f  your  commiss ion  i s  

go ing  to  be  qu i te  substant ia l ,  i t  looks  l i ke  I  wou ld  have to  

in f la te  the  pr ices  so  as  to  accommodate  what  I  must  pay 10 

and s t i l l  make a  reasonab le  pro f i t .   In  te rms o f  your  own 

exper ience,  in  te rms o f  your  ana lys i s ,  i s  tha t  someth ing  

you are  ab le  to  answer  even i f  no t  de f in i t i ve ly  bu t  in  te rms  

o f  p robab i l i t ies  based on your  exper ience? 

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  i t  i s  rea l ly  a  quest ion  –  I  th ink  

the  f i rs t  th ing  tha t  you can say i s  i f  PRASA secured the  

t ra ins  d i rec t l y  f rom Swi fambo  themse lves,  assuming  

Swi fambo qua l i f ied  to  p rov ide ,  they w i l l  have pa id  

s ign i f i can t ly  R120 mi l l ion  l ess  when i s  a  s ign i f i can t  

amount .   I t  appears  to  me wi thout  knowing the  in fo rmat ion   20 

and in  fa i rness  to  Swi fambo themse lves,  we have not  

asked them the  quest ion ,  we have  not  invest iga ted  d id  you 

charge a  fa i r  p r ice  to  Swi fambo ,  d id  you g ive  them a  

d iscount  to  enab le  them to  make a  mark-up?   That  

obv ious ly  we wou ld  have to  –  those conversa t ions wou ld  
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have to  take  p lace and tha t  i s  why  we were  repor t ing  – the  

Werksmans ’ invest iga t ion  team was repor t ing  th is  very  fac t  

to  go  to  Voss loh ,  jus t  ask  those quest ions to  Voss loh .   I t  

looks  l i ke  based on how th is  cont rac t  –  as  we have seen 

how th is  cont rac t  evo lved,  i t  d id  no t  seem to  be  a  concern  

on  the  PRASA sa id ,  PRASA management  s ide ,  a t  the  very  

least ,  what  they were  pay ing .   And see ing  tha t  once the  

cont rac t  p r ice  o f  an  amount  o f  R3.5  b i l l i on  was f i xed ,  tha t  

i s  the  number,  however  many locomot ives  we get  fo r  R3.5  

b i l l i on ,  in i t ia l l y  i t  was 88,  then the  rand weakened,  now we  10 

are  ge t t ing  70 .   I t  seems l i ke  PRASA was i r re levant ,  rea l l y,  

in  a  sense,  on  a  per  un i t  p r i ce .   I t  was jus t  a  cont rac t  

p r ice .   I  th ink  you ask  a  very  good quest ion  and I  wou ld  

cer ta in ly  th ink  d id  PRASA pay more  than the  go ing  ra te  fo r  

a  locomot ive?  I  cannot  –  I  was not  p r ivy  to  what  the  o the r  

tendere rs  b id  fo r  the i r  locomot ives  and tha t  i s  cer ta in ly  

someth ing  tha t  wou ld  have to  be  looked a t  in  contex t  o f  the 

who le  –  the  who le  –  the  who le  –  I  hope I  answered your  

quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   No,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   I t  may we l l  20 

be  tha t  t ry ing  to  es tab l i sh  what  s im i la r  t ra ins  may have  

been so ld  fo r  a re  e l sewhere  by  Voss loh  or  by  i t s  

compet i to rs  a t  tha t  t ime may he lp  to  say –  because,  as  I  

see i t ,  i f  Swi fambo had no prev ious exper ience o f  in  th is  

sec tor  o r  maybe  in  any secto r,  in  th is  sec to r,  maybe  
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whatever  p r i ces  they quoted were  based on what  Voss loh  

may have to ld  them because they  jus t  –  they knew they 

were  go ing  to  ge t  them f rom Voss loh .    

MR SACKS:    So ,  in  o the r  words,  Cha i rperson,  i t  was not  –  

they d id  no t  ac t  in  the  best  in te res ts  o f  PRASA,  they jus t  

accepted the  pr ice  tha t  Voss loh  was quot ing ,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  obv ious ly  the  respons ib i l i t y  to  

ac t  in  the  best  i n te res t  o f  PRASA s tar ted  w i th  the  peop le  

who ag reed to  the  pr ice  a t  PRASA.  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    What  homework  d id  they do  befo re  they  

agreed to  the  pr ice ,  was th is  the  go ing  ra te ,  you know,  d id  

they compare  w i th  o ther  manufac turers  in te rnat iona l l y  o r  

whatever  o r  d id  they jus t  take  whatever  p r i ce  was  quoted 

to  them by Swi fambo?  So i t  wou ld  in te res t ing  –  I  mean,  I  

do  no t  know i f  you have worked ou t  what  pe rcentage o f  the  

who le  amount  pa id  by  PRASA for  these t ra ins  went  to  

Swi fambo in  te rms o f  a l l  these amounts  inc lud ing  those 

tha t  may have gone to  S iyagena and so  on .   What  

percentage in  the  end …[ in tervenes]  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Swi fambo,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Swi fambo.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  Swi fambo,  I  th ink  I  saw in  one o f  the 

pages some money tha t  came f rom Voss loh  K iepe or  
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someth ing .  

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Go ing  to  S iyagena.  

MR SACKS:    No,  i t  was S iyaya.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  ja ,  I  mean  S iyaya.   Wel l ,  Mr  Son i  

knows tha t  fo r  qu i te  some t ime I  kept  on  confus ing  S iyaya 

and S iyagena.   Ja ,  so  i t  wou ld  be  in te res t ing  to  see what  

percentage went  to  –  ended up w i th  Voss loh ,  what  

percentage ended up w i th  Swi fambo or  Mabunda and o ther  

peop le  connected  w i th  Swi fambo.  10 

MR SACKS:    I  th ink ,  Cha i rperson ,  i t  i s  fa i r  to  say tha t  the  

major i t y  o f  the  R3.5  b i l l i on  was go ing  to  end up i n  a  fo re ign  

company.   R1.8  b i l l i on  was pa id  to  them for  the  de l i very  o f  

13  locomot ives  and I  know dur ing  the  Werksmans ’ 

invest iga t ion ,  we  were  look ing  a t  tha t  aspect  in  t e rms o f  

how PRASA –  the  de l i very  o f  locomot ives  d id  no t  accord  

w i th  the  money tha t  was be ing  pa id ,  i t  was a lmost  l i ke  

PRASA was pay ing  up f ron t .   I t  was not  a  favourab le  

cont rac t  to  PRASA,  they took  on  t remendous r i sk ,  

per fo rmance r i sk .   I  unders tand there  were  issues w i th  the  20 

per fo rmance bond wh ich  I  unders tand to  be  tha t  i f  the  

supp l ie r  fa i l s  to  de l i ve r,  how does PRASA recoup the i r  

money and –  so  the  who le  cont rac t  i t se l f  was not  focused 

to  PRASA’s  best  in te res t  and  -  so  in  te rms o f  jus t  13  

locomot ives  coming fo r  R2.6  b i l l i on  be ing  pa id  o f  wh ich  the  
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ma jor i t y  o f  i t  went  to  Voss loh ,  I  th ink  i t  jus t  s tands on i t s  

own in  te rms o f  we l l ,  PRASA was  heav i l y  exposed  jus t  on 

tha t  bas is  a lone  in  no t  ge t t ing  what  eventua l l y  –  never  

m ind tha t  the  locomot ives  were  no t  su i tab le  fo r  the  South  

A f r i can ra i l  ne twork ,  as  i t  was dea l t  w i th  in  Popo Mo le fe ’s  – 

or  the  app l i ca t ion  judged by  the  SCA.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  i t  wou ld  be  in te res t ing  to  know what  

p r ice  Voss loh  wou ld  have quoted i f  they  were  dea l ing  w i th  

PRASA d i rec t l y.  

MR SACKS:    I  th ink  i t  i s  a  ve ry  good quest ion ,  10 

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja ,  ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   In to  tha t  m ix  though,  Mr  Sacks,  one  

must  a lso  pu t  th is  because you ra ised a  quest ion ,  we l l  i t  

looked an unfavourab le  cont rac t ,  a t  the  t ime PRASA 

cont rac ted  w i th  Swi fambo,  Swi fambo had not  ye t  

cont rac ted  w i th  Voss loh  because  PRASA’s  cont rac t  w i th  

Swi fambo was conc luded on the  25 t h  o f  March and 

Voss loh ’s  –  Swi fambo’s  cont rac t  w i th  Voss loh  was 

conducted th ree  months  la te r.  20 

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  even i f  PRASA had  asked 

Swi fambo what  i s  Voss loh  go ing  to  charge Swi fambo cou ld  

no t  g ive  an  answer  because there  was no cont rac t  be tween  

them? 
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MR SACKS:    Yes Cha i rperson i t  was dea l t  w i th  ex tens i ve l y  

in  the  Popo Mole fe  a f f idav i t s  as  we l l .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  I  mean i t  jus t  re in fo rces the  po in t  

you made tha t  PRASA jus t  d idn ’ t  ca re .  

MR SACKS:    To  pu t  i t  b lun t ly  Cha i rperson tha t  i s  p robab ly  

a  fa i r  summat ion  by  counse l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  very  wor ry ing  when peop le  are  

appo in ted  to  impor tan t  S ta te  Ent i t ies  l i ke  PRASA,  they are  

in  h igh  pos i t ions ,  they ge t  pa id  qu i te  we l l  to  look  a f te r  the  

in te res ts  o f  the  en t i t y,  bu t  by  the  way th is  cont rac t  was  10 

hand led  i t  does  look l i ke  the  in te res t  o f  PRASA were  

subs id ia ry  to  someth ing  e l se .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  very  wor ry ing .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  sor ry  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  I  am done.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    In  regard  to  the  payments  tha t  

Voss loh  made to  S iyaya wh ich  were  f lagged by  the  

f inanc ia l  surve i l l ance depar tment ,  when your  repor t  was 

f in ished d id  you  send a  repor t  to  them to  say l ook you  20 

f lagged th is ,  shou ld  you not  look  a t  th is  fu r the r,  o r  whose 

job ,  so  what  I  am ask ing  rea l l y  i s  whose job  is  i t  to  pursue 

such in fo rmat ion  when you get  more  damning in fo rmat ion  

or  more  susp ic ious in fo rmat ion?   

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson I  th ink  the  obv ious  answer  
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wou ld  be  law en forcement  themse lves,  hence I  i nc luded 

th is  very  impor tan t  f ind ing  in  my repor t ,  aga in  i f  we look a t  

the  Genes is  o f  th is  repor t  th is  i s  jus t  my pre l im inary  

f ind ings,  you know i t  was obv ious l y  in tended to  move 

fo rward  f rom the re ,  to  say we l l  th is  i s  what  we have got  

thus fa r,  here  i s  the  ev idence we  have rece ived thus fa r,  

these are  our  f ind ings,  these are  areas o f  focus and I  

wou ld  imag ine  tha t  was these in - f lows f rom a  fo re ign  

company in to  South  A f r i ca  to  these ind iv idua ls  and  ent i t ies  

wh ich  shou ld  have been or  wou ld  have been a  key focus o f  10 

a  law enforcement  invest iga t ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  you wou ld  have expec ted the  

Hawks to  take  th is  up  and say we l l  look  you f lagged th is ,  

we have now got  th is  fu r ther  in fo rmat ion .   

MR SACKS:    A t  the  very  l east  yes ,  because tha t  i s  where  

my –  Cha i rpe rson  where  my repor t  went  to .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do we know Mr  Son i  whethe r  in  the  l igh t  

o f  the  H igh  Cour t  and Supreme Cour t  o f  Appea l  judgments  

aga ins t  Swi fambo,  wh ich  have been the re  fo r  some t ime.   

The S iyaya one is  resc inded.   20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    The S iyangena one.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The S iyangena one ja .   Whether  

government  o r  PRASA has done anyth ing  to  t ry  and  recover  

some o f  the  money i t  has  los t  th rough the  th is  conduct  

f rom i t s  o f f i c ia ls  who makes cer ta in  dec is ions wh ich  appear  
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to  have e i the r  a t  best  fo r  them reck less  or  g ross ly  

neg l igent  o r  may  we l l  have been  because o f  some o ther  

agenda.    Do we know whether  anyth ing  has been done by  

o ther  than a t tempts  to  ga in  f rom I  mean Swi fambo was 

. . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

ADV VAN SONI  SC:    Chai rpe rson to  the  bes t  o f  my 

knowledge not  because i t  i s  no t  a  quest ion  tha t  was 

per t inent ly  asked  fo r  example  to  Ms Ngoye who wou ld  have 

known as the  Head o f  Lega l  and Compl iance,  bu t  i t  i s  a  

quest ion  tha t  must  express l y  be  asked to  her  so  I  can  10 

respond to  tha t  a t  the  next  s i t t ing  or  cer ta in ly  in  an  emai l  

to  you Cha i rpe rson and then we can take  i t  up  bu t  then you  

wou ld  know fo rmal ly  what  the  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  h ’m,  because how much  o f  the 

money tha t  PRASA d id  pay ou t  a t  some s tage has come 

back?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    63mi l l ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry?    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    R63mi l l ion ,  tha t ’s  what  the  l iqu ida to r  

seems to  have yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  obv ious ly  tha t  i s  a  fa r  c ry  f rom the  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    From the  3 ,5b i l l i on .  

CHAIRPERSON:    From the  b i l l i ons  ja ,  tha t  were  pa id  ou t .    

I  th ink  tha t  the  en t i t y  shou ld  be  look ing  a t  invest iga t ing  the  
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poss ib i l i t y  o f  su ing  everyone who may have made dec i s ions 

tha t  resu l ted  in  these losses in  c i rcumstances where  those 

ind iv idua ls  a re  no t  ab le  to  g ive  proper  exp lanat ions fo r  

the i r  dec is ions.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I f  I  cou ld  Cha i rperson,  and I  jus t  am 

us ing  the  oppor tun i ty  tha t  has been ra ised,  one poss ib i l i t y  

i s  a  se l f  rev iew to  jo in  some o f  the  o f f i c ia ls  who were 

invo l ved so  tha t  they cannot  h ide  beh ind  the  w ing  

cont rac tor  as  i t  were  and then we are  le f t  in  the  s i tua t ion  

where  the  H igh  Cour t  i s  faced on ly  w i th  the  vers ion  o f  the  10 

Organ o f  S ta te  and i t  cannot  ident i f y  o f f i c ia ls  because  

there  has been no a t tempt  to  say bu t  these a re  the  o f f i c ia ls  

and th i s  i s  what  A d id ,  th is  i s  what  B  d id ,  and th is  i s  what  C  

d id  and tha t  i s  why we want  to  use the  Cour t  to  ho ld  them 

respons ib le  fo r  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  t rue ,  and any o f  those o f f i c ia ls ,  

any o f  those o f f i c ia ls  who is  ab le  to  p lace  before  PRASA or  

be fore  –  le t ’s  s ta r t  w i th  PRASA,  be fore  PRASA ev idence 

tha t  there  was noth ing  wrong w i th  the  dec is ions they took  

and PRASA is  sa t is f ied  tha t  i s  f ine ,  they don ’ t  have to  be  20 

sued you know but  i f  they  don ’ t  pu t  tha t  be fore  PRASA and 

they are  sued they can p lace tha t  be fore  the  Cour t  bu t  they 

can exp la in  to  PRASA to  say we l l  I  made th is  dec i s ion ,  

these dec i s ions on  the  bas is  o f  th is  in fo rmat ion  and i t  

seems to  me i t  was a  reasonab le  dec is ion  to  make under  
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the  c i r cumstances but  i f  the i r  exp lanat ions are  no t  

sa t is fac tory  then PRASA cou ld  cons ide r  su ing  them.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Indeed Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  because th is  i s  a  lo t  o f  taxpayers ’ 

money.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  i s  someth ing  tha t  has g i ven me 

s leep less  n igh ts  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  mean I  th ink  yeste rday Mr  Sacks  

re fer red  to  a  page in  the  course  o f  h is  ev idence a  page in  

the  repor t  wh ich  re f lec ts  tha t  a  cer ta in  Ms Casa  I  th ink  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wro te  emai ls  to  Mr  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  and Mr  

Montana warn ing  them about  ce r ta in  da tas  in  re la t ion  to  

comput ing  th is  cont rac t  i f  I  am not  m is taken.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  i s  so  and Cha i rperson on re f lec t ion  

and hav ing  been  adv i sed tha t  those emai l s  a re  in  fac t  

ava i lab le  I  have made a  copy o f  each o f  those  two emai ls ,  I  

th ink  one is  on  the  6 t h  o f  November  and the  o ther  i s  on  the  

20 t h .    I  have made them ava i lab le  to  Mr  Sacks and I  am 20 

go ing  to  ask  h im ,  because you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  was  before  

the  cont rac t  was s igned and those emai ls  ce r ta in ly  i t  

revea ls  Cha i rperson the  very  po in t  you are  mak ing  tha t  

now you are  to ld  by  a  person who is  a  member  o f  the  Board  

tha t  h is  i s  –  th is  i s  rea l l y  dangerous wate rs  and you take  
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your  s l ip  in to  those water,  and o f  course  the  wate rs  ea t  the 

sh ip  up .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .   Okay.  

MR VAS SONI  SC:    Chai rperson I  see i t  i s  jus t  a f te r  11 :15 ,  

do  you want  to  take  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  take  the  tea  break,  we w i l l  

resume,  i t  i s  twenty  past ,  we w i l l  resume a t  twenty  f i ve  to  

twe lve .  

MR VAS SONI  SC:    As you p lease Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .  10 

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES :  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  d idn ’ t  say  th is  when we s tar ted  Mr  

Sacks bu t  I  jus t  ment ion  i t  now tha t  the  oa th  you took 

yesterday cont inues to  app ly.  

MR SACKS:    Yes  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now I  in te r rup ted  the  f low o f  

ev idence lead ing  to  where  you ident i f y  in  de ta i l  what  each 

o f  the  benef ic ia r i es  and the  en t i t ies  go t ,  because we were  

dea l ing  w i th  the  Voss loh  payment  to  Mr  Mabunda and h i s  

company.  
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 I  want  to  take  you back now,  and th is  shou ldn ’ t  take  

us  too  long Mr  Sacks.   A t  14 .5  you dea l  w i th  the  payments 

tha t  were  made  to  –  or  you ca l l  i t  payments  l inked to  

Mashaba,  tha t ’s  Mr  Mashaba persona l l y  and to  en t i t ies  tha t  

…[ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ]  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And i f  you look a t  14 .5 .5 ,  you se t -ou t  

the  four  benef ic ia r ies  in to  wh ich  you can d i v ide  Mr  

Mashaba ’s  …[ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ] .  

MR SACKS:    Yes,  i t ’s  jus t  as  counse l  says,  four  bank 10 

accounts  –  the  four  bank accounts  in  these ent i t ies ’ names  

yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  and the  one  in  regard  to  AM 

Consu l t ing  Eng ineers ,  i t  appears  a t  tab le  8  wh ich  is  on  

page 913,  the  one on Amaroko Mako le le  [? ]  Trus t  appears  

a t  tab le  9  on  page 914,  the  one fo r  Mr  Mashaba h imse l f  

appears  a t  tab le  10  page 915 and the  one fo r  Vuy ina th i  

P roper t ies  appears  a t  tab le  11  on page …[ ind is t inc t  –  

d ropp ing  vo ice ] .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  jus t  wan t  to  ask  you fo r  –  and I  

don ’ t  want  to  be  f in icky  bu t  i t  your  repor t .   In  15 .5 .3  you  

say the re  were  9  payments  bu t  when you look a t  tab le  10  i t  

appears  the re  were  10  tha t  obv ious ly  i s  a  typograph ica l .  

MR SACKS:    Yes,  Cha i rpe rson as  I  say  my –  i t  was  a  dra f t  
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repor t  these l i t t le  e r ro rs  were  be ing  p i cked up,  on  

f ina l i sa t ion…[ in te rvenes] .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  jus t  wanted to  make 

sure…[ in te rvenes ] .  

MR SACKS:    Counse l  i s  cor rec t  there ’s  10  payments .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  i t  poss ib le  to  have a  page somewhere  

tha t  jus t  records  tha t  …[ in tervenes] .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  cou ld  lead h im on tha t  so  tha t  the 

record  w i l l  re f lec t  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  what  I ’m  th ink ing  is ,  i f  you  lead h im,  10 

wh ich  you must  do ,  one w i l l  see  tha t  in  the  t ransc r ip t  bu t  

when one is  l ook ing  i n  the  Bund le  one might  no t  

…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  you ’ re  qu i te  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  i t  m igh t  be he lp fu l  to  have a  page,  

maybe even i f  i t ’s  a t  the  end tha t  says,  in  h is  repor t  a t  

page what ,  what ,  what  th is  i s  wha t  i t  says  bu t  ac tua l l y  i t ’s  

no t  co r rec t ,  th is  i s  the  cor rec t  pos i t ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  as  you p lease Cha i rperson.   

Then we go to  the  payments  and tha t ’s  14 .6  payments  20 

made to  Mr  –  in to  the  bank accounts  o f  Mr  Mashe le  and  

ent i t ies  in  wh ich  he  has an…[ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ] .  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And those appear  a t  tab les 12  and 13 

a t  pages 919 and  920 respect ive ly,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  
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MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And you conf i rm the  cor rec tness o f  

what ’s  conta ined in  those tab les?  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now,  I ’m  sor ry  I  was t ry ing  to  move  

on,  there  a re  mat te rs  tha t  you ment ion  in  re la t ion  to  o the r  

in te res ted  par t ies .   Can I  jus t  take  you to  pa ragraph 

14.5 .7 .2  a t  page 911,  where  you make the  po in t  in  regard  

to  AM Consu l t ing  Eng ineers ,  the  aud i to rs  a re  WKH 

Landgrebe and Co.?   10 

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And why do you f ind  tha t…[ ind is t inc t  

–  d ropp ing  vo ice ]?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  aga in ,  W.K.H.  Landgrebe,  the  

bank account  in  the  name o f  W.K .H.  Landgrebe rece ived 

s ign i f i can t  f low o f  funds f rom Swi fambo in  the  amount  o f  

approx imate l y  R27.9mi l l ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then  you note  a t  pa rag raph  

14.5 .7 .3  tha t  the  D i rec tors  o f  AMC Mashaba,  a  Mr  Moloko  

F loyd S ibone and  Landgrebe Secre tar ia l  Serv i ces .  20 

MR SACKS:    In  the  capac i ty  as  company sec re tary,  yes  

Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I s  tha t  usua l  to  have them or  were  

they jus t  the  company secre ta ry?  

MR SACKS:    I  th ink  they were  jus t  the  company sec re tary,  
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aga in ,  the  invo lvement  o f  WKH Landgrebe was sub jec t  to  

fu r ther  invest iga t ion  bu t  as  s ta ted  they were  the  aud i to rs .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    What  you …[ ind i s t inc t ]  i s  there  

appears  to  be  a  l ink  be tween tha t  f i rm and Mashaba ’s  

en t i t y.  

MR SACKS:    And the  f low o f  funds,  yes  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And the  f low o f  funds yes.  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t ,  then a t  14 .6  you dea l  w i th  the  

f low to  Mashe le ,  we ’ve  been th rough tha t ,  tab les  12  and 13 10 

and in  regard  to  Barn  Whee ls [? ]  you say the i r  reg is te red  

aud i to rs  a re  Van Wyk Aud i to rs .  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    What  i s  the  s ign i f i cance o f  tha t?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  o f f  the  top  o f  my head,  i f  I  

reca l l ,  I  was jus t  reco rd ing  a l l  these ent i t ies ,  who the  

D i rec tors  and who the  aud i to rs  were  bu t  I  can be  –  I  do  

be l ieve  tha t  van  Wyk Aud i to rs  d id  crop  up amongst  the  

en t i t ies ,  they weren ’ t  spec i f i ca l l y  benef ic ia r ies  o f  funds but  

I  was jus t  s ta t ing  fac ts  because in  an  invest iga t ion  i f  20 

fu r ther  in fo rmat ion  is  requ i red ,  i f  I  s ta te  who the  aud i to rs  

a re  as  reco rded on CIPC i t  wou ld  g ive  the  –  I  guess,  the  

po l i ce  a t  the  ve ry  least  o r  whoever  e lse  is  invo lved in  the  

invest iga t ion ,  a reas o f  fu r the r  examinat ion .   I f  we need 

f inanc ia l  s ta tements  or  we need quer ies ,  we can ask  the  
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aud i to rs .  So I  was jus t  s ta t ing  th i s  in fo rmat ion ,  jus t  to  be  

fac tua l  w i th in  my repor t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t ,  I  th ink  the i r  name crops up  

as  aud i to rs  o f  o ther  en t i t ies  as  we l l  in  fa i rness,  tha t ’s  how I  

read the  repor t .  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t ,  then a t  14 .7  you dea l  w i th  

payments  l inked to  Mr  Mabunda and h is  en t i t y.  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now,  I  jus t  want  to  make th is  po in t  10 

because you may  not  have been aware  o f  i t ,  a t  paragraph 

14.7 .3  you say tha t  the  amounts  on  your  invest iga t i on ,  you 

say th is  i s  background,  tha t  the  S iyaya or  d i f fe ren t  

compan ies  in  the  S iyaya Group  rece ived the  payments  

ment ioned,  R26mi l l ion ,  R23mi l l ion  and S iyaya Eng ineers  

the  amount  to  be  de termined.   I  jus t  want  to  po in t  ou t  to  

you,  when Ms Ngoye gave ev idence about  the  S iyaya 

Group,  she sa id  they had done -  she been asked to  do  tha t  

ca l cu la t ion  and she sa id  tha t  f rom about  2009 they ’d  been  

pa id  a  to ta l  o f  more  than a  b i l l i on  rand.   Cha i rperson,  you ’ l l  20 

reca l l  tha t  ev idence f rom Ms Ngoye.  

MR SACKS:    From PRASA? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    From PRASA yes.  

MR SACKS:    From PRASA Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I ’m  jus t  –  you know,  there ’s  no th ing  
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wrong w i th  th is  bu t…[ ind i s t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ]  f rom 

PRASA…[ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ] .   Anyway a t  4 .7 .9  you  

se t  ou t  the  amounts  there  to  each  o f  the  en t i t ies  and these  

are  the re ,  de ta i led  a t  tab les  14 ,  15 ,  16 ,  17 ,  18 ,  19  and 20 

f rom page 924 to  934.  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And you conf i rm the  cor rec tness o f  

a l l  o f  those?  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then the  person who ’s  name you  10 

f lagged ea r l ie r,  Mr  Landgrebe,  you deta i led  the  payments  

made to  h im.  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then you conf i rm tha t  tha t ’s  a t  

tab le  21  a t  page 936,  you conf i rm the  cor rec tness o f  what ’s  

there?  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And jus t  to ,  aga in ,  ind ica te  why you 

l igh t l y  h igh l igh ted  van Wyk Aud i to rs  ea r l ie r  a t  14 .8 .5 ,  you 

make the  po in t  tha t  these th ings  aud i to rs  a re  Landgrebe  20 

but  the  aud i to rs  f o r  Ho ld ings a re  van Wyk Aud i to rs .  

MR SACKS:   Yes,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then a t  14 .9  you deta i l  payments  

l inked to  Musa Cap i ta l  and obv ious ly  th rough tha t ,  Ms  

Cynth ia  Par r ish ,  th is  i s  the  Amer i can c i t i zen  …[ in tervenes] .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry  Mr  Son i  you say,  a t  what?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Sor ry  14 .9  on  page 937.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay ja ,  i f  you  cou ld  jus t  ment ion  the  

page number  together  w i th  the  paragraphs tha t  w i l l  he lp .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Sor ry,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And th is  appears  a t  tab le  22  on page 

938 and you conf i rm the  de ta i l s  as  se t  ou t  in  tab le  22 ,  Mr  

Sacks?  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then 14.10 the  payments  made to  

S ibenza and you deta i l  these a t  parag raph 14.10 and tab le  

23 .  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I ’m  not  go ing  to  ask  about  th is  

because in  the  aud i to r ’s  –  so r ry  in  Mr  Mashaba ’s  no te  in  

respect  to  the  payment  to  S ibenza  he says tha t  Swi fambo 

in  fac t ,  had pa id  R110mi l l ion  no t  R99mi l l ion  and so  we ’ l l  

look  a t  tha t .   That ’s ,  e f fec t i ve l y  the  head o f  Swi fambo 

say ing  tha t  tha t ’s  the  amount .  20 

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And I ’m not  say ing  tha t  you r  f igures  

are  wrong,  I ’m  jus t  say ing  tha t  i f  they  say they pa id  

tha t…[ in tervenes] .  

MR SACKS:    We must  jus t  remember,  Cha i rperson,  a t  the  
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t ime I  per fo rmed my invest iga t ion  I  wasn ’ t  p r i vy  to  

documenta t ion  ou t  o f  Swi fambo,  I  was pu re l y  look ing  a t  

bank s ta tements  and obv ious l y…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And you d idn ’ t  have a l l  the  bank  

s ta tements  in  any  case.  

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Some o f  these may have been f rom 

those o the r  bank s ta tements .  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:     10 

MR SACKS:    D id  you get  to  know round about  when Mr  

S i f i so  Buthe lez i  seems to  be  a  D i rec to r  o f  S ibenza  

Forward ing  or  i s  tha t  someth ing  you never  go t  to  know? 

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  I  don ’ t  have tha t  da te  in  my 

repor t ,  I  wou ld  have obta ined th is  in fo rmat ion  f rom CIPC so  

tha t  i t  wou ld  be  read i l y  ava i lab le  bu t  I  d id  no te  in  my repor t  

tha t  he  was a  p rev ious D i rec tor  a t  th is  po in t  in  t ime I  

d idn ’ t…[ in te rvenes] .   

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  wou ld  be  good to  ge t  tha t  in fo rmat ion  

to  see a t  what  –  as  f rom what  da te  he  ceased to  be  a  20 

D i rec to r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Mr  Sacks  is  go ing  to  p repare  a  

supp lementary  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then a t  paragraph 14.11 you dea l  
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w i th  the  payments  l inked to  Nkos i  Sabe lo  and you say  

there  were  two payments  aga in  on  account  o f  the  fac t  tha t  

Mr  Mashaba se ts  ou t  the  payments  tha t  he  made  to  th is  

f i rm o f  a t to rneys  and the  reason fo r  the  payment ,  we w i l l  

dea l  w i th  th is  pa r t  –  o r  these payments  when we dea l  w i th  

h is  no te  on  the  CM tender  re la t ing  to  these payments .  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Does paragraph  14.10.5  wh ich  is  based 

on Mr  Mamabolo ’s  a f f idav i t  wh ich  says tha t  Mr  Buthe lez i ,  

the  fo rmer  Cha i rperson o f  PRASA Board ,  i f  an  essent ia l  10 

l ink  i s  –  wh ich  has –  i t  says  has a  55% in  S ibenza Ho ld ing  

does tha t  mean tha t  even though he may have res igned as  

a  D i rec tor  o f  S ibenza a t  some s tage th roughout  the  t ime o f  

th is  Swi fambo t ransact ion ,  wh i le  he  was Cha i rperson o f  the  

Board ,  he  had th is  connect ion  w i th  Had is  tha t  has 55% 

shareho ld ing  on  S ibenza,  do  we know tha t?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  these were  a l legat ions made by  

Mamabolo ,  I  cannot  conf i rm i f  those a l legat ions a re  t rue ,  

however,  i t  was inc luded in  my repor t  because i t  cer ta in l y  

war ran ted…[ in tervenes] .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Someth ing  fu r ther.  

MR SACKS:    Someth ing  fu r ther  bu t  you are  co r rec t  in  

say ing  whereas th is  ind iv idua l  m ight  no t  have  been a  

D i rec tor  he  m ight  have had an  in te res t ,  an  ownersh ip  

in te res t  in  S ibenza.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I s  i t  poss ib le  to  look  a t  CIPC 

documents  and inc lude th is  in  the  fu r the r…[ in tervenes] .  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  CIPC doesn ’ t  inc lude  

shareho ld ing  tha t  in fo rmat ion  i s  no t  read i l y  ava i l ab le  so  

tha t ’s  why i t  had to  be  per fo rmed per  subpoena or  an  

invest iga t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Oh,  so  on ly  the  po l i ce  wou ld  be  ab le  

to…[ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ] .  10 

MR SACKS:    That ’s  my unders tand ing ,  yes ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  and I  guess i f  the  po l i ce  can do i t ,  

the  Commiss ion  cou ld  do  i t  as  we l l  in  te rms o f  i ssu ing  a  

summons to  p roduce documents ,  ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t ,  I  

in te r rup ted  you Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Sor ry,  Cha i rperson,  we ’ re  a t  page 

945,  these a re  the  payments  l inked to  Mezann i  Eng ineer ing  

and you say the re  were  14  payments  o f  …[ ind i s t inc t ]  o f  

R5mi l l ion  they are  re f lec ted  in  tab le  25 ,  you conf i rm tha t  

what  i s  se t  ou t  in  tab le  25  is  cor rec t?  20 

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And the  payments  l inked to  Mezann i  

Investments  –  I  take  i t  these are  d i f fe ren t  en t i t ies ,  Mezann i  

Eng ineer ing  and  Mezann i  Investments  because one is  a t  

14 .12  and the  o ther  i s  a t  14 .13?  
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MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  these  are  bank accounts  w i th  

the  names I  t r ied  to  address –  in  the  invest iga t ion  i f  I  cou ld  

ident i f y  who the  company was beh ind ,  hence I  inc luded  

aud i to r  and CIPC in fo rmat ion  bu t  th is  i s  a  name o f  a  bank 

account .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And,  o f  course ,  i f  you  look a t  14 .2 .2  

you ’ l l  see  tha t  the  aud i to rs  a re  van Wyk aud i to rs  fo r  

Mezann i  Eng ineers  and i f  you look a t  14 .13 .2  the  aud i to rs  

o f  Mezann i  Investments  are  a l so  van Wyk.  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  Cha i rperson tha t ’s  cor rec t .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  th is  i s  the  name tha t  kept  popp ing  

up and th is  i s  why,  I  suppose you f lagged i t  and thought  i t  

was someth ing  to  look  a t ,  no t  tha t  there  i s  someth ing 

wrong w i th  i t .  

MR SACKS:   Yes,  Cha i rpe rson.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then a t  14 .14  you dea l  w i th  a  

payment  made to  Knowles Husa in  L indsay A t to rneys,  

aga in ,  th is  payment  i s  dea l t  w i th  by  Mr  Mashaba in  a  no te  

to  SEM100,  I ’m  go ing  to  go  th rough tha t  w i th  you in  a  l i t t le  

wh i le ,  I ’m  not  go ing  to  dea l  w i t h  i t  here  and then,  o f  20 

course ,  the  payment  l inked to  SARS,  I  mean tha t ’s  no t  a  

mat te r  tha t  concerns us  a t  a l l .   Parag raph 15 on page 953 

is  the  mat te r  we ’ve  been th rough a l ready.  

MR SACKS:    Yes,  tha t ’s  cor rec t ,  the  payments  f rom 

Voss loh ,  Cha i rperson.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now,  be fore  I  go  on  to  the  nex t  se t  o f  

documents  I  want  to  re fe r  you to ,  I  want  to  re fe r  you to  

page 873 o f  you r  repor t  and th is  i s  where  you make the  

a l legat ion  or  you…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  guess,  jus t  fo r  the  t ransc r ip t ,  Mr  Son i ,  

fo r  those who read a f te rwards when you sa id  page  873 o f  

the  repor t ,  i t ’s  873 o f  the  Bund le .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    O f  the  Bund le ,  sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The page fo r  the  repor t  w i l l  be ,  no t  

tha t…[ in tervenes] .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No,  su re ,  yes ,  tha t ’s  a t  Bund le  L .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now,  I  d id  ment ion  i t  ear l i e r  and I  

sa id  I  was go ing  to  ra ise  th i s  mat te r  w i th  you,  in  pa rag raph  

11.38 –  sor ry  I ’ l l  j us t  take  you back to  the  contex t .   You 

were  ra i s ing  mat te rs  tha t  had been ra i sed w i th  the  key  

peop le  a t  PRASA and a t  11 .37  you made the  po in t  tha t ,  

acco rd ing  to  Mr  Mole fe ’s  a f f idav i t ,  cer ta in  mat te r  had been  

brought  to  the  a t ten t ion  o f  Mr  Montana but  he  ignored  

them,  tha t ’s  no t  what  I  wanted but  tha t ’s  the  con tex t .   A t  20 

11 .3 .8  you say,  Br idget te  Gasa,  now le t ’s  jus t  ident i f y  he r,  

what  was he r  pos i t ion  in  PRASA a t  the  t ime? 

MR SACKS:    I  –  Cha i rpe rson,  I ’m  not  abso lu te l y  

fami l ia r…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay,  she  was a  member  o f  the  
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Board .  

MR SACKS:    I  unders tand she was a  member  o f  the  Board  

yes,  tha t ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now,  the  po in t  you made though is ,  

based on what  had been sa id  in  Mr  Mole fe ’s  a f f idav i t  she 

had  ra i sed ser ious concerns  about  Swi fambo in  an  emai l  

da ted  the  6 t h  o f  November  2012  to Mr  Buthe lez i   and 

Montana,  le t ’s  jus t  dea l  w i th  tha t .   Have you managed to  

lay  your  hands on  a  copy o f  tha t  emai l?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  the  s tandard  procedure  in  the  10 

Werksmans invest iga t ion  the  team – they fo rens i ca l l y  

secure  the  documenta t ion  f rom the  outs ide  inves t iga t ion 

and in  th is  case there  was about  1 .4b i l l i on  documents  and 

w i th in  th is  –  these documents ,  th is  emai l  tha t  counse l  

re fe rs  to  was loca ted and I ’ l l  read the  contents  o f  th is  

emai l…[ in te rvenes] .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Be fore  you do tha t ,  Cha i rperson,  I  

have a  copy fo r  you,  i t  may be eas ie r  fo r  you to  fo l low i t ,  

may I  have leave to  hand i t  up  and we w i l l  obv ious l y 

inc lude i t  in  the  fu r the r  a f f idav i t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  tha t ’s  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  a t  leas t  fo r  now,  you have i t  

in fo rmal l y  and then i t  w i l l  fo rmal ly  be  par t  o f  the  reco rd  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  tha t ’s  f ine ,  thank you.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So ,  le t ’s  jus t  pu t  th is  in  contex t .   Ms 

Gasa wr i tes  on  the  6 t h  o f  November  2012 and she wr i tes  a t  

19h25,  when I  say  wr i tes ,  sends the  emai l  a t  19h25,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Who were  the  rec ip ien ts  o f  th is  

emai l?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  the  rec ip ien ts  o f  the  emai l  was  

an emai l  address,  S i f i so@makana.co .za  and as  no ted on  

the  emai l  second rec ip ien t  was  Lucky Montana  PRASA 10 

Corp .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t  what  does she do w i th in  th is?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  th is  is  –  th is  emai l  dea ls  w i th  

her  ra is ing  the  ser ious concerns and i f  counse l  indu lges  

me I  can read i t  in to  the  record .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  i f  you  cou ld  read i t  in to  the  

record .  

MR SACKS:    So ,  the  sub jec t  i s ,  u rgent ,  the  a t tachments  to  

th is  emai l  s ta tes  Swi fambo Ra i l  docex and Mpumalanga  

docex and the  emai l  reads as  fo l lows,  20 

“Co l leagues I  know you are  bo th  in  Cape Town,  

t ry ing  to  rescue our  o rgan isa t ion  f rom be ing 

h i jacked,  I  apprec ia te  your  e f fo r ts  and can on ly  

hope the  p lo t  w i l l  be  successfu l l y  a r res ted .  

Unfo r tunate ly  I ’m  not  a  bearer  o f  good news,  I ’ ve 

mailto:Sifiso@makana.co.za
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jus t  rece ived  in te l l igence in fo rmat ion  about  

Swi fambo Ra i l  Leas ing ,  the  company the  PRASA 

approved R3b i l l i on  wor th  o f  work  over  15  years .  

Wi th  a l l  these p la t fo rms not  be ing  sa fe  I ’d  l i ke  to  

request  tha t  you  a l low me to  d ig  a  l i t t le  deeper.  

Fa i lu re  to  fo l low th is  up  w i l l  s ink  the  organ isa t ion .  

Shou ld  the  in te l l igence repor t  p rove t rue  we need 

an immedia te  in te rvent ion  as  the  Board ,  s igned o f f  

my Dr  Br ige t te  Gasa,  MD the  E l i lox  Group P ty  L td” .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now,  th is  seems to  ind ica te  that  10 

there  was an a t tachment  to  th is  emai l  do  you now – I  

mean,  obv ious ly  you p i cked th i s  up  f rom Mr  Mole fe ’s  

a f f idav i t .  

MR SACKS:    Mr  Mole fe  ob ta ined th is  document  th rough 

the  Werksmans invest iga t ion ,  th rough the  repos i to ry  o f  the 

fo rens ica l l y  secured documents ,  as  I  ment ioned.  I  wou ld  

imag ine ,  to  answer  counse l ’s  quest ion ,  i f  there  was an  

a t tachment  i t  cou ld  be ,  i t  wou ld  have to  be  conf i rmed,  tha t  

th is  wou ld  a l so  be  –  i f  th is  emai l  was loca ted in  the  

fo rens ic  p rocess then the  a t tachments  wou ld  a lso  be .   I ’m  20 

not  fami l ia r  as  I  wasn ’ t  pa r t  o f  tha t  fo rens i c  p rocess.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rperson,  I  want  to  dea l  w i th  the  

second emai l  and hav ing  regard  to  i t s  contents ,  make a  

submiss ion  to  you on how we can  take  tha t  i ssue fo rward ,  

Cha i rperson.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  obv ious ly  she was very  t roub led  by  

the  in te l l igence  repor t  tha t  she says –  in te l l igence  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  she says she had rece ived about  Sw i fambo 

Ra i l  Leas ing  and she asked fo r  –  to  be  a f fo rded more  t ime 

to  look  in to  whatever  was sa id  in  tha t  in te l l igence  

in fo rmat ion  and she says,  in  e f fec t ,  i f  we don ’ t  fo l low up 

th is  in te l l igence  in fo rmat ion  tha t  fa i lu re  w i l l  s ink  the  

organ isa t ion  and shou ld  the  in te l l igence repor t  p rove t rue ,  

we need immedia te  in te rvent ion  as  the  Board .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    She makes another  impor tan t  po in t  10 

here  Cha i rperson .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I f  we look a t  th is  as  a  cont rac t  fo r  so  

many…[ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ]  i f  you  look a t  what  she  

says,  th is  i s  R3b i l l i on  wor th  o f  work  over  15  years .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now tha t ’s  even more  wor ry ing  

because as  I  unders tand i t ,  the  Sta te  cont rac t s  a re  no t  to  

be  beyond a  cer ta in  per iod ,  th ree  years  or  f i ve  years .  I  

reca l l  in  one o f  the  –  Mr  Makwethu ’s  a f f idav i t  he  f lagged 20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  want  to  come back to  how the  

approach –  p ropose an approach we shou ld  adopt  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then there  is  a  re ference to  a 

second emai l  and tha t  i s  f rom Ms Gasa aga in ,  what  i s  the  

da te  o f  tha t  emai l?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  tha t  da te  i s  20  November  2012.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And the  t ime? 

MR SACKS:    10h38am.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And who is  th is  emai l  addressed to?  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  aga in  an  emai l  was sent  f rom 

Br idget te  Gasa and i t  was sent  to  Chr i s  Mbatha,  PRASA 

Corp ,  copy ing  L ind ikhaya Z ide  and s iph i so@makana.co .za  10 

the  sub jec t  be ing  fo l low up on the  Swi fambo Ra i l  leas ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   L ind ikyaha Z ide ,  I  assume is  the  one tha t  

a t  some s tage became a  company secre tary  and a t  some 

s tage Act ing  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  … 

MR SACKS:   Yes.   Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:   O f f i cer.  

MR SACKS:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And s iph iso@makana.co .za  tha t  seems to  

be  the  same emai l  address tha t  we  assoc ia te  w i th  Mr  S i f i so 

Buthe lez i  in  the  p rev ious emai l .    20 

MR SACKS:   Yes.   Yes,  i t  i s  the  same emai l  address .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.   So i t ’s  two,  about  two  weeks  

a f te r  the  f i rs t  emai l .  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  i t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    
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MR SACKS:   P lease tha t ,  I  read  tha t  in to  the  record  Mr  

Cha i r.   Cha i rperson the  emai l  reads:  

“Dear  Chr is ,  I  am once aga in  mak ing  an a t tempt  t o  

ex t rac t  more  i n fo rmat ion  f rom you and the  

procu rement  team on abovement ioned mat te r  as  per  

our  in i t ia l  d iscuss ions o f  the  8 t h  o f  November.   I t  is  

impera t ive  …”  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Jus t  so r ry,  one second.   She says:  

 “Our  in i t ia l  d iscuss ions o f  the  8 t h  o f  November. ”  

That  i s  two days a f te r  the  emai l  to  Mr  Buthe lez i  and  10 

Mr  Montana?  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   That ’s  the  one tha t  you jus t  read?  

MR SACKS:   Yes.  

“ I t  i s  impera t ive  tha t  PRASA as  an  organ isa t ion  

appo in ts  adequate ly,  capab le  en t i t ies  to  under take  

the  work  under  a l l  o f  i t s  p rograms,  moreover  in  our  

cont rac t  a re  h igh  in  va lue  and are  l inked to  the  

s t ra tegy o f  c rea t ing  new indust r ia l i s ts  in  the  ra i l  

sec to r.   There  are  concerns have been ra ised 20 

around th is  par t i cu la r  en t i t y  and the  SCIP is  

need ing  you to  conf i rm tha t  indeed a  capac i ty  check 

was proper ly  done in  re la t ion  to  th is  cont rac ts  and  

tha t  you have  sa t is f ied  yourse l ves w i th  the  

necessary  checks and ba lances have been done.   
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P lease proceed to  p rov ide  me wi th  the  in fo rmat ion  I  

requested f rom you as  t ime is  o f  the  essence and  

w i l l  be  an  anoma ly  to  p roceed to  conc lude cont rac t  

negot ia t ions  in  l igh t  o f  the  ser iousness o f  the 

mat te r  we had ra i sed or  wh ich  we have not  rece ived 

a  response f rom you on.   K ind  regards,  Dr  Zane le  

Br idget te  Gasa. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  in  te rms o f  the  las t  pa r t  o f  her  emai l ,  

i t  wou ld  appear  tha t  he  had not ,  she had not ,  tha t  i s  Dr  

Br idget te  Gasa,  she had not  rece ived in fo rmat ion  tha t  she  10 

had requested w i th  regard  to  th is  t ransact ion .    

Whethe r  she is  ta lk ing  about  in fo rmat ion  she may  

have prev ious l y  requested f rom Mr  Chr i s  Mbatha or  she is  

ta lk ing  about  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  she may have requested 

f rom Mr  Montana or  Mr  Buthe lez i .    

One might  no t  be  sure .   But  i t ’s  c lear  tha t  she was,  

she had been seek ing  conf i rmat ion .   She o f ,  she had been  

seek ing  cer ta in  in fo rmat ion  about  th is  t ransact ion .    

MR SACKS:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And she says she had not  rece ived a  20 

response.   And i t  i s  c lea r  f rom th i s  emai l  tha t  her  concerns 

inc lude the  capac i ty  o f  Swi fambo  in  te rms o f  th is  p ro jec t .   

I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SACKS:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because I  th ink  in  the  emai l  she re fers  to  
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capac i ty  does she not?  

MR SACKS:   She  does.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes she does.    

MR SACKS:   She  does.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Second pa ragraph o f  the  second  emai l ,  

there  are  concerns tha t  have been ra i sed around th is  

par t i cu la r  en t i t y  and the  sub jec t  i s  the  fo l low up  on the  

Swi fambo Ra i l  Leas ing .    

“There  are  concerns tha t  have been ra i sed around  

th is  par t i cu la r  en t i t y  and the  FCIP is  need ing  you to  10 

conf i rm tha t  indeed a  capac i ty  check was proper ly  

done in  re la t ion  to  th is  cont rac t .   And tha t  you have 

sa t is f ied  yourse l ves tha t  the  necessary  checks and  

ba lances have been done. ”  

That  i s  an  impor tan t  i ssue she was ra i s ing  and o f  

course  now tha t  we know what  we  know,  i f  they  had taken 

heed o f  her  concerns,  maybe PRASA and …[ ind is t inc t ]  

wou ld  no t  have  los t  the  k ind  o f  money they l os t ,  bu t  

obv ious ly.  

MR SACKS:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   So  tha t ,  tha t  i s  qu i te  impor tan t .   Wel l  i t ’s ,  

i t ’s ,  i t  may we l l  be  tha t  i t  m igh t  be  impor tan t  to  exp lore  the  

poss ib i l i t y  o f  ca l l ing  her.   Because she might  be  ab le  to  te l l  

the  Commiss ion  much more  in  te rms o f  … 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Abso lu te ly  Cha i r.    
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CHAIRPERSON:   What  were  o the r  i ssues tha t  she ra ised in  

the  d iscuss ions a t  board  l eve l .   And aga in  o f  course  Mr  

Montana shou ld  be  coming in  due course .   But  Mr  Bu the lez i  

looks l i ke  wou ld  need to  come as we l l .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   [ Ind is t inc t ]  o r  how,  what  he  d id  o r  d idn ’ t  

do  in  response to  these concerns  when we now know tha t  

Swi fambo had no t  checked records.   And …[ ind is t inc t ]  dea l  

w i th  these mat te rs .   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Cha i rperson,  th is  i s  what  I  was go ing  10 

to  p ropose and tha t  i s  jus t  to  exped i te  the  ou tcome tha t  

you want .   There ’s  we sent ,  ins tead o f  send ing  a  Ru le  33  to  

he r,  because there  is  no  imp l ica t ion  in  respect  o f  her,  i s  to  

send her  a  10 /6  D i rec t i ve .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   That  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   To  say we have these two emai l s .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   These are  the  concerns tha t  appear  to  

be  ra i sed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Wou ld  you p lease prepare  an  a f f idav i t  

by  whatever  da te  tha t  dea ls  w i th  i t ,  w i th  the  mat te rs  you 

have ra i sed.   The  react ion  to  these  emai ls .   We don ’ t  know 

i f  there  was a  react ion .   And as  you have po in ted  out  

Cha i rperson what  was the  board ’s  approach.   And d id  you  
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ra ise  i t  a t  the  board  and what  was the  board ’s  . . .   

( ind is t inc t ) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   But  s l igh t l y  d i f fe ren t .   But  same 

th ing ,  bu t  s l igh t l y  d i f fe ren t  approach.   Rathe r  than say ing  

w i l l  you  te l l  us ,  I  wou ld  say somebody must  t ry  and reach 

her  over  the  phone and say,  th is  i s  what  emerges and we 

wou ld  l i ke  to  you,  wou ld  l i ke  an  a f f idav i t  fo r  you and we  

wou ld  l i ke  to  p repare  i t  fo r  you.    

And have a  zoom consu l ta t ion .   You w i l l  te l l  us  a l l  

tha t  you can share  w i th  the  Commiss ion  about  the  10 

concerns you had,  tha t  you ra ised,  how d id  everybody 

respond to  them?   

The d iscuss ions a t  board  leve l  and on the  day tha t  

i t  was approved by  the  board ,  what  were  the  d iscuss ions?   

I  take  i t  i f  we do not  a l ready have minutes  o f  the  board  

meet ings a t  va lue  when they approve … 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We shou ld  t ry  and get  there .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  as  to  see whether  the  who le  th ing  jus t  20 

was po in t  o f  emot ions o r  whether  there  was a  ser ious and  

proper  cons ide ra t ion  o f  the ,  o f  the  issues tha t  she may  

have been there  and she cou ld  know.    

So i f  she  g ives  a l l  the  in fo rmat ion  she knows,  then 

somebody w i th in  the  lega l  team can p repare  tha t  a f f idav i t  
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then send.   I t  m igh t  be  a  mat te r  o f  –  w i th in  a  week we  

might  have … 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   An  a f f idav i t  f rom her.   So ja ,  i t  i s  the 

same th ing ,  jus t  … 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  abso lu te l y.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Ja ,  okay.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  what  we now know based on  

those tha t  cer ta in  pe rsons a t  leas t  a ren ’ t  c la im ing  

ignorance tha t  they were  no t  aware ,  they were  no t  a le r ted  10 

and in  law Cha i rperson,  i s  i f  you  have a  du ty  and you,  you  

are  asked to  invest iga te  and you don ’ t  invest iga te ,  tha t ’s  a  

b reach o f  the  du ty.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  no ,  no .   These emai l  a re  very  c r i t i ca l .   

Or  a l l  those tha t  –  ja ,  they were  d i rec ted  to  h im and  i t  may 

we l l  be  tha t  in  o rd ina ry  th ings,  cer ta in  board  meet ings,  she  

ra ised the  same issues so  everybody who was a  board  

member  knew what  the  issues were .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And,  and there fore  the  ne t  m ight  

spread w ider  in  te rms o f  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Imp l ica ted  pe rsons Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I  mean one  o f  the ,  one o f  the  th ings  
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tha t  the  Commiss ion  is  go ing  to ,  i s  look ing  a t  w i th  regard  

to  SOEs is  where  boards o f  SOE d id  no t  do  the i r  job ,  o r  

what  must  be  done,  and was i t  a  mat te r  o f  incompetence o r  

i t  be  tha t  the  board  or  some members  o f  the  board  were  

par t y  to  some agenda wh ich  was aga ins t  the  in te res ts  o f  

the  en t i t y.    

But  a lso  i t s ,  i t ’s  impor tan t  because i t  may we l l  be  

tha t  I  cou ld  cons ider  tha t  sub jec t  to  i ssues o f  p rescr ip t ion  

and so  one,  and you know the  en t i t ies  shou ld  sea l  them.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   [ Ind is t inc t ]  whatever  they can recover  o f  

the  tax  payer ’s  money.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And a lso  the  Commiss ion  w i l l  have need 

to  look  a t  what  qua l i t ies  shou ld  peop le  who get  appo in ted  

as  d i rec to rs  o f  these SOEs have.    

And because i t  must  be  peop le  who have in tegr i t y  

and i t  must  be  peop le  who a re  prepared to  make dec is ions 

tha t  a re  i n  the  best  in te res t  o f  the  en t i t y  and not  o ther  

dec is ions.    20 

I  mean an obv ious th ing  w i th  regard  to  th is  i s ,  when 

the  board  approved th is ,  what  in fo rmat ion  d id  they have 

before  them which  ind ica ted  tha t  Swi fambo was an ent i t y  

tha t  cou ld  be  g i ven th is  k ind  o f  cont rac t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   What  d id  they know about  th is  en t i t y?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You know you cannot  jus t  make a  

dec is ion  w i thout  do ing ,  ge t t ing  ce r ta in ,  cer ta in  amount  o f  

homework  to  be  done.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  c lear ly  when  i t  i s  no t  you r  money … 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You are  supposed to  look  a f te r  the  

pub l i c ,  a f te r  pub l i c  money.   So we have got  to  look  a t  a l l  10 

those th ings,  because there  ought  to  be  some change in  

how th ings are  done in  these SOEs go ing  fo rward .    

And th is  Commiss ion  i s  in  a  pos i t ion  to  come up  

w i th  recommenda t ions to  say,  go ing  fo rward  these are  the  

th ings tha t  shou ld  take .   Then i t  i s  up  to  the  Pres ident  i f  

…[ ind is t inc t ]  the  recommendat ions or  no t ,  bu t  the  

Commiss ion  has  a  du ty  to  look  a t  why cer ta in  th ings 

happened a t  SOEs and what  shou ld  be  done to  make sure  

they don ’ t  happen aga in .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Abso lu te ly.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now Mr  Sacks we have dea l t  w i th  

your  repor t  and I  know,  and th is  was a  long t ime ago now,  

you ind i ca ted  what  the  pu rpose o f  the  repor t  was .   You 

handed th is  repor t  and we ’ve  dea l t  w i th  the  issues tha t  
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a r i se  f rom i t  even  i f  one does not  know a l l  the  fac ts .    

What  d id  you expect  wou ld  happen next ,  a f te r  you  

had submi t ted  the  repor t?   And  a lso  you had make a  

presenta t ion ,  wha t  d id  you expect  wou ld  happen next?  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  I  th ink  i t  goes w i thout  say ing  

tha t  I  expected the  invest iga t ion  to  cont inue fo r,  i t  i s ,  i t  i s  

as  s imp le  as  tha t .   Obta in  in fo rmat ion  I  requ i red ,  be  in  a 

pos i t ion  to  per fo rm a  second leve l  o f  ana lys i s  requ i red .    

U l t imate ly  what  the  ob jec t i ve  o f  conc lud ing ,  fo rm ing 

an op in ion  and adv i s ing  law enforcement  to  had engage me 10 

on what  my v iew,  the  repor t  in  i t se l f  speaks vo lumes as  to  

what  the  f ind ings were  a l ready.    

And I  guess the  remain ing  in fo rmat ion  wou ld  jus t  

conf i rmed fu r ther  and po in ted  to  o ther  a reas tha t  needed to  

be ,  to  invest iga te ,  o r  c r im ina l  p roceed ings to ,  to  p roceed.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I f  you  had been asked a f te r  the  

presenta t ion  or  shor t l y  a f te r  your  repor t ,  o r  any t ime a f te r  

your  repor t ,  do  you th ink  any purpose is  go ing  to  be  served 

by  cont inu ing  these invest iga t ions  tha t  you ’ve  l a rge ly,  we l l  

no t  fu l f i l l ed ,  bu t  you have s tar ted  th i s  p rocess.   What  20 

wou ld  have been your  …[ ind i s t inc t ] ?  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  Advocate  Son i  my approach in  

per fo rming the  invest iga t ion?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   No,  no ,  no .   What  wou ld  have been 

your  react ion  to  a  quest ion  o f  tha t  na ture?  In  o ther  words 
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shou ld  th is  mat te r  p roceed?   

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson … 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I s  i t  wor th  i t  in  te rms o f  money,  t ime 

and poss ib le  ou tcome?   

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson I  th ink  the  reco rd ,  the  repor t s  o r  

the  in fo rmat ion  conta ined in  the  repor ts  s tands fo r  i t s ,  on  

i t s  own and tha t ’s  the  invest iga t ion ,  I  cer ta in ly  shou ld  have 

proceeded.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now o f  course  i t  d idn ’ t  and you were  

no t  even b r ie fed  on  the  S iyangena  mat te r  wh ich  was go ing  10 

to  be  the  next  b r i e f  f rom the  Hawks to  you,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SACKS:   Tha t ’s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   E i ther  than tha t  obv ious l y  i s  the  

quest ion  who shou ld  be  he ld  respons ib le  fo r  –  you cou ld  

see the  ou tcome?  We see where  PRASA – we l l  I  mean the  

PRASA the  …[ ind is t inc t ]  cont rac t  i s  and the  accrued losses 

tha t  have been incur red .    

P lus  the  l iqu ida tor  w i l l  come in  a f te r  Mr  Sacks to  

exp la in  what  the  pos i t ion  is  a t  the  moment ,  bu t ,  bu t  

whatever  the  pos i t ion  is ,  f rom the  pos i t ion  o f  good 20 

governance somebody ought  to  be  he ld  respons ib le  fo r  no t  

acqu i r ing ,  no t  on  the  a l low ing,  bu t  the  acqu i r ing  Mr  Sacks 

to  pursue to  the  log ica l  conc lus ion ,  th is  invest iga t i on  tha t  

he  had s topped.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  have noted …[ ind is t inc t ] .  



25 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 350 
 

Page 73 of 163 
 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now Mr  Sacks,  a f te r  you presented 

your  repor t ,  you d idn ’ t ,  you have not  heard  f rom the  Hawks 

s ince?  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now we,  you have heard  what  I  have 

ind ica ted  to  the  Cha i rperson shou ld  happen about  tha t .   

I ’m  go ing  to  take  you to  someth ing  e lse .    

You have now been shown a  repor t  p repared by  the  

l iqu ida to r  o f  Swi fambo Ho ld ings and Swi fambo Ra i l .   Do 

you –  a  repor t  to  s takeho lders  da ted the  18 t h  o f  February  10 

2020.  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And in  ask ing  you to  p repare  fo r  the 

presenta t ion  o f  your  ev idence,  I  have ind ica ted  to  you,  I  

wou ld  l i ke  you to  jus t  cons ider  hav ing  regard  to  the  f low o f  

funds tha t  he  se ts  ou t  in  compar ing  i t  to  what  yours  are .    

What ,  what ,  o r  the  genera l  impress ion  crea ted by  

the  f low o f  funds?  What ,  what  i s  the  d i f fe rence in  v iews i f  

any?  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rpe rson,  the  l iqu ida tor ’s  repor t  20 

cor robora tes  the  f ind ings conta ined in  my repor t  w i th  

regards to  the  f low o f  funds.   As  s imp le  as  tha t .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Not  necessar i l y  in  every  de ta i l ,  

because you d idn ’ t  have a l l  the  in fo rmat ion .   Would  the  

fu r ther  in fo rmat ion  he  has,  i t  re in fo rces the ,  the  
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cor rec tness o f  the  conc lus ions tha t  o r  the  cor rec tness o f  

what  you have se t  ou t  in  your  repor t .  

MR SACKS:   Tha t ’s ,  tha t ’s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And a l l  one  wou ld  need to  do  is  jus t  

add the ,  the  fu r ther  invest iga t ions tha t  have been done 

s ince  as  a  resu l t  o f  the  powers  tha t  be .    

MR SACKS:   Tha t ’s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now but  the re  is  no th ing  in  h is  repor t  

tha t  ra ises  concerns about  the  cogency o f  your  … 

MR SACKS:   Tha t ’s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now then can  I  ask  you,  I  a lso  sa id  to  

you tha t  a f te r  the  l iqu ida tor  had submi t ted  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe before  you proceed,  le t  me jus t  

ge t  th is  qua l i f i ca t ion  Mr  Sacks.   Is  i t  cor rec t  to  say when  

one looks a t  what  one can ca l l  you r  f ind ings in  your  repor t ,  

one shou ld  l im i t  one to  the  f low o f  funds sect ion ,  because 

whatever  came before  tha t  was jus t  the  background tha t  

wou ld  make the  f low o f  fund,  t ransact ion  unders tandab le .   

I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson you are  cor rec t .   I  inc lude  as  you  20 

cor rec t l y  s ta te ,  I  inc luded a l l  tha t  background in fo rmat ion ,  

bu t  my ac tua l  mandate  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR SACKS:   Was  the  f low o f  funds  and tha t  was … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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MR SACKS:   I  guess the  –  as  I  de ta i led ,  tha t  was my 

deta i led  f ind ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.   And o f  course  pa r t  o f  tha t  i s  

why I  am ra is ing  tha t ,  i s  tha t  you w i l l  remember  yesterday 

we –  I  t r ied  to  es tab l i sh  what  was p re l im ina ry  and what  was 

not  p re l im inary  in  you r  repor t .    

And you,  you d id  say the  repor t  was a  d ra f t  

p re l im inary  repor t .   But  you d id  say there  are  par t s  o f  the 

repor t  wh ich  re f lec t  you r  f ind ings.   And I  th ink  what  you are  

say ing  is  tha t  you r  f ind ings are  on ly  those tha t  re la te  to  the  10 

f low o f  funds.    

And I  guess tha t  because i f  the ,  i f ,  i f  money d id  

leave account  A and went  to  account  B ,  there ’s  no t  go ing  to  

change as  tha t  i s  f ina l .    

MR SACKS:   That ’s  cor rec t .   That ’s ,  tha t  cannot  ever  be  

d isputed.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes .   Okay.   A l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  you p lease.   Now so r ry,  be fore  I  

dea l  f ina l l y  w i th  the  repor t ,  I  have been to ld  tha t  there  is  a  

repor t  in  the  Swi fambo app l ica t ion ,  wh ich  dea ls  w i th  a 20 

compar ison between what  the  tenderers ,  the  d i f fe ren t  

tendere rs  had tendered.   A re  aware  o f  tha t?  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  I ,  I  am aware  o f  tha t  what  was  

conta ined in  tha t  Popo Mole fe  a f f idav i t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now in  l igh t  o f  the  fac t  tha t  the  
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Cha i rman has ind ica ted  tha t  i s  a  mat te r  tha t  must  be  taken 

in to  account ,  I  am go ing  to  ask  tha t  you look a t  the  repor t  

and ind ica te  in  the  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  p rec i se ly  what  

i s  conta ined in  tha t  repor t  to ,  as  a  compara tor  be tween  

what  Swi fambo was charg ing  and what  o ther  tendere rs  

were  charg ing .    

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson I  w i l l  a t tend to  tha t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   The background to  tha t  Cha i rperson  

is ,  apparent ly  i t  is ,  i t  i s ,  i t  i s  sa id  by  Judge Franc is  tha t  the 

tender  i f ,  i f  the  spec i f i ca t ions imposed by  Mr  Mth imku lu  10 

had not  been taken in to  account ,  another  tenderer  wou ld  

have won.    

But  apparent ly  t here  i s  a  repor t  wh ich  se ts  ou t  

p rec ise ly  what  tha t  i s .   And we jus t  don ’ t  want  to  be  ta lk ing  

w i thout  a l l  the ,  a l l  the  re levant  fac ts .   But  i t ,  i t  may a lso  

then ra i se  fu r the r  quest ions abou t  the  bona f ides  o f  the 

dec is ion  mak ing .    

But  tha t  we w i l l  ge t  Mr  Sacks to ,  bu t  I  thought  

be fore  he  leaves,  you ought  to  no te  Cha i rperson tha t  tha t  

wou ld  be  a  fu r the r  mat te r  tha t  he  w i l l  address ne i the r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  tha t ’ f ine .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A l r igh t .   Now in  h i s  repor t ,  oh  sor ry.   

The l iqu ida tor  f i l ed  h is  repor t  to  s takeho lde rs  on  the  18 t h  o f  

February  2020.   Thereaf te r  in  Ju ly  Mr  Mashabo  f i led  a  

th ickened CM100 in  each o f  –  in  respect  o f  each o f  
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Swi fambo Ho ld ings and Swi fambo Ra i l .    

Now the  –  I  jus t  want  to  ask  you  i f  you ’ve  had an 

oppor tun i ty  to  look  a t  the  new CN10s –  CN100s,  sor ry.     

MR SACKS:   Yes Cha i rperson I  have.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Cha i rperson I  jus t  want  to  –  I  know Mr  

Sacks is  no t  the ,  the  –  was  not  the  rec ip ien t  o f  

…[ ind is t inc t ]  bu t  obv ious ly  when  you see what  the  CM10 

dea ls  w i th  o r  some o f  the  mat te rs  i t  dea ls  w i th ,  i t ,  i t  goes  

in to  some o f  the  issues he has ra i sed in  h is  repor t .    

And I  thought  i t  i s  on ly  fa i r  tha t  Mr  Sacks be  g iven  10 

an oppor tun i ty  and I  see tha t  and I  accept  tha t  to  the 

ex ten t  tha t  Mr  Mashaba says th i s ,  and i t ’s ,  i t ’s  cons i s ten t  

w i th  the  bank accounts .    

I  cannot  have any d i f f i cu l t y  w i th  i t ,  hav ing  regard  to  

the  fac t  tha t  I  d idn ’ t  have regard  to  –  I  d idn ’ t  have  a l l  the  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  the  po l i ce  shou ld  have prov ided me wi th .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  I  am go ing  to  ask  you –  so r ry  

Cha i rperson,  we are  now dea l ing  w i th  Bund le  E1 and i t  i s  

EXHIBIT SS4.   That ’s  the  l iqu ida tor ’s  repor t  to  20 

s takeho lders .    

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  we us ing  red  numbers  here?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Red numbers  on  the  r igh t -hand s ide  

as  you … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Yes you may proceed.   
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Page 159 hey.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   No,  page –  I ’m not  go ing  to  –  the 

l iqu ida to r  w i l l  dea l  w i th  the  repor t .   I t ’s  jus t  those mat te rs  

tha t  concern  Mr  Sacks.   And they  are  dea l t  w i th  s ta r t ing  a t  

page 214.1 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   214.1 .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   I  have got  i t .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Cha i rperson  I  shou ld  jus t  ind ica te  by  10 

way o f  background why tha t  number ing  is  l i ke  tha t .   The  

l iqu ida to r  when he f i led  h is  repor t ,  obv ious ly  d idn ’ t  have 

the  3M,  the  rev ised …[ ind is t inc t ] ,  the  new CM10 – 100s.    

They were  inc luded a f te r  our  consu l ta t ion  w i th  the  

l iqu ida to r  because we ind ica ted  to  h im the  impor tance o f  

t y ing  up  the  two repor t s ,  the  l iqu ida tor ’s  repor t  and  

…[ ind is t inc t ] .    

Now sect ion ,  page 214.1  i s  the  f i rs t  page o f  the  new 

CM100 in  respect  o f  Ra i lp ro  Ho ld ings.   You see tha t?  

MR SACKS:   Yes Cha i rperson.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Do you know why i t ’s  now ca l led  

Ra i lp ro  Ho ld ings?  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson I  am not  fami l ia r  why Ra i lp ro  

Ho ld ing  or  I  don ’ t  know why i t ’s  ca l led  Ra i lp ro  Ho ld ings.   

I ’ l l  answer  tha t  quest ion  d i rec t l y.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Okay,  you can take  i t  fo r  g ran ted tha t  

re fe rs  to  Swi fambo,  what  was Swi fambo Ho ld ings.    

MR SACKS:   Yes,  and I ,  I  have seen tha t  same back 

account  as  Swi fambo Ho ld ings.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Okay.   Okay.   But  the  name has been 

changed to  Ra i lp ro  Ho ld ings.  

MR SACKS:   Yes,  yes  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now in  regard  to  tha t  CM document ,  

the  CM100 the  da te  o f  tha t  document  i s  the  6 t h  o f  

December  2018.    10 

MR SACKS:   Yes Cha i rperson on page 214.3 .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   R igh t .   Then a t  214.18 is  a  so-ca l led  

rep lacement  CM100.  

MR SACKS:   I  see  tha t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now tha t  was ,  tha t  i s  da ted  and you ’ l l  

see  i t  on  page 214.20 tha t  i s  da ted  the  13 t h  o f  Ju ly.  

MR SACKS:   Tha t ’s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now i t  i s  th is  tha t  –  I  don ’ t  wan t  to  go  

too  much in to  Ra i lp ro  Ho ld ings,  bu t  except  in  no te  2  wh ich 

appears  a t  214.35.   Sor ry,  can I  jus t  ask  you in  respect  o f  20 

no tes  to  CM are  you fami l ia r  w i th  tha t  o r  wou ld  I  o r  shou ld  

I  ra ther  leave i t?  

MR SACKS:   No,  I ’m  not  fami l ia r  w i th  i t .   Okay I  w i l l  say  to  

me in  my v iew i t  i s  jus t  add i t iona l  in fo rmat ion  tha t  is  be ing  

prov ided.   
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ADV VAS SONI SC:   But  what  is  sa id there is  a t  a l l  mater ia l  

t imes,  Hold ings was a non- t rad ing ent i ty.   Two,  at  a l l  

mater ia l  t imes Hold ings permi t ted leasing to  deposi t  

amounts in to i ts  account  on the basis where such amount  

where the proper ty  of  Swi fambo Rai l  Leasing and fo r  

reasons that  a re  unclear,  Hold ings entered in to cont racts 

wi th  cer ta in  serv ice providers inc lud ing i ts  audi tors  on the 

basis and understanding that  a l l  l iab i l i t ies therefore,  a l l  

l iab i l i t ies ar is ing there f rom were payable by and or  wi th  the 

account  of  Leasing,  and Hold ings accord ingly i s  ent i t led to  10 

recovery f rom,  I  mean Leasing is  ent i t led to ,  Hold ings is  

ent i t led to  recovery f rom Leasing.   

MR SACKS:   I  see that  Chai rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   That  is  what ,  I  just  thought  that  I  wi l l  

te l l  you that  that  is  the re la t ionship  that  is  now said to  have 

exis ted between Swi fambo Hold ings and Swi fambo Leasing.  

MR SACKS:   Okay.    

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Now for  present  purposes we need not  

go much fu r ther  then to  say that  on page 214.38 the or ig ina l  

CM100 in  respect  o f  Swi fambo Ra i l  Leasing was f i led and 20 

then i f  you look at  page 214.56 the new CM100 in  respect  o f  

Swi fambo Rai l  Leasing was f i led.  

MR SACKS:   I  see that  Chai rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   And that  i s  da ted about  the same t ime 

as the,  the,  the second CM100 in  respect  o f  Hold ings.   
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MR SACKS:   That  is  cor rect  Chai rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Now I  just  so that  we a l l  know what  we 

are looking at ,  I  want  to  ask you i f  you could just  p lease 

turn to  note 1,  which appears at  214.70.   Oh sor ry,  before  

you go there.   Can I  just  ask you to  look at  page 214.63 and 

214.64.   This l is ts  the credi tors of  Leasing.   Would  that  be 

correct?  214.63.    

MR SACKS:   214.63 yes,  because debts due to the 

company,  so i t  is  assets.   

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Yes.   10 

MR SACKS:   Debtors.    

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Sor ry,  the . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SACKS:   Debtors.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Debtors of  leasing.  

MR SACKS:   That  is  cor rect  Chai rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Now in  respect  o f  each of  them,  there  

is  sa id to  be a note.   

MR SACKS:   That  is  cor rect  Chai rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   I  want  you to  look at  page,  a t  note 1  

which appears at  page 214.70,  because th is  deals wi th  what  20 

Mr Mashaba now says or  is  the  basis on which Leasing has 

c la ims against  the var ious debtors that  are ref lected in  

those pages I  have refer red you to ,  and i f  I  could just  

qu ick ly  go through,  I  just  want  to  . . .  he says on the 6 t h  o f  

December Oswald Mashaba purpor ted to  s ign,  purpor ted to  
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s ign a CM100 statement  of  a ffa i rs  and then in  the  second 

paragraph he says AM has been advanced by at torney 

Cameron that  Oswald Mashaba has been advised by Mr  

Cameron a course to  prepare a new statement  in  order  to  

comply wi th  the sect ions of  366 o f  the Company’s Act  and 

he has engaged the previous audi tors of  leasing to  per fo rm 

a forensic audi t  and he says th is  is  the outcome of  the 

audi t .   

MR SACKS:   I  see that  Chai rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Okay.   Then can I  ask you to  go to  10 

page 214.108.    

CHAIRPERSON:   P lease just  repeat  the page Mr Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   214.108 Chai rperson.   So i f  you could  

keep your  f inger  on page 214.63 whi le  we are looking at  

th is ,  because you wi l l  see that  note 19 refers to  i t s  c la im or  

i ts  a l leged c la im against  PRASA and you wi l l  see that  a t  the  

top of  page 214.64.    

MR SACKS:   I  see that  Chai rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   A l r ight .   Now he says at  paragraph 3,  

and remember you have ind icated the amounts that  Leasing 20 

and Hold ings have received f rom PRASA.   He has ind icated 

the l ink between Leasing and Hold ing.   Now in  paragraph 3  

he says:  

 “Oswald Mashaba has been advised that  the 

sum of  a  109 mi l l ion rand remains to  be 
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recovered by Leasing f rom PRASA and ought  

not  to  be offset  against  any c la im that  PRASA 

may have against  Leasing. ”  

MR SACKS:   I  see that  Chai rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   What  i s  your  react ion?  I  mean i t  is  not  

for  you to ,  I  am not  asking you to  comment  but  just  looking 

at  the f low of  funds as you have out l ined and as you say is  

more or  less conf i rmed by the l iqu idators repor t  on the  

same issue,  what  is  your  react ion to  that?   

MR SACKS:   Chai rperson,  th is  i s  a  c la im regard ing 10 

payments that  Mashaba said that  Swi fambo paid to  S ibenza.   

Other  than conf i rming the bank records of  Swi fambo in  my 

analys is  that  S ibenza received 99 mi l l ion rand.   Mashaba 

purpor ts  o r  c la ims to have provided support ing  

documentat ion for  those payments.   I f  you recal l  

Chai rperson,  the  cont ract  between Swi fambo and PRASA 

says the costs o f  sh ipping and fa l l ing is  for  the cost  o f  

PRASA.   So other  than th is  paragraph 3 conf i rms that  

Swi fambo made some payments  to  S ibenza that  i s  c la iming 

f rom PRASA.    20 

ADV VAS SONI SC:   But  he goes fur ther  and he says 

PRASA must  pay th is  before i ts  c la im against  Swi fambo can 

be determined.    

MR SACKS:   Chai rperson,  based on what  I  see in  my 

repor ts ,  these are Mashaba’s c la ims.   I  do not  know i f  
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credence could be g iven to  h is  c la ims,  based on h is  other  

c la ims conta ined in  th is  document  which I  have read.   I t  is ,  I  

understand where counsel ,  what  counsel  i s  asking but  i t  

needs to  be seen in  context  o f  the  b igger  p ic ture.   I  th ink  

s imply put  he is  saying that ,  Mashaba is  saying that  wel l  

Swi fambo made payments  to  S ibenza and those payments  

must  be paid,  Swi fambo must  be re imbursed by PRASA.   I  

am not  sure on the legal i t ies of  whose c la im supersedes 

whose,  but  that  is  how I  read th is  document .   

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Maybe the l iqu idator  because he is  the 10 

person who is  looking af ter  PRASA’s in te rests,  wi l l  deal  wi th  

that .    

MR SACKS:   U l t imate ly  Chai rperson,  that  i s  a  point  that  you 

so  put  as  to  what  was the,  fo r  13 locomot ives a 100 mi l l ion  

rand.   How much money was PRASA paying to  br ing one 

locomot ive in to South Af r i ca.   Here is ,  which was not  

avai lab le to  me at  the t ime before my analys is ,  here is  

in ternal  documentat ion f rom Swi fambo that  ta lks to  these 

payments  and th is  would  be a  sta r t ing point  for  an 

invest igat ion to  say here is  Sabena’s purpor ted tax invoices 20 

as provided by Mashaba in  h is  a ff idavi t .   That  wi l l  be my 

f i rs t  po int  o f  invest igat ion.   Let  us go analyse th is  

documentat ion which mysel f ,  perhaps the l iqu idator  has,  

which the l iqu idator  would in  the ord inary cause of  

assessing c la ims,  th is  documentat ion would be invest igated  
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fur ther.    

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Then can I  ask you to  look at  note 22,  

and keeping an eye on what  22 refers to ,  th is  re fers  to  the 

c la im of  Mr Mabunda.   

MR SACKS:   On page 241.130? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Sor ry,  ja .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI SC:   And I  am saying that  is  conf i rmed by  

the fact  that  a t  page 214.64 . . . [ in tervenes]   10 

MR SACKS:   Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI SC:   He f lags i t  as note 22.   

MR SACKS:   Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Now what  does he say about  th is  

c la im?  Can you read that ,  Mr Mabunda’s c la im p lease?   

MR SACKS:   Chai rperson,  what  Mr Mashaba says about  

payments  in  the  amount  of  28.8 mi l l ion rand that  i s  re f lected  

on the schedule on 214.64,  sorry.    

ADV VAS SONI SC:   No,  no,  no tha t  is  page,  i t  is  214.130.  

MR SACKS:   130.   So wi th  reference to those payments,  20 

Swi fambo made or  Mr Mashaba c la ims that  Swi fambo made 

payments of  28.8 mi l l ion rand to  Mr Mabunda and in  

Mashaba’s v iew on note 22 he stated:  

 “Mr M Mabunda,  a l though having o ffered advice 

and having made avai lab le  consul tancy 
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serv ices th rough a number of  ent i t ies forming 

par t  o f  the S group,  was never  employed by 

Leasing and accord ingly i t  is  not  understood 

apparent  as to  why he received var ious 

amounts and in  aggregates in  the amount  in  the 

excess of  20 mi l l ion rand.   By v i r tue of  the  

aforegoing i t  is  contended that  Mr MM being Mr 

Mabunda is  indebted to  leasing unless Mr  

Mabunda is  ab le to  furn ish in format ion and or  

documentat ion ind icat ing the legal  basis upon 10 

which he received var ious amounts f rom 

Leasing. ”  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Now when you were ident i fy ing the  

ent i t ies f rom which Mr Mabunda had received money,  the 

Swi fambo ent i ty,  i t  is  qu i te  c lear  that  a l l  that  money came 

f rom Swi fambo ent i ty,  is  that  cor rec t?   

MR SACKS:   That  is  cor rect  Chai rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   And those ent i t ies were effect i ve ly  

under the cont ro l  o f  Mr Mashaba.  

MR SACKS:   Chai rperson,  Mr Mashaba does not  s tate,  he 20 

just  g ives a to ta l  amount ,  whereas in  my repor t  I  deta i led  

which payments make up the amounts that  I  categor ize as a 

Mashaba payment ,  l inked payment  o r  Mabunda l inked 

payment .   In  th is  instance Mr Mashaba just  throws the  

number out .   To answer counsel ’s  quest ion,  [ ind is t inct  
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00:13:06]  nonsensica l  is  Mr Mashaba c la ims to be the  

managing d i rector  o f  a  company,  now he is  s tat ing I  do not  

understand why he received 28 mi l l ion rand.   This makes no 

sense.   

ADV VAS SONI SC:   A l though the companies tha t  made 

those,  I  am the managing d i rector  o f  the companies that  

made them?   

MR SACKS:   Yes Chai rperson.   

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Then can I  ask you to  look at  note 25  

which appears at  214.133.   This is  the payments made to Mr 10 

S ibelo and other  people and perhaps what  I  should ask  you 

to  look at ,  is  page 214.135 which is  the next  page where he 

schedules these c la ims.   You see that?   

MR SACKS:   I  see that  Chai rperson.   

ADV VAS SONI SC:   I  am just  t ry ing to  present  the context .  

MR SACKS:   Yes.    

ADV VAS SONI SC:   So i f  you could te l l  the Cha i rperson 

what  he a l leges th is  c la im against  these ind iv iduals is  for?     

MR SACKS:   I t ,  in  summary . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV VAS SONI SC:   No,  no,  no i t  i s  important  that  we know 20 

what  i t  means.    

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  I  wi l l  s tar t  a t  the back and work  

my way,  I  wi l l  work my way back.   So on page 214.134 

Mashaba contends:  

“By v i r tue of  the  aforegoing the donat ions by  
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Leasing for  the  benef i t  o f  the  ANC never 

reached the ANC and MG being Mar ia Gomez 

and GS being George Shabeza have unlawfu l l y 

received and reta ined the sum of  79.4 mi l l ion 

rand and accord ingly these amounts are 

refundable to  Leasing. ”  

So i f  we,  in  essence what  Mr Mashaba is  

a l leg ing,  is  that  Leasing,  Swi fambo Rai l  Leasing made 

payments in  the  amount  of  as shown on page 214.135,  

made payments to  or  the schedule,  he ca l l s  a  schedule of  10 

donat ions to  ANC.   He l i s ts  payments paid  to  Nkosa Sabelo 

Incorporated,  NCI ,  NCI  paying in to  t rust  accounts o f  Noels  

and f ive payments to  S imi lex which I  am assuming he has 

not  to ta l led i t  up  on h is  schedule ,  which I  am assuming 

adds up to  79.4 mi l l ion rand,  saying Swi fambo made these 

payments,  but  there is  no,  there  is  no rat ional  for  these 

payments,  even though i t  i s  h is  company and they must  be  

recovered f rom the rec ip ients being Mar ia  Gomez and 

George Sabelo,  an amount  of  88 mi l l ion rand.   

ADV VAS SONI SC:   In  the context  o f  why he says these 20 

payments were made,  i t  i s  s t r i c t ly  speaking in t imate ly  

connected wi th  the award of  the cont ract .   That  i s  why I  

wanted you to  read f rom paragraph 1.    

MR SACKS:   Okay,  sorry.   Excuse me counsel ,  so I  wi l l  read 

f rom paragraph 1,  note 25:  
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 “Short l y  a f ter  leasing was awarded,  the 

locomot ive tender by PRASA Mr Mashaba and 

Mr Mabunda were approached by two 

ind iv iduals who held themselves out  to  be  

fundra isers for  the Af r ican Nat iona l  Congress,  

ANC.   The two persons referred to  in  one,  were 

Mrs Mar ia  Gomez who is  MG,  an at torney 

George Sabelo,  a t  that  s tage a par tner  

shareholder  in  a  legal  f i rm by  the name of  

Nkosi  Sabelo and i t  is  GS,  George Sabelo. ”  10 

ADV VAS SONI SC:   I f  you could just  s top there.   He says 

here that  th is  was af te r  the award of  the tender,  you 

remember that?  I  mean you note that?  

MR SACKS:   Yes,  I  see that  Chai rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Now I  do  not  need to go to  th is ,  but  

you wi l l  recal l  that  in  h is  aff idavi t  rep ly ing aff idavi t  in  the  

Swi fambo mat te r,  Mr Molefe had sa id that  Mr Mabunda had 

approached Mr Mashaba and asked h im to  be the f ront  o f  

the tender that  was,  that  s t i l l  had not  been issued.   You 

recal l  that?   20 

MR SACKS:   I  recal l  that  Chai rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Yes,  okay.   I  just  wanted to  make the  

point  that  th is  is  inconsistent  w i th  what  he sa id to  Mr 

Molefe.   

MR SACKS:   That  is  cor rect  Cha i rperson.   I  w i l l  carry on  
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reading,  paragraph 3 of  page 214.133:  

 “Under p ressure  f rom Gomez and Sabelo,  

Mashaba on behal f  o f  leasing  agreed to 

ar range fo r  a  donat ion to  the ANC of  an amount  

equal  to  88 mi l l ion rand and which would be 

deal t  wi th  as fo l lows.   Mashaba would receive a  

handl ing fee in  the region of  e ight  mi l l ion rand 

and the balance in  the sum of  80  mi l l ion rand 

wi l l  be paid as and when d i rected by Gomez 

and Sabelo.   A t  that  s tage i t  was ind icated to  10 

Mashaba that  a  company owned by Sabelo,  

be ing s imi la r  to  Pty Ltd wou ld generate 

invoices to  Leasing.   Ar is ing  f rom the 

aforegoing,  payments were effected to  Gomez 

and Sabelo and in  aggregate the  amounts of  

79.4 mi l l ion rand as ind icated in  the schedule  

which is  annexed hereto as Annexure A.   A t  the 

Sect ion 417 inqui ry  Sabelo test i f ied that  he has 

never  been paid a fundra iser  for  ANC,  and the 

only par t  that  he and MS played in  Leasing was 20 

to  co l lect  amounts invoiced by  S imi lex to  

Leasing and where af ter  he d ispersed amount  

received,  presumably in to the t rus t  account  of  

MS as d i rected by Mar ia  Gomez.   By v i r tue of  

the aforegoing,  the donat ions by Leasing to  the  
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benef i t  o f  the ANC never  reached the ANC and 

Gomez and Sabelo have unlawfu l ly  received 

and reta ined the sum of  79.4 mi l l i on rand,  and 

accord ingly these amounts are refundable to  

Leasing. ”    

ADV VAS SONI SC:   That  is  h is  c la im now in  respect  o f  a l l  

those amounts,  because you wi l l  see that  the amounts paid 

we know Nkosi  Sabelo and S imi lex are a l l  inc luded in  th is 

to ta l  amount .    

MR SACKS:   That  is  cor rect  Chai rperson.  10 

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Just  one th ing I  thought  may be worth 

point ing out ,  and that  he  had agreed to  pay 80 mi l l ion rand,  

th is  i s  Mr Mashaba,  but  he was going to  charge a handl ing 

fee.   I f  you look a t  paragraph 3.   

MR SACKS:   Yes,  I  see that  Chai rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   And so the amount  that  was going to  

go to  the ANC was 80 mi l l ion rand.   His  handl ing  fee was 

going to  be e igh t  mi l l ion rand.   Do you know where that  

e ight  mi l l ion rand was going to  come f rom?   

MR SACKS:   The e ight  mi l l ion rand came f rom PRASA,  20 

Chai rperson.    

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Then can I  ask you to  p lease look at  

note 32 on page 214.149.   Now th is  here refers to  i f  you go 

back,  you do not  need to but  i t  re fers to  the payment  made 

to the S group or  Mr Mabunda by Swi fambo,  I  mean by 
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Vossloh.   I t  is  the  75 mi l l ion rand we were ta lk ing about .  

MR SACKS:   That  is  cor rect  Chai rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   What  does he say about  that?  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  i f  I  may read f rom th is  page,  that  

214.149,  note 32.   Paragraph 1:  

 “Subsequent  to  leasing concluding a 

subcont ract  agreement  wi th  Voss loh for  the 

sa le of  70 locomot ives,  and wi thout  the  

knowledge of  Leasing and i ts  consent ,  Vossloh 

paid to  Mr Mabunda S Group an amount  of  10 

approximate ly  75  mi l l ion rand.   I t  is  Mashaba’s 

content ion that  th is  amount  should have been 

paid by Vossloh to  Leasing as some form of  

rebate and accord ing to  Leasing  l iqu idators 

need to recover  th is  amount  f rom Mabunda,  the  

S group.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   So th is  money he now wants the 

l iqu idators to  recover  f rom Mabunda as he wanted the  

ear l ie r  amount  that  Swi fambo had paid to  Mr Mabunda.  

MR SACKS:   Chai rperson,  in  my mind,  th is  is  Mashaba’s  20 

content ion,  h is  v iew but  the audi t  conf i rms to me that  

Mabunda received the 75  mi l l ion  rand.   The commercia l  

ra t ional  as Mashaba is  ta lk ing over  here,  or  I  do not  know.   

Any conclus ion can be drawn.    

ADV VAS SONI SC:   But  does that  no re in force the point  
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you made much ear l ie r  that  there  d id  not  seem to  be  any 

commercia l  ra t ional  for  many of  these funds.   

MR SACKS:   That  is  cor rect  Chai rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   A l r ight ,  and then the f ina l  one I  want 

you to  look at  is  note 33 at  page 214.150.   Now th is  you wi l l  

see are payments ,  i f  you look at  page 214.65 th is  re la tes to  

payments made to the S iyaya group.  

MR SACKS:   That  is  cor rect  Chai rperson.   

ADV VAS SONI SC:   And what  does he say about  that?   

MR SACKS:   Read f rom page 214.150,  note 33:  10 

 “From t ime to t ime S iyaya Consul t ing Engineers 

was paid amounts to ta l l ing R7 243 773-00.   

See Annexure A hereto.   Mashaba bears no  

knowledge as to  the reasons for  these 

payments and accord ingly d isputes that  S iyaya 

was ent i t led to  these amounts.   The only 

documents that  have been located in  regard to  

the a l leged serv ices rendered by S iyaya to  

Leasing are annexed hereto.   In  regard to  the  

a l leged scope of  work deta i led in  Annexure B4,  20 

Mashaba d isputes that  the consul t ing serv ices  

ind icated there in,  were ever  rendered by 

S iyaya to  Leasing and accord ingly the 

l iqu idators of  S iyaya one of  them is  Mula who 

is  a  co- l iqu idator  of  Leasing shou ld be ca l led 
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upon to invest iga te whether  h is  serv ices were 

rendered by S iyaya to Leasing.   In  addi t ion to  

the aforegoing,  the Leasing l iqu idators should 

lodge a c la im against  the insolvency estate of  

S iyaya. ”  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   The S iyaya too is  under l iqu ida t ion or  

has a l ready been l iqu idated.   

MR SACKS:   I  have been in formed of  that  Chai rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Wel l ,  he is  ta lk ing about  the  

insolvency.  10 

MR SACKS:   Yes,  yes sorry Chai rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   So what  i s  qu i te  c lear  f rom these,  the 

main payments that  were made to Mr Mabunda and h is  

company,  e i ther  by Swi fambo or  by Vossloh,  he  is ,  Mr 

Mashaba is  saying,  must  be recovered f rom Mr Mabunda.   

MR SACKS:   That  is  what  Mashaba is  c la iming Chai rperson.   

ADV VAS SONI SC:   And he is  a lso saying that  the  money 

that  was paid purpor tedly fo r  the benef i t  o f  the ANC which 

d id not  receive the benef i t  accord ing to  h im,  must  be 

c la imed back f rom those whom he gave the money to,  20 

because he bel ieves i t  was fo r  the  ANC.   

MR SACKS:   I  agree wi th  that  content ion Chai rperson.   

ADV VAS SONI SC:   And again,  come back to  your  repor t .   

As you were going through your  repor t  you sa id but  i t  does 

not  look l i ke they d id anyth ing in  respect  o f  the cont ract  
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that  we see,  the  cont ract  that  PRASA or  the locomot ive 

cont ract ,  ja  and in  respect  o f  what  he says now these are,  

what  i s  your,  how do you fee l  about  what  you have sa id 

ear l ie r?   

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  Mashaba conf i rms that  a l l  these 

amounts d ispersed by Swi fambo were of  no benef i t  a t  the  

very least  to  Swi fambo had no purpose.   He is  even 

c la iming that  he wi l l  be paid back,  even though he was the 

one I  would imag ine as the manag ing d i rector,  i f  no t  made 

the payment ,  approved the payment  but  in  summary these 10 

payments have no commercia l  ra t ional .    

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Chai rperson,  I  see i t  i s  one o ’c lock.   I ,  

that  is  those are the issues I  wanted to  ra ise wi th  Mr  Sacks.   

I  do not  know whether  we,  you have any issues that  you 

want  to  ra ise wi th  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  I  wanted to  make sure  that  i f  

possib le ,  we adjourn for  lunch only  when you are done wi th  

h im.    

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Yes,  yes,  I  am done.   

CHAIRPERSON:   You are done,  ja .   Thank you very much 20 

Mr Sacks for  coming to  assis t  the Commission.   Should the 

need ar ise we wi l l  ask you to  come back,  but  we hope that  

or  you wi l l ,  you may have to come back because you have 

some homework to  do for  us.   So but  some of  the homework 

maybe might  be supplementary af ter  th is  i s  f i led wi th  the  
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Commission wi thout  the need for  you to  come back for  ora l  

ev idence,  but  I  have no doubt  that  we have,  i f  we do need 

you,  you wi l l  avai l  yoursel f .   

MR SACKS:   Thank you Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very much fo r  assis t ing us.   

MR SACKS:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   We are going to  take the lunch 

adjournment  then and then we wi l l  resume at  f i ve past  two.   

We adjourn.    

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 10 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Good a f te rnoon.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Good a f te rnoon Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Aga in .   A re  you ready?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    We a re  ready.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Mr  Mul le r  w i l l  be  our  next  w i tness.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Next  w i tness?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And the  las t  w i tness fo r  today.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Reg is t ra r,  p lease admin i s te r  the  20 

oath .   Thank you Mr  Mul le r  fo r  coming to  ass is t  the  

Commiss ion .  

MR MULLER :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

REGISTRAR:    P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

WITNESS:    [mic  no t  sw i tched  on]   Sor ry.   Johannes  
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Zachar ias  Human Mul le r.   

REGISTRAR:    Do you have any ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

WITNESS:    No.  

REGISTRAR:    Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

WITNESS:    Yes.  

REGISTRAR:    Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence 

you w i l l  g ive ,  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th?    10 

WITNESS :    Yes.  

REGISTRAR :    I f  so ,  p lease ra i se  your  r i gh t  hand and say,  

so  he lp  me God.  

WITNESS:    So  he lp  me God.  

JOHANNES ZACHARIAS HUMAN MULLER :   (d .s .s . )  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.   You may be  seated 

Mr  Mul le r.     

ADV JG CILLIERS SC:    I  am JG Ci l l i e rs  (SC) .   I  am 

appear ing  on  beha l f  o f  the  w i tness ,  the  present  w i tness on  

the  ins t ruc t ions o f  Mr  Schabor t  Potg ie ter  A t to rneys.   My 20 

ins t ruc t ing  a t to rneys are  indeed a lso  present  in  the 

hear ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you Mr  C i l l i e rs .   Yes.  

EXAMINATION BY ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Mr  Mul le r,  you are  

one o f  the  two jo in t  l iqu ida tors  tha t  have been appo in ted  to  
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dea l  w i th  the  es ta te  o f  Swi fambo Ho ld ings and . . .   Oh,  

sor ry.   Swi fambo  Ra i l  and Swi fambo Ho ld ings,  now known 

as. . .  

MR MULLER :    Yes,  in  Swi fambo Ra i l  Leas ing ,  we a re  

th ree  l iqu ida tors .   I t  i s  Av iwe Ndyamara,  Pro fessor  Mand la  

Mat la la  and myse l f .   And in  Ra i lp ro  Ho ld ings i t  i s  Mr  Timco 

and  Av iwe Ndyamara.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t .   But  you a re  one  o f  the  

l iqu ida to rs  invo l ved?  

MR MULLER :    I  have been appo in ted .   I  have been 10 

hand l ing  the  admin is t ra t ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And in  regard  to  bo th  these ent i t ies ,  

a l though you have co - l iqu ida tors ,  you have –  what  i s  the  

s ta te  o f  your  knowledge in  regard  to  the  invest iga t ions  

where  you are  a t  the  moment  and the  repor t s  tha t  have 

been prepared.  

CHAIRPERSON:    As  you answer,  face  th is  s ide  Mr  Mul le r.  

MR MULLER :    Yes.   Commiss ioner,  I  have been in t imate ly  

invo l ved w i th  the  day to  day admin is t ra t ion  in  bo th  en t i t ies .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now you prepared a  repor t  da ted  the 20 

18 t h  o f  February  2020.   I t  is  headed:   Re[or t  to  

S takeho lders .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t  Mr  Commiss ioner.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rperson,  tha t  repor t  appears  a t  

Bund le  3 .1 ,  SS-4 ,  PRASA re ference 160 –  s ta r t ing  a t  page  
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161 Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry.   Wha t  i s  the  page? 161?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  i s  s ta r ts  a t  161.   Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    161,  tha t  i s  where  i t  s ta r ts?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay thank you.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now Mr  Mul le r,  you –  have a  look a t  

the  document  tha t  s ta r ts  a t  page 150 – we l l ,  161 o f  Bund le  

3 .   I s  tha t  the  repor t  you prepared?  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  the  repor t .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And tha t  repor t  ends,  the  repor t  i t se l f  

ends a t  page 171 .  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And whose s ignature  i s  tha t  there  

wh ich  s igns on  beha l f  o f  the  jo in t  l iqu ida tors?  

MR MULLER :    Oh,  tha t  i s  my s ignature .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now you can conf i rm tha t  what  i s  

conta ined in  th is  repor t  i s  t rue  and  cor rec t?  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  so .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now Mr  Sacks,  and you must  be  20 

aware  o f  i t  because you have  been –  you came in  

yesterday as  we l l  and you came in  ear l ie r  today,  no t  wh i le  

he  was tes t i f y ing  bu t  you are  aware .  

MR MULLER :    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    He i s  a  Forens ic  Invest iga tor  who d id  
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invest iga t ions in to  the  a f fa i rs  o f  Swi fambo but  tha t  was 

before  i t  was l iqu ida ted .   A re  you aware  o f  tha t?  

MR MULLER :    I  am aware  o f  tha t ,  yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now can I  ask  you.   D id  you see h is  

repor t ,  the  repor ts  tha t  he  presented to  the  Commiss ion? 

MR MULLER :    No,  I  have not  seen i t .   I t  on ly  came to  my  

knowledge very  recent ly.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  I  mean,  you are  aware  o f  the  

repor t?  

MR MULLER :    I  am aware  o f  i t ,  yes .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A re  you aware  o f  the  genera l  

conc lus ions tha t  he  ta lked. . .?  

MR MULLER :    I  am aware  o f  the  genera l . . .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now I  ra ise  tha t  w i th  you Mr  Mul le r  in  

th is  contex t .   Mr  Sacks to ld  the  Cha i rperson tha t  in  2017,  

he  prepared tha t  repor t .   He made a  presenta t ion  to  the 

Hawks on tha t  repor t .   And he le f t  the  repor t  w i th  them on  

the  unders tand ing  tha t  they wou ld  come back and ass i s t  

h im to  f ina l i se  the  repor t .    

I  am jus t  pu t t ing  tha t ,  the  contex t .   He says. . .   20 

Sor ry,  jus t  to  ind ica te  to  the  Cha i rperson verba l l y  t ha t  you 

unders tand tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MULLER :    Yes,  I  unders tand.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now he says in  add i t ion ,  tha t  f rom 

the  t ime he presented h is  repor t  in  2017 up to  now,  a 



25 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 350 
 

Page 101 of 163 
 

per iod  o f  maybe four  years ,  the  Hawks never  came back to  

h im.    

MR MULLER :    [m icrophone not  sw i tched on. ]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  i s  h i s  ev idence,  okay?  I  am jus t  

p lac ing  tha t  on  record .   Now as I  unders tand i t .   

Mr  Mashaba in  a  10 .6  –  or  in  an  a f f idav i t  tha t  he  submi t ted  

to  the  Commiss ion ,  hav ing  been d i rec ted  to  do  so  in  te rms  

o f  10 .6  D i rec t i ve ,  ind ica ted  tha t  you had la id  charges 

aga ins t  h im.   I s  tha t  co r rec t?  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now when were  those charges la id?  

MR MULLER :    In  May 2020.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And cou ld  you jus t  ind ica te  to  the  

p lease tha t :   Look,  I  be l ieve  Mr  Mashaba shou ld  be  

charged w i th  the  fo l low ing o f fences?  Or,  d id  you g i ve  them 

a  se t  o f  documents  tha t  jus t i f ied  why he shou ld  be  

charged?  

MR MULLER :    . . .background,  i t  was a  comprehens ive  

repor t  and a l l  the  f igures  were  de ta i led  in  tha t  repor t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  I  unders tand i t ,  tha t  repor t  was 20 

your  a f f idav i t  and annexed to  tha t  were  a  ser ies  o f  

suppor t ing  documents  conf i rm ing what  –  conf i rm ing why,  in  

your  v iew,  he  shou ld  be  charged.  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And who had prepared tha t  
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Cha i rperson?  I  mean,  Mr  Mul le r.  

MR MULLER :    I  was ass i s ted  by  sen ior  counse l ,  Mr  Jaap  

C i l l i e rs  who prepared the  charge.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now tha t  you  say was in  May 2020.  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    About  e igh t  months  ago.  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    May I  ask  you?  Have you heard  

anyth ing  f rom. . .   Oh,  so r ry.   When d id  you lay  the  charge? 

MR MULLER :    I t  was the  Hawks in  Pre tor ia  a t  the i r  10 

o f f i ces .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Have you heard  f rom them s ince?  

MR MULLER :    Yes,  we had a  fo l low-up.   A f te r  the  charge 

was made,  we had a  fo l low-up meet ing .   I  cannot  reca l l  the  

da te  and then ea r ly  December,  I  v is i ted  the i r  o f f i ces  aga in  

and where  the  –  I  had to  s ign  an  a f f idav i t ,  conta in ing  a l l  

the  ev idence and a l l  the  in fo rmat ion  I  gave them in  May.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  I  am not  unders tand ing  you.   You 

gave them an a f f idav i t  w i th  suppor t ing  documents .  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    In  suppor t  o f  why Mr  Mashaba  shou ld 

be  charged.  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  as  I  –  was i t  on ly  Mr  Mashaba or  

d id  you ask  fo r  o ther  ind iv idua ls  as  we l l?  
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MR MULLER :    Yes-no,  there  were  o ther  ind iv idua ls  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  does not  mat te r.   I  am jus t . . .  

MR MULLER :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  you. . .  Now,  you then say you had  

a  meet ing  w i th  them.   How d id  tha t  meet ing  come about?  

MR MULLER :    Cha i r,  i t  was jus t  a  fo l low-up meet ing  to  ge t  

more  in fo rmat ion .   I  was ass i s ted  by  my sen ior  counse l ,  

jus t  to  g ive  them a  more  comprehens ive  background .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Who asked fo r  tha t  meet ing?  10 

MR MULLER :    I t  was on the  request  o f  the  Hawks.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    O f  the  Hawks? 

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    They wanted more  in fo rmat ion  f rom 

you?  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    D id  you g i ve  them tha t  in fo rmat ion?  

MR MULLER :    Yes,  we d id .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then you say there  was a  

meet ing  in  December.  20 

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    What  happened in  December?  

MR MULLER :    In  December. . .   I  th ink  th roughout  they had  

consu l ta t ions  w i th  the  fo rens ic  invest iga tor  tha t  we  

appo in ted  wh ich  was not  Mr  Sacks.   And they compi led  a  
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comprehens ive  a f f idav i t  wh ich  I  then s igned mid-December.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.   And s ince  then,  what  has 

happened?  

MR MULLER :    I  have not  heard  f rom them s ince.  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you s ign  one a f f idav i t  in  December  

or  d id  you s ign  two?  

MR MULLER :    Uhm . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  unders tood you ear l ie r  on  tha t  one,  you  

lodged the  compla in t  w i th  the  Hawks in  May 2020.   I s  tha t  

cor rec t?  10 

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then the  Hawks in i t ia ted  a  meet ing  

tha t  they wanted more  in fo rmat ion  and th is  was in  

December.  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then you  have to ld  me tha t  the  

Hawks were  contac t  w i th  the  fo rens i c  invest iga to r  tha t  you  

had used and the  comprehens ive  a f f idav i t  was prepared.   I  

th ink  you say in  m id-December  i f  I  am not  m is taken.  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  cor rec t .   The las t  a f f idav i t  I  s igned  20 

was in  December.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   So I  jus t  want  to  f ind  ou t  whether  i t  

i s  one a f f idav i t  tha t  you s igned  in  connect ion  w i th  th is  

mat te r  in  December  or  i s  two a f f idav i t s  in  December?  

MR MULLER :    No,  i t  i s  on ly  one a f f idav i t ,  yes .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  on ly  one?  

MR MULLER :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And tha t  a f f idav i t ,  the  Hawks 

ass is ted  in  compi l ing .  

MR MULLER :    Yes,  they used a l l  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  was 

g iven to  us  to . . .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Has anybody f rom the  Nat iona l  

P rosecut ing  Author i t y  contac ted  you in  re la t ion  to  your  

compla in t  o r  your  compla in ts?  10 

MR MULLER :    Not ,  as  fa r  as  I  can  reca l l ,  no .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No,  no ,  no .   E i ther  they d id  or  they 

d id  no t .  

MR MULLER :    No,  they d id  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And between May 2020 and  

December  2020  when the  Hawks asked fo r  more  

in fo rmat ion ,  had  you been in fo rmed who a t  the  Hawks  

wou ld  be  respons ib le  fo r  invest iga t ing  the  mat te r?  

MR MULLER :    We have dea l t  th roughou t  w i th  

Co lone l  Tro l l ip .   There  was regu la r  communica t ion  f rom our  20 

and f rom h is  s ide  to  ge t  more  in fo rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MULLER :    And then the  a f f idav i t  I  s igned was w i th  

Capta in  S imon(? ) .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  in  te rms o f  who the  –  who was 
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in  cha rge o f  the  docket  as  we l l  as  the  invest iga t ion ,  were  

you to ld ,  do  you know,  be tween May 2020 and December?  

MR MULLER :    The person I  communica ted  w i th  was  most ly  

w i th  Co lone l  Tro l l ip .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Tro l l ip?  

MR MULLER :    Tro l l ip .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   You unders tood h im to  be  the  

invest iga t ing  o f f i cer  o r  no t  necessar i l y?  

MR MULLER :    That  was . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    He conducted the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR MULLER :    The communica t ion  we had was w i th  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  you cannot  ident i f y  the  person 

who was an ove ra l l  con t ro l  o f  the  invest iga t ion  f rom the  

Hawks in  Pre tor ia?  

MR MULLER :    No,  I  cannot .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now you sa id  tha t  in  December,  they 

compi led  a  second a f f idav i t  wh ich  inc luded mat te rs  tha t  

had been looked  a t  by  a  fo rens i c  invest iga to r  tha t  the 

l iqu ida to rs  have appo in ted .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  20 

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now in  regard  to  the  commiss ion ing  

o f  a  fo rens ic  invest iga to r.   How d id  tha t  come about?  

MR MULLER :    We had to  -  in  our  invest iga t ion  we found  

tha t  as  a  l iqu ida tor  you are  on ly  have,  you know,  l im i ted  
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resources and you have access to  documenta t ion  bu t  to  

have tha t ,  somebody had to  go  th rough i t  in  de ta i l .   A lso 

crea te  the  f low o f  funds fo r  us  to  have a  condensed vers ion  

on  wh ich  we can make dec i s ions go ing  fo rward .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now you have ind ica ted  to  me and I  

am jus t  p lac ing  i t  on  reco rd  so  we know what  concerns you  

have.   That  a t  p resent ,  and i t  has  been ongo ing  fo r  some 

t ime now.   There  is  ongo ing  l i t iga t ion  be tween the  

l iqu ida to rs  and Mr  Mashaba and o ther  pe rsons invested  in  

the  Swi fambo l iqu ida t ion .  10 

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    One  o f  those persons is  

Mr  Landgrebe.  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    He is  an  aud i to r  fo r,  I  th ink ,  

Swi fambo Ra i l .  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now as a  resu l t  –  and I  unders tand  

there  was go ing  to  be  an  inqu i ry  today in  re la t ion  to  the  

Swi fambo mat te r.  20 

MR MULLER :    Inqu i r ies  has been ongo ing  in  the  –  we 

have had var ious,  severa l  inqu i r i es  in  th is  mat te r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    One –  bu t  one o f  the  hear ings was 

today.  

MR MULLER :    There  was a  hear ing  th is  morn ing ,  yes .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    One o f  the  mat te rs  tha t  were  ra i sed 

is  tha t  you –  tha t  l iqu ida to r  shou ld  accuse them.  

MR MULLER :    No,  i t  was asked tha t  the  Commiss ioner  in  

te rms o f  Sect ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Oh,  sor ry  the  Commiss ioner.  

MR MULLER :    Ac t . . .   Ja  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Oh,  sor ry.   I  am . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MULLER :    . . .be fore  the  Commiss ion  can re fuse i t .  

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lea r. ]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  in  separa te  app l i ca t ions,  10 

Mr  Mashaba has  a lso  asked tha t  you be –  your  f i rm be 

removed as  the  l iqu ida to r.  

MR MULLER :    Ja .   I  am appo in ted  in  my pe rsona l  capac i ty  

bu t  he  has asked us  fo r  the  remova l  o f . . .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  you have ind ica ted  to  me tha t ,  

hav ing  regard  to  the  ambi t  on  mat te rs  tha t  I  shou ld  ask  you  

quest ions,  you wou ld  p re fe r  tha t  I  s t i ck  main l y  to  the  

repor t .  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  i s  jus t  as  though not  to  g ive  fue l  20 

to  e i ther  the  c iv i l  l i t i ga t ion  or  g ive  them fue l  to  f igh t  you in  

regard  to  the  c iv i l  l i t i ga t ion  or  in  regard  to  cha l leng ing  your  

au thor i t y  and o ther  mat te rs  re la t ing  to  the  l iqu ida t ion  i t se l f .  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.   Now I  am go ing  to  do  tha t  and 
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I  have g i ven you and your  counse l  tha t  assu rance.   I  want  

to  concent ra te  main ly  on  the  main  f ind ings you made in  

regard  to  who were  the  benef ic ia r ies  o f  the  funds  f low ing 

f rom Swi fambo.  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And I  w i l l  j us t  te l l  you ,  and  I  have 

a l ready ind i ca ted  to  you tha t  what  I  found in t r igu ing  about  

th is  mat te r  i s .   When the  l iqu ida t ion  app l i ca t ion  –  and i t  

was Swi fambo wh ich  brought  the  app l i ca t ion  to  l iqu ida te  

i t se l f  about  the  Swi fambo ent i t ies .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  10 

MR MULLER :    I t  was a  vo lun ta r i l y  l iqu ida t ion  by  way o f  a  

reso lu t ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.   And Mr  Mashaba  on tha t  

occas ion  s igned a  CM 100 in  regard  to  bo th  Swi fambo Ra i l  

and Swi fambo Ho ld ings.  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    You then submi t ted  th is  repor t  on  the  

18 t h  o f  February  2020.  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    You have s ince  rece ived a  new CM 20 

100 in  respect  Swi fambo Ra i l  and  a  new CM 100 in  respect  

o f  Swi fambo Ho ld ings.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now jus t  to  ge t  one smal l  ma t te r  ou t  

o f  the  way.   We ta lk  about  Swi fambo Ho ld ings bu t  i t  i s  now 
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ca l led  Ra i lp ro  Ho ld ings.   I s  tha t  no t . . .  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So when the  documents  in  the  CM 

100 ’s  and so  on ,  a re  re fer red  to  the  en t i t ies ,  they  – the  

mat te r  in  regard  to  what  was Swi fambo Ho ld ings is  now 

Ra i lp ro  Ho ld ings.   And the  mat te r  in  regard  to  Sw i fambo 

Ra i l  i s  s t i l l  Swi fambo Ra i l .  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now jus t  to  ge t  another  mat te r  ou t  o f  

the  way qu i te  qu i ck ly.   I f  you  look  a t  page 16. . .   Oh,  page  10 

167 in  the  bund le  in  wh ich  your  repor t  i s  conta ined,  the  

one on the  r igh t -hand s ide .   You w i l l  see . . .   Wel l  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you say one ,  s ix ,  seven?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    One,  s i x ,  seven.   Yes,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Yes,  you may cont inue.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease Cha i r.   Now i f  you look  

a t  page 167.   I t  i s  a  cont inuat ion  o f  what  was s ta r ted  on  

page 166 wh ich  dea ls  w i th  the  lega l  p roceed ings.   And then  

the  second se t  o f  i tems you record  there  is  the  inqu i ry.   20 

And you i temise  the  da tes  on  wh ich  the  inqu i ry  took  p lace.   

What  inqu i ry  was tha t?  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  an  inqu i ry  i n  te rms o f  Sect ion  41 .   I t  

i s  a  secre t  inqu i ry  in  te rms o f  Sec t ion  417 and 418  o f  the 

Companies  Act  in to  the  a f fa i rs  o f  Swi fambo Ra i l  Leas ing  
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and Ra i lp ro .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now I  see tha t ,  i f  you  look he re ,  

there  were  severa l  peop le  ca l led  whose names are  

ment ioned as  peop le  who rece ived money f rom Swi fambo.   

One o f  them is  Mr  Mashaba.   The o ther  i s  Mr  Sabe lo .   The 

o ther  i s  Mr  Mabunda.   And towards the  bo t tom is  T Makonz i  

Mashe le .   On  the  24 t h ,  the  second name on the  

24 t h  o f  February  2020.  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    When in  regard  to  the  leve l  o r  lack  o f  10 

coopera t ion ,  w i l l  you  jus t  te l l  us  what  was Mr  Mashaba ’s  

a t t i tude in  regard  to  coopera t ing  a t  the  inqu i ry?  

MR MULLER :    We d id  no t  rece ive  no  coopera t ion  f rom 

Mr  Mashaba a t  a l l .   He appeared once.   The second t ime,  

he  came wi th  sen ior  counse l  and  ins is ted  on  a  Shangaan  

t rans la to r.   And then the  th i rd  t ime he came was w i th  h is  

cur ren t  a t to rney where  he  s ta te  tha t  he  d id  no t  recogn ise  

the  proceed ings and he d id  no t  recogn ise  –  you know,  he  

was not  p repared  to . . .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Wel l ,  eve rybody I  suppose  has an 20 

oppor tun i ty  to  make the i r  own law Cha i rperson.   [ laughs]   

They recogn ise  what  they want .    

CHAIRPERSON:    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    We are  smi l ing  because tha t  i s  

exact ly  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    I t  looks  l i ke  i t  does tha t  w i th  recogn is ing  

and then the  recogn i t ion  ge ts  w i thdrawn la te r  on  because 

w i th  the  Commiss ion  too  he  rece ived Regu la t ion  10 .6  

D i rec t i ve .   He compl ied  and f i led  an  a f f idav i t .   But  i t  was  

on ly  a f te r  he  had rece ived a  summons tha t  he  se ized to  

recogn ise  processes coming f rom the  Commiss ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now a lso ,  you po in t  ou t  tha t  then –  

then Whee ls  So lu t ion  is  under  l iqu ida t ion .  10 

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    o r  has been l iqu ida ted .  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t .   Then a t  6 .8 ,  you say tha t  

you have brought  an  app l i ca t ion  to  conf i rm ju r isd ic t ion  

aga ins t  Ms Gomes.   Th i s  i s  Mar ia  Gomes.   Would  tha t  be  

cor rec t?  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And what  was the  purpose -or  what  

d id  you want  ju r i sd i c t ion  in  respect  o f  he r  to  be  conf i rmed 20 

fo r?  

MR MULLER :    To  ac tua l l y  was –  she is  a  debtor  o f  

Swi fambo fo r  money she rece ived  and we conf i rmed tha t  

the  ju r isd ic t ion  to  a t tach  he r  house .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And you put  a  f igure  o f  
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R  40  140 000,00 on tha t .   

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I s  tha t  what  the  house is  va lued a t?  

MR MULLER :    No,  I  do  no t  know what  the  house is  va lued.   

I  th ink  i t  i s  in  the  reg ion  o f  R 12 mi l l ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Oh,  I  see.   So but  your  c la im aga ins t  

her  i s  fo r  R 40 mi l l ion?  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.   And you needed ju r i sd i c t ion  

conf i rmed aga ins t  her  because she is  a  non-South  A f r i can.   10 

She is  Peregr ine ’s  in  te rms o f  law.  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  how I  unders tand i t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t .   So I  have got  ou t  o f  the  

issues tha t  in  a  sense o f  per iphera l  to  the  mat te rs ,  I  want  

to  ask  you about  Mr  Mul le r.   And i f  I  can  ask  you to  look a t  

parag raph 5  on  page 162 o f  the  bund le?  

MR MULLER :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now you say f rom the  in fo rmat ion  

ob ta ined a  f low o f  funds can be summar ised as  fo l lows,  at  

parag raph 5 .   Do you see tha t?  20 

MR MULLER :    Yes,  I  see.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now I  jus t  want  to  ask  you.   I s  tha t  

a f te r  the  fo rens ic  invest iga tor  whom you appo in ted  had  

done a  fo rens ic  invest iga t ion  o f  the  f low o f  funds?  

MR MULLER :    I  th ink  th is  was –  the  f low o f  funds,  the  
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bas ic  f low o f  funds was done by  ou r  lega l  team and myse l f .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And when he d id  h i s  invest iga t ion ,  

d id  he  conf i rm . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MULLER :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    . . . to  a  la rge  ex ten t  what  was 

conta ined . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MULLER :    The f igures  as  conta ined in  the  repor t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR MULLER :    . . .has  been conf i rmed,  yes .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  I  ask  Mr  Sacks,  hav ing  –  he  

hav ing  done h i s  own f low o f  funds invest iga t ion  and he 

says he  came to  more  or  less  the  same conc lus ion  as  you 

do in  your  repor t  o r  you  came to  the  same conc lus ion  as  he  

d id .   And I  jus t  say  th is  because h is  repor t  i s  the  ear l ie r  o f  

a l l  the  repor ts .  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now in  regard  to  the  fo rens ic  

invest iga to r.   Were  you aware  a t  the  t ime you  

commiss ioned the  fo rens ic  invest iga tor  tha t  the  Hawks had  20 

asked Mr  Sacks to  compi le  a  repor t  fo r  them based on a  

c r im ina l  compla in t  la id  aga ins t  ind iv idua ls  connected w i th  

Swi fambo.  

MR MULLER :    I  was not  aware  o f  i t  a t  a l l .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And between the  t ime you h i red  the  
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fo rens ic  i nvest iga tor  and the  t ime  he produced h i s  repor t ,  

what  was the  t ime per iod?  

MR MULLER :    I t  must  c lose  on a  year  o r  go ing  fo r  a  year.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And I  do  no t  want  to  know f igures  

because i t  i s  no t  r igh t  to  a i r  in  th is  pub l i c ,  you per fo rming  

a  pub l i c  funct ion .   Was i t  a  repor t  tha t  cos t  a  fa i r  amount  o f  

money?  

MR MULLER :    I t  cos t  a  lo t  o f  money because a l l  the 

de ta i l .   We wou ld  have saved a  lo t  o f  t ime i f  we had  known 

about  the  Sacks repor t .   That  wou ld  have been a  ve ry  qu ick  10 

bas is  fo r  what  we  were  a f te r.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And a t  the  t ime,  you handed your  

a f f idav i t  to  the  Hawks and the reaf te r,  they  asked  you to  

inc lude what  was conta ined  in  what  the  fo rens ic  

invest iga to r  had found or  to  inc lude aspects  o f  tha t .   D id  

they te l l  you  tha t :   Look,  bu t  we do  a  fo rens ic  repor t  here .  

MR MULLER :    No,  Cha i r  I  was not  to ld  a t  a l l .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t .   So those are  a l l  the 

pre l im inary  mat te rs . . .   Can I  jus t  ask  you?  As fa r  as  now 

the  mon ies  –  5 .1 .1 ,  you reco rd  tha t  there  are  –  i t  i s  the  two 20 

ent i t ies  tha t  i s  Ra i lp ro  Ho ld ings  and we know tha t  i s  

Swi fambo Ho ld ings.   And Swi fambo Ra i l  Leas ing  rece ived 

d i f fe ren t  amounts  o f  money.    

More  or  less ,  when you looked a t  Ra i lp ro ,  tha t  i s  

Swi fambo Ho ld ings,  how much d id  they rece ive  i f  you  jus t  
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sor t  o f  add up those two f igures?  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  jus t  over  R  900 mi l l ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And there  is  no  need to  emphas ise  

th is  po in t  and there  is  no  need  to  ask  you.   The f i rs t  

amount  was rece ived on the  5 t h  o f  Apr i l  2013.  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  was rece ived by  Ho ld ings .  

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And the  f i rs t  amount  rece ived by  

Leas ing  was the  6 t h  o f  December  2013.  10 

MR MULLER :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    You are  look ing  a t  about  e igh t  

months  la te r.   Now can I  jus t  say  to  you,  and I  do  no t  know 

i f  i t  makes a  d i f fe rence  to  you but  the  cont rac t  be tween  

Swi fambo and PRASA sa id  tha t  a l l  payments  must  be  made  

th rough Leas ing ,  no t  to  Ho ld ing .   I t  d id  no t  say  must  no t  be  

made to  Ho ld ings  bu t  in  te rms o f  the  cont rac t  a l l  payments  

were  to  made to  Swi fambo Leas ing .   Were  you aware  o f  

tha t?  

MR MULLER:    I  was aware  o f  tha t ,  yes .  Voss loh   20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And so  when you look a t  i t  f rom po in t  

o f  v iew o f  a  l iqu ida tor  and I  know th is  t ime i t  w i l l  no t  make  

a  d i f fe rence but  what  –  wou ld  tha t  ra ise  any concerns tha t  

a  R3.5  b i l l i on  cont rac t  requ i res  payment  to  be  made to  

en t i t y  A and the  very  f i rs t  payment  i s  made to  en t i t y  B ,  i t  
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may be a  re la ted  en t i t y.   Wi l l  tha t  ra ise  concerns fo r  you? 

MR MULLER:    Yes,  tha t  w i l l  ra ise  concerns.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And what  i s  the  na ture  o f  those  

concerns?  

MR MULLER:    The ent i t y  tha t  was pa id  was not  a  par t y  to  

the  cont rac t ,  so  yes,  yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  mean,  you cannot  d raw a  l ink  

be tween the  cont rac t  and the  payment .  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Then you  dea l  a t  5 .2 .2  w i th  the  10 

payments  made by  these two ent i t ies .  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now we have been th rough w i th  Mr  

Sacks the  payments  made by  the  en t i t ies  and who were  the  

benef ic ia r i es  o f  those payments .   I  do  no t  wan t  to  go  

th rough a l l  o f  them.   Can I  jus t  ask  you,  when you look a t  

the  f i rs t  name tha t  appears  under  the  payments  l i s t  as 

5 .2 .2 .1 ,  who is  tha t?  

MR MULLER:    I t  i s  Mr  Landgrebe,  he  is  the  aud i to r  o f  bo th  

these compan ies .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And what  was the  amount  he  was  

pa id?  

MR MULLER:    R30 554 000.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And th is  he  was pa id  by  Ho ld ings?  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  tha t  i s  how I… 
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And then there  is  a  payment  to  Mr  

Mashaba.   How much is  tha t?  

MR MULLER:    1 ,68  m i l l ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And then there  you say there  a re  

var ious en t i t ies  cont ro l led  by  Mr  Mashaba.  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now the  to ta l  o f  R146 375 880.16,  

does tha t  inc lude a l l  the  payments  made by  Ho ld ings  

inc lud ing  those to  Mr  Landgrebe and Mr  Mashaba?  

MR MULLER:    Those are  a l l  the  payments  as  per  po in t  10 

5 .2 .2 ,  tha t  wou ld  inc lude Mr  Landgrebe,  Mashaba ,  R igh t  

Wave A im Investments .   Yes,  tha t  wou ld  inc lude.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then on the  next  page,  Ho ld ings –  

you record  tha t  Ho ld ings made a  payment  to  Mr  Makhensa  

Mabunda.   How much was tha t  payment  –  how much was 

pa id  to  h im in  tha t  regard?  

MR MULLER:    22 ,664 mi l l ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And then were  four  en t i t ies  under  the  

cont ro l  o f  Mabunda,  as  you desc r ibe  i t ,  and the  payment ,  I  

take  i t ,  the  to ta l  re f lec t s  the  payment  to  Mr  Mabunda and  20 

compan ies  under  h is  cont ro l .  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  Ho ld ing  made payments  o f  63-odd 

mi l l ion  –  or  more  than R63 mi l l ion  to  Mr  Mabunda and h i s  

en t i t y.  



25 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 350 
 

Page 119 of 163 
 

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Then the  next  one you dea l  w i th  tha t  I  

am in te res ted  in  i s  Musa Cap i ta l .   Do you know where  

Musa Cap i ta l  f i t s  in to?  

MR MULLER:    Rea l ly,  I  have no t  been ab le  to  es tab l i sh  

tha t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Okay.   As  I  unders tood Mr  Sacks ’ 

ev idence i t  was one o f  the  d i rec to rs  o f  Swi fambo – I  am not  

sure  i t  i s  Ho ld ings –  I  th ink  i t  f rom Swi fambo Leas ing  who – 

her  name is  Cynth ia  Par i sh  who was Musa Cap i ta l .  10 

MR MULLER:    As  fa r  as  I  –  yes,  i t  was Mrs  Cynth ia  Par ish  

and a  Mr  Jameson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  he  is  the  present  d i rec tor,  as  I  

unders tand i t .  

MR MULLER:    I t  th ink  they are  bo th  Amer ican c i t i zens.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Thereaf te r  you dea l  w i th  payments  

made under  5 .2 .8 .   Wi l l  you  te l l  the  Cha i rpe rson wha t  those 

are  and who the  rec ip ien ts  were?  

MR MULLER:    Those were  payments  made to  S im i lex ,  

wh ich  is  Mrs  Gomes ’ company and they were  pa id  to  Nkos i  20 

Sebe la  Incorpo ra ted ,  31  m i l l ion ,  and to  Noe ls  Hussa in ,  

10 .4  m i l l i on .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And tha t  R41 400 000 tha t  you –  tha t  

i s  your  c la im aga ins t  Mrs  Gomes.  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  mean,  tha t  is  the  bas is  on  wh ich  you  

sa id  you were  requ i red  to  f ind  ju r isd ic t ion .  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then a t  5 .2 .9  there  is  an  en t i t y  

re f lec ted  there  wh ich  rece ived R500 000.   Wha t  i s  the  

name o f  tha t  en t i t y?  

MR MULLER:    I t  i s  Sanco,  s i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Have you invest iga ted  what  tha t  en t i t y  

i s?  

MR MULLER:    No,  we have not .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And then there  are  o ther  rec ip ien ts  o f  

money f rom Hold ings and they do  not  fea ture  in  anyth ing  

tha t  we have looked a t  o r  Mr  Sacks thought  was unusua l ,  

though he is  no t  say ing  the  payments  were  jus t i f ied .  

MR MULLER:    Ja ,  i t  does requ i re  fu r ther  invest iga t ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    R igh t ,  thereaf te r  a t  5 .2 .3  you dea l  

w i th  payments  made f rom Swi fambo Ra i l  Leas ing .   So th is  

i s  now Leas ing .     

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   We are  go ing  to  ident i f y  the  20 

payments .   The  f i rs t  person you I  ident i f y  there  is  Mr  

Mabunda and tha t  wou ld  mean in  h is  pe rsona l  capac i ty,  

what  amount  wou ld  he  have rece ived?  

MR MULLER:    1 ,23  m i l l ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Okay and then there  were  en t i t ies  
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under  h i s  cont ro l  wh ich  rece ived monies ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now we have come across some o f  

these compan ies  bu t  the  one tha t  I  am in te res ted  in  i s  the 

one tha t  i s  l i s ted  las t  and tha t  i s  5 .2 .3 .2 .6  and  tha t  i s  

S ter l ing  L iv ing .   Do you see tha t?  

MR MULLER:    Yes,  I  see tha t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now,  Mr  Mul le r,  I  jus t  want  to  say tha t  

you have presen ted us  w i th  an  update  to  your  repor t ,  i s  

tha t  cor rec t?  10 

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rman.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   May I  have  leave to  hand up –  i t  i s  

no t  a  very  –  i t  jus t  e f fec t i ve ly  says th is  i s  what  happened 

s ince  February  las t  year  in  re la t ion  to  th is ,  i t  does not  

chance the  p i c tu re  bu t  the  reason i t  i s  impor tan t  in  regard  

to  th is  quest ion  is  re f lec ted  in  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  thank you.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Perhaps –  so r ry,  be fore  I  do  anyth ing  

w i th  th is ,  these notes ,  as  you ca l l  them,  were  comp i led  by  

yourse l f ,  Mr  Mul le r?  20 

MR MULLER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  together  w i th  the  input  f rom 

my lega l  team.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  I  mean you take  respons ib i l i t y  fo r  

them.  

MR MULLER:    Yes,  I  do .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now you conf i rm the i r  cor rec tness to  

the  ex ten t  tha t  you have been ab le  to  invest iga te  and  so  

on .  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Cha i rperson,  I  am jus t  wonder ing  –  

because i t  i s  d i rec t l y  concerned  w i th  the  repor t  i t se l f  

whethe r  we shou ld  no t  inc lude i t  as  an  annexure  to  the  

repor t  a t  the  end o f  the  repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  do  no t  th ink  we can inc lude  as  an  

annexure  to  the  repor t  bu t  I  th ink  what  you mean is  pu t  i t  10 

immedia te ly  a f te r  the  repor t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Immedia te ly  and ca l l  i t  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  wou ld  s t i l l  be  a  s tanda lone document .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  i t  w i l l  be  immedia te l y  a f te r  the  

repor t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  you p lease ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And then i t  w i l l  be  headed Notes  on  

Mat te rs  Ra ised in  the  Repor t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  you p lease,  Cha i rperson .   And i f  

you take  the  numbers ,  171.1  to  5 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now in  regard  to  the  issue o f  S ter l ing  
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L iv ings,  you re fe r  to  th is  mat te r  on  the  las t  page  o f  the 

no tes ,  Mr  Mul le r,  and i t  i s  a t  no te  3 .   You do not  have to  

read there  bu t  w i l l  you  jus t  te l l  the  Cha i rperson why  th is  i s  

s ign i f i can t ,  tha t  th is  amount  was pa id ,  what  i t  was pa id  fo r  

and how you came to  know tha t  i t  i s  connected w i th  Mr  

Mabunda?  

MR MULLER:    S ter l ings  L iv ing ,  when we ins t i tu ted  ac t ion  

aga ins t  Mr  Mabunda,  S ter l ings  L iv ing  in fo rmed us  tha t  they 

conc luded var ious agreements  w i th  Mr  Mabunda in  h is  

persona l  capac i ty.   So i t  was pa id  f rom Swi fambo but  10 

S ter l ings  L iv ing ,  th is  payment  was made fo r  k i t chen 

cupboards in  a  house wh ich  we la te r  es tab l i shed was  

reg i s te red,  a  no tar ia l  deed o f  ex tens ion  o f  a  lease  te rm in  

November  2014.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   The amount  re f lec ted  here  is  R5  

mi l l ion .  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now cor rec t l y  o r  no t ,  S ter l ing  L iv ings  

jus t i f y  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Son i ,  I  thought  I  heard  20 

where  you were  bu t  I  th ink  –  I  thought  you went  to  page 3  

o f  the  no tes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   No,  i t  i s  s t i l l  page 5 ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Page 5  o f  the  no tes?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  o f  the  no tes ,  yes .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   That  i s  where  no te  3  i s  dea l ing  w i th  

S ter l ing  L iv ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on,  I  must  a lso  c la r i f y,  you sa id  the  

f i rs t  page o f  these notes  wou ld  be  171.1?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   171.1 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay and then i t  goes on.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And th is  w i l l  be  171.5 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t ,  so  you are  on  the  las t  

page.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   So e f fec t i ve ly  fo r  the  record ,  

171.5 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Le t  me jus t  ge t  tha t  one.   So the 

proper ty  you were  ta lk ing  about  i s  –  I  th ink  you might  have  

to  jus t  go  back to  tha t  quest ion  about  I  th ink  the  proper ty  

and 5  m i l l ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  you were  say ing ,  Mr  Mul le r,  tha t  

you uncovered th is  payment  qu i te  by  acc ident  because you  

had made a  c la im  aga ins t  Mr  Mabunda and then i t  emerged  

tha t  th is  payment  wh ich  had been  made by  Swi fambo had 20 

been made in  respect  o f  k i t chen cupboards to  h i s  house in  

Water fa l l ,  Equest r ian  Esta te  in  Mid rand,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  me s tar t  -  s ta r t  by  ident i f y ing  the  

payment  you are  ask ing  h im about .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Oh,  sor ry.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Which  payment?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Sor ry,  Cha i rperson,  i f  one goes back  

to  the  repor t  i t se l f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Repor t ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I t  i s  a t  page 163 and i t  i s  a  payment  

tha t  i s  re f lec ted  as  5 .2 .3 .2 .6 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    5 .2 .3 .6?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   No,  .2 .6  Cha i rperson.   These are  

en t i t ies  under  cont ro l  o f  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    5 .2…? 10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   .3 .2 .6 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You know when you have got  so  many 

th ings they go t  confus ing .   I  have  got  5 .2 and then  I  have  

got  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A t  page 163.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh what  i s  the  page number  o f  the 

bund le  f i rs t ,  to  make su re  I  am … 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   163.  

CHAIRPERSON :    163?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   163,  yes .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  r igh t  and the  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And then you w i l l  see  i t  i s  5 .2 .3  as  the  

b ig  number  and i t  says  Payment  f rom Swi fambo Leas ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  can  tha t ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   That  i s  to  Mr  Mabunda.   Then in  the  
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second se t  o f  en t i t ies  i t  i s  the  las t  en t i t y,  S ter l ings  L iv ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  tha t  i s  –  I  thought  tha t  i s  the  las t  

one on the  f i rs t  se t  o f  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   No,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t ,  bu t  tha t  i s  the  one you  

are  ta lk ing  about .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   That  i s  the  one we a re  ta lk ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  i t  i s  a  payment  o f  R5 mi l l ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Pa id  f rom Swi fambo Ra i l  Leas ing  to  10 

S ter l ings  L iv ing .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   That  i s  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  now I  know wh ich  payment  

you are  ask ing  about ,  then you can  cont inue.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   Now you then t ry  to  ident i f y  

what  th is  payment  was fo r  because  i t  had been made by  Mr  

Swi fambo (s i c ) ,  wou ld  tha t  be  cor rec t?  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And i t  i s  in  pursuance o f  tha t  inqu i ry  

tha t  you found out  what  the  R5 mi l l ion  payment  to  S ter l ing  20 

L iv ings was fo r.  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And what  d id  you uncover?  

MR MULLER:    Th i s  payment  was made fo r  k i t chen  

cupboards o f  the  proper t y  o f  Mr  Mabunda in  Water fa l l  
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Equest r ian  Esta te  in  Midrand.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  I  was a  b i t  k ind ,  Cha i rperson,  

when I  sa id  i t  was fo r  the  k i t chen,  i t  was jus t ,  as  I  

unders tand i t ,  fo r  the  cupboards.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .   Ja ,  no ,  no .   Yesterday  I  th ink 

we unders tood tha t  i t  was fo r  the  k i t chen.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   That  i s  what  I  thought .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  even more… 10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now can I  jus t  ask  you,  in  regard  to  –  

and i t  i s  S ter l ing  L iv ings conf i rm tha t  tha t  i s  what  Mr  –  

we l l ,  tha t  i s  what  they had charged and had been pa id  fo r  

in  respect  o f  those cupboards.  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now in  regard  to  tha t  house,  d id  you 

make any enqu i r i es?   I  know i t  i s  a  t rus t  bu t  d id  you make 

any enqu i r ies?  

MR MULLER:    Yes,  we d id ,  Cha i rperson.   We not iced tha t  20 

Mr  Mabunda and h is  w i fe  C indy Mabunda reg i s te red a  

no tar ia l  bond o f  ex tens ion  o f  a  lease te rm on 13 November  

2014 in  te rms o f  the  proper ty.   On the  same day a  no tar ia l  

deed o f  cess ion  o f  the  lease was a lso  –  where in  the  lease  

was ceded to  the  Makhensa Fami ly  Trus t .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And have you been ab le  to  asce r ta in  

what  the  va lue  o f  tha t  house is  o r  what  the  cost  was?  

MR MULLER:    No,  we have heard  numbers  bu t  there  is  

no th ing  I  can conf i rm on the  numbers .   The numbers  we  

heard  was R75 m i l l ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    The house,  the  proper ty  i t se l f ,  i s  i t  

owned by  Mr  Mabunda o r  by  an  ent i t y  cont ro l led  by  h im or  

i s  i t  a  ren ted  house?  

MR MULLER:    Cha i rperson,  no ,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  i t  i s  a  

99  year  lease.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay,  okay.   A l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  in  whose name –  okay,  so  i t  looks  

l i ke  the  lease in  the  name o f  the  Makhensa Fami ly  Trus t  

bu t  who is  the  owner  o f  the  proper t y?  

MR MULLER:    I  do  no t  know.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  what  you do know is  tha t  the  

t rus t  has a  99  year  lease ove r  tha t  p roper ty.  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  assume tha t  tha t  means you have not  

seen the  ac tua l  l ease because o therwise  you wou ld  know 20 

who the  lessor  i s .  

MR MULLER:    I  w i l l  have to  ge t  the  adv i ce  f rom my 

counse l  on  tha t ,  I  persona l ly  have not  seen tha t  lease,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A l r igh t ,  now the  to ta l  amount  tha t  
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were  pa id  by  Swi fambo Leas ing  to  Mr  Mabunda  and h i s  

en t i t ies  i s  how much,  Mr  Mul le r?  

MR MULLER:    R17,552 mi l l ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  Mr  Son i ,  I  am t ry ing  to  make sure  

we a re  on  the  same page.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Page 163.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Where  is  tha t  re f lec ted ,  i s  i t  s t i l l  163?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Then you dea l  w i th  the  payments  tha t  10 

were  made to  en t i t ies  cont ro l led  by  Mr  Mashaba ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And there  you l i s t  f i ve  en t i t ies .   What  

i s  the  amount  pa id  to  them –  tha t  f igure ,  Cha i rperson,  i t  i s  

r igh t  a t  the  bo t tom o f  page 163.  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  22 ,7  m i l l ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And then on the  fo l low ing page ,  page 

164,  who is  the  benef ic ia ry  o f  the  f i rs t  amount  re f lec ted  on 

tha t  page?  20 

MR MULLER:    Mr  Cha i rman,  i t  i s  the  Jacob  Zuma 

Foundat ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And to  what  ex ten t  d id  i t  benef i t?  

MR MULLER:    R150 000.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And then you say these two  se ts  o f  
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payments  need to  be  i nvest iga ted  fu r ther  and they  amount  

to  about  R727 000.  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   R igh t .   Then you say payments  made 

to  AMCE.   Now what  i s  AMCE? 

MR MULLER:    I t  i s  AM Consu l t ing  Eng ineers ,  one o f  Mr  

Mashaba ’s  compan ies .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  these were  payments  tha t  tha t  

en t i t y  made to  d i f fe ren t  peop le .  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And le t  us  look a t  the  b igger  f igures  

there ,  who is  the  f i rs t  ma jor  benef i c ia ry?  

MR MULLER:    I t  i s  Mr  Landgrebe.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And what  i s  the  amount  o f  the  benef i t  

he  rece ived f rom AMCE? 

MR MULLER:    55  m i l l ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now I  jus t  want  to  look  a t  –  i f  I  can  

ask  you,  and I  am sor ry  to  do  th is ,  Cha i rperson,  bu t  there  

is  no  o ther  way to  do  i t ,  to  go  back to  page 162 .   Now 

remember  the re  is  …[ in tervenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    162?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now a t  5 .2 .2  you ident i f ied  who had 

rece ived monies  f rom Rai lP ro  Ho ld ings.   The f i rs t  name in  
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tha t  l i s t  i s  Mr  Landgrebe.  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And the  amount  there  i s  R30 m i l l ion .  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And then you have now to ld  us  tha t  

f rom AMCE he rece ived 55-odd mi l l ion .  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I s  t ha t  now a  separa te  amount  tha t  i s  

pa id  to  h im? 

MR MULLER:    That  i s  a  separa te  amount .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  he has rece ived payments  o f  about  

85  m i l l ion .  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And in te res t ing ly  on  bo th  occas ions  

namely  payments  f rom Rai lP ro  Ho ld ings and payments  f rom 

AMC,  Mr  Landgrebe gets  qu i te  a  b ig  amount  f rom tha t  to  Mr  

Mashaba.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And Mr  Mashaba on each occas ion  gets  

1 ,  someth ing  mi l l ion .   Mr  Landgrebe gets  many more  20 

mi l l ions  than tha t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  had not  seen tha t  and you a re  

abso lu te l y  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  have not  see i t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And you are  qu i te  r igh t .   A l r igh t ,  then 

we have the  en t i t ies  who rece ived benef i t s  f rom – oh  sor ry,  

en t i t ies  under  the  cont ro l  o f  Mr  Mashaba who rece ived  

benef i t s  and wha t  i s  the  to ta l  amount  o f  benef i t s  tha t  they  

rece ived?  

MR MULLER:    16 ,6  m i l l ion ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Then you have got  S iyaya Ra i l  and 

you say tha t  i s  assoc ia ted  w i th  Mr  Mabunda.   These are  

s t i l l  payments  f rom AMCE? 10 

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And what  i s  the  amount  o f  tha t  

benef i t?  

MR MULLER:    5 ,999 –  ca l l  i t  6  m i l l i on ,  Cha i rpe rson .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Okay and then a t  5 .2 .4 .6  i s  a  person  

who rece ives a  benef i t  who is  –  I  mean,  an  en t i t y  tha t  

rece ives a  benef i t .  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  S im i lex ,  Mrs  Gomes’ company.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Then the  next  payment  i s  to  Hover  

Dynamics .  20 

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And you  have put  someth ing  in  

b rackets ,  what  i s  tha t?  

MR MULLER:    As  fa r  as  we cou ld  es tab l i sh  tha t  was a  

payment  fo r  a  he l i copte r.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A what?  

MR MULLER:    A he l i copte r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And how much was tha t  –  what  was  

pa id  fo r  tha t?  

MR MULLER:    11 ,074 mi l l ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And tha t  was pa id  by  –  tha t  was a  

payment  made by  AMCE? 

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Do you know i f  the  he l i cop ter  was  

purchased or  leased or…? 10 

MR MULLER:    I  do  no t  know,  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And what  do  Hover  Dynamics  do ,  do  

they se l l  he l i copters?  

MR MULLER:    As  fa r  as  I  unders tand,  tha t  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And then there  is  l i s ted  a t  5 .2 .4 .8  a  

payment  in  respect  o f  motor  veh ic les .   What  i s  the  amount  

pa id  in  respect  o f  motor  veh ic les  by  AMCE? 

MR MULLER:    8 ,6  m i l l i on .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And then there  is  a  payment  made to  

Garc ia  Jewel le rs .   What  i s  tha t  payment?  20 

MR MULLER:    445 000.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And then you l i s t  a  number  o f  

t ransact ions tha t  need to  be  invest iga ted .  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rman,  tha t  i s  where  we  

d id  no t  have more  de ta i l s .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Then you l i s t  –  you have two se ts  o f  

f igures  –  o r  two se ts  o f  en t r ies  re la t ing  to  p roper ty  and the  

f i rs t  a t  5 .2 .6  you say tha t  these are  proper t ies  acqu i red  by  

Mr  Mashaba and  ent i t ies  under  h is  cont ro l  and you make 

the  po in t  tha t  these were  acqu i red  a f te r  the  payment  had  

been made f rom PRASA.   I  take  i t  to  Swi fambo.  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A l r igh t .   So you have l i s ted  under  

Zedacore  S ix  (Propr ie ty )  L im i ted  th ree  proper t ies ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  10 

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now before  I  go  on  w i th  tha t  can I  jus t  

ask  you to  look  a t  the  no tes  tha t  you have now submi t ted  

because,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  a l l  tha t  i s  re f lec ted  on  note  1 

a t  page 171.1  i s  –  sor ry,  no te  1  wh ich  appears  a t  171.1  to  

171.3 ,  tha t  you have now updated what  has happened in  

respect  o f  these proper t ies ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  there  is  no  change in  respect  o f  

the  purchase o f  the  proper t ies ,  the  ident i t y  o f  the  20 

proper t ies ,  there  is  no  change in  them.  

MR MULLER:    There  is  no  change except  some o f  the  

proper t ies  were  so ld .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Sor ry,  yes ,  they were  so ld  by  whoever  

the  purchaser  was.  
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MR MULLER:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So in  –  and what  i s  the  l ink  be tween  

Zedacore  S ix  and  Mr  Mashaba? 

MR MULLER:    As  fa r  as  I  can unders tand,  he  is  one o f  the  

d i rec tors  o f  Zedacore  S ix  o r  shareho lder.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   R igh t  and number  33  S turdy(? )  Mews?   

That  i s  the  next  se t  o f  –  tha t  the  next  en t i t y  tha t  pu rchased  

the  next  th ree  p roper t ies .  

MR MULLER:    That  i s  a lso  one o f  Mr  Mashaba ’s  

compan ies .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    A re  you s t i l l  look ing  a t  the  no tes ,  Mr  

Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   No,  no ,  no ,  sor ry,  sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  each t ime you move jus t  le t  us  know.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  w i l l ,  I  w i l l ,  I  know i t  i s  –  I  have been 

th rough i t  so  many t imes i t  i s  au tomat ic  fo r  me,  bu t  I  

apo log i se .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  so  you have gone to  page 165? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   165,  number  33  S turdy(?)  Mews.   

Have you go tha t ,  Mr  Mul le r?  20 

MR MULLER:    I  have got  i t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now you say tha t  i s  in  bus iness,  what  

does tha t  mean?  

MR MULLER:   I t  is  jus t  a  s ta tus  o f  a  company tha t  i s  no t  in  

any dereg is t ra t ion  or  someth ing  l i ke  tha t  … 
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Oh.  

MR MULLER:   I t  is  w i th  S IPS i t ’s  s t i l l  i n  bus iness.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And tha t  company acqu i red  th ree  

proper t ies  as  we l l .  

MR MULLER:   That  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And you have  indent i f ied?  

MR MULLER:   That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   What  i s  the  to ta l  wor th  o f  the 

proper t ies  acqu i red  by  Mr  Mashaba th rough these two 

compan ies?  10 

MR MULLER:   Nzetha Cor,  i t ’s  a  32  –  39  mi l l ion .   And 

S terdy  Mews,  i t ’s  13 ,7  m i l l ion  or  there  about .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now 52 mi l l ion  rand in  p roper t y  i s  

acqu i red  by  Mr  Mashaba a f te r  the  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  payments  

done by  –  a f te r  Swi fambo rece ived  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

MR MULLER:   No .   There ’s  a  fu r ther  les t ,  Mr  Cha i r  o f  C lear  

Bubb les  Trad ing  on the  updated notes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Oh sor ry.  

MR MULLER:   I t ’s  qu i te  c lea r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  no ,  be fore  you p roceed.   The 20 

f igure  tha t  you gave ear l ie r  on  to  the  quest ion  was i t  52  

m i l l ion?  

MR MULLER:   Or  … 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   82  Mi l l ion .  

MR MULLER:   What  I  d id ,  I  d idn ’ t  to ta l led  tha t  up .   I  jus t  
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to ta l led  tha t  up  now on those two compan ies .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MULLER:   Bu t  i f  you  take  a l l  the  compan ies  tha t  fa l l  

under  the  cont ro l  o f  Mr  Mashaba,  the  to ta l  p roper t ies  

bought  a f te r  the  is  92 ,4  m i l l ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   But  you,  have you got  the  –  on  

wh ich  page do you have tha t  to ta l  o f  92  or  you jus t  added  

up menta l l y?  

MR MULLER:   I  jus t  no .   I  jus t  added i t  up  jus t  be fore  we  

s tar ted  here .   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

MR MULLER:   Because there  were  no  to ta ls .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  no t  on  the ,  on  the ,  on  the  repor t .  

MR MULLER:   I t ’s  no t  on  the re .   No i t ’s  no t  on  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   I t  wou ld  he lp  i f  there  i s  someth ing  

in  wr i t ing .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   What  we w i l l  do  as  we l l ,  we ’ l l  pu t  a  

no te  in  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   That  th is  i s  what  the  to ta l  i s .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  and a l so  jus t  a  comple te  l i s t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR MULLER:   I ’ l l  p rov ide  you w i th  tha t .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  okay.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now I  am a  b i t ,  we l l  no t  inc lud ing ,  I  

jus t  want  to  make  sure  tha t  I  am not  m isunders tand ing .   On 

page 165 o f  tha t ’s  your  main  repor t ,  SS4,  r igh t?   Mr  

Mul le r?    

MR MULLER:   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Page 165.  You have been look ing  a t  

i t .    

MR MULLER:   I ’ ve  go t  tha t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   5 .2 .6  And 5 .2 .7 .   Sor ry,  5 .2 .6 .   You 

have got  two b locks,  f i xed  proper ty.  10 

MR MULLER:   That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now in  no te  1 ,  you say i t  cons i s ts  o f  

an  update .   A re  there  more  proper t ies  in  no te  1  o r  under  

no te  1  than there  are  a t  5 .2 .6?  

MR MULLER:   That ’s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Okay,  wou ld  you jus t  qu ick  –  are  you  

ab le  to  do  i t  w i thout  tak ing  up  too  much o f  t ime,  wh ich  are  

the  new proper t ies  on  note  1  tha t  a re  no t  re f lec ted  a t  

5 .2 .6?  

MR MULLER:   Okay,  we dea l t  w i th  the  Nze tha Cor  20 

proper t ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Note  1  aga in  be ing  page 171.1  hey?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   Yes Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Up to  page … 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   171.3 .    
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.   

MR MULLER:   Then the  Nzetha Cor  p roper t ies  i t ’s  those  

th ree  proper t ies  as  ment ioned under  5 .2 .6 .   Then the  

S terdy  Mews is  as  ment ioned in  5 .2 .6 .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Oh I  see.   Okay.  

MR MULLER:   And then there  are  fu r ther  p roper t ies  in  

C lear  Bubb les  Trad ing  100 P ty  L td .   Those are ,  i t ’s  an  er f  

in  Wate rk loo f ,  1219 Waterk loo f .   The eva lua t ion  is  6 ,5  

m i l l ion .   I t ’s  SS Ky lemore  o f  9 ,5  m i l l i on .   That  p roper ty  has 

s ince  been so ld  on  the  18 t h  o f  February  2020.   So i t  was  10 

bought  a f te r  2013,  bu t  i t  has  s ince  been so ld .   I t  was  

bought  fo r  9 ,5  m i l l ion  and so ld  fo r  12  m i l l ion .   And then 

fu r ther  p roper t ies  tha t  were  bought  a f te r  2013 was Avras  

Park ,  Fa rm V leurde lu i s  fo r  3 ,2  m i l l ion .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  i sn ’ t  there  an  eas ier  way o f  

ident i f y ing  them?  And I  say  th is  w i th  respect  to  you Mr  

Mul le r,  i f  you  look a t  page 171.1  the  no tes ,  in  the  second  

b lock  you ident i f ied  the  same th ree proper t ies  tha t  you  

have ident i f ied  in  5 .2 .6 ,  in  the  f i rs t  b lock  a t  5 .2 .6  a t  page  

165.    20 

MR MULLER:   Can you jus t  take  me to ,  to  170 –  no .   I  am 

on 165 and I  have got  the  f i rs t  th ree  proper t ies .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   R igh t ,  you ’ve  go t  the  f i rs t  th ree  

proper t ies .    

MR MULLER:   That ’s  co r rec t .  



25 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 350 
 

Page 140 of 163 
 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now look a t  page 171.1 .   There  those 

are  your  no tes .    

MR MULLER:   I  have,  I  have my bund le  does not  conta in  

those notes .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Okay,  w i l l  g ive  you some notes  then.  

MR MULLER:   I  go t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .   Okay I  have  got  my 

notes .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   You ’ l l  see  in  the  f i rs t ,  in  the  second  

b lock  on  page 171.1  you l i s t  th ree  proper t ies .    

MR MULLER:   That ’s  co r rec t .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A re  they the  same p roper t ies  t ha t  a re  

re f lec ted  in  the  f i rs t  b lock  on  page ,  on  page 165? 

MR MULLER:   That ’s  co r rec t  yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  then we know tha t  tha t  b lock  

cor responds w i th  tha t  b lock?  

MR MULLER:   That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Okay.   I f  you  then look a t  33  S terdy  

Mews,  you have l i s ted  th ree  proper t ies  there .  

MR MULLER:   That  cor responds … 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   On page 171.2 .    20 

MR MULLER:   That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And tha t  co r responds w i th  the  th ree  

proper t ies  l i s ted  i n  the  second b lock  on  page 165.  

MR MULLER:   That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now tha t  means the  s ix  p roper t ies  
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tha t  a re  re f lec ted  in  5 .2 .6  are  in  those two b locks ,  a l l  the 

o ther  p roper t y  a re  no t  re f lec ted .  

MR MULLER:   That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Cha i rperson,  I  don ’ t  know i f  I  am jus t  

t ry ing  to  show the  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  no ,  no .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   The co r respondence between the  two.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  no ,  no .   I  th ink  u l t imate l y  you … 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  w i l l  do  tha t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You got  i t .   Ja .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I t ’s  jus t  tha t  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   O therwise  i t ’s  go ing  to  be  a  t ime 

consuming exerc i se .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I t  rea l l y  i s  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no ,  no .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   You can jus t  take  out  two b locks  and  

say every th ing  e l se  is  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no ,  tha t ’s  f ine .   Ja .    20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Can I  and I  am jus t  go ing  by  because 

I ’ ve  read Mr  Sack ’s  repor t ,  in  fac t  I  can say I  s tud ied  Mr  

Sack ’s .   The reason you d idn ’ t  inc lude some o f  the  

proper t ies  as ,  you were  no t  aware  o f  the  l ink  be tween Mr  

Mashaba and some o f  the  en t i t ies  tha t  acqu i red  those.  
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MR MULLER:   That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   L ike  fo r  example  we are  now Neaty  

Proper t ies  wh ich  appears  a t  171.2 .   The las t  p roper ty.    

MR MULLER:   That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So ,  so  I  mean tha t ’s ,  tha t ’s  the  on ly  

reason tha t  they  are  d i f fe ren t .   You now see tha t  there  

were  o ther  en t i t ies  connected w i th  Mr  Mashaba and you  

want  to  then say  tha t  when you a re  look ing  a t  5 .2 .6  wh ich  

re f lec t s  the  proper t ies  tha t  he  acqu i red  a f te r  rece iv ing  

payment ,  add the  proper t ies  l i s ted  in  no te  1 .  10 

MR MULLER:   That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A l r igh t ,  now in  regard  to  Cha i rperson I  

w i l l  do  tha t ,  I  have i t  in  my head  and i t ’s  meant  to  be  an 

easy … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  no ,  no ,  tha t ’s  f ine .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Then a t  5 .  –  a l though you ca l l  i t  3 .2 .6 

tha t ’s ,  tha t ’s  e r ro r  i s  i t  no t?   No,  i t  shou ld  be  5 .2 .  

MR MULLER:   That  must  be  an  er ror.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   We wi l l  cor rec t  tha t  as  we l l  

Cha i rperson.   Now in  regard  to  Mr  Mabunda in  h is  own  20 

name a f te r  Swi fambo rece ived payment  f rom PRASA he  

rece ived,  I  mean he acqu i red  cer ta in  p roper ty.   I s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR MULLER:   That ’s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Le t ’s  s ta r t  o f f  w i th  where  you were  
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be fore  you compi led  the  no tes .   He and ent i t ies  in  wh ich  he  

had an in te res t  had,  had acqu i red  10  proper t ies .  I s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR MULLER:   That  was a t  the  s tage tha t  I  d rew my repor t  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Your  repor t .  

MR MULLER:   I  was,  I  was aware  o f ,  yes .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   How many,  wh ich  proper t ies  though 

are  new?  I ’m  not  look ing  a t  those tha t  a re  so ld .    

MR MULLER:   There  are ,  in  my notes  there  a re  two 10 

proper t ies  in  Er f  Cosmosda l ,  Ex tens ion  55 .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Wel l  jus t  te l l  us  who the  –  under  

whose name i t  was bought?  

MR MULLER:   That  was bought  under  the  name o f  Nsobo  

Ho ld ings.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   What  page is  tha t  o f  the  no tes?  

MR MULLER:   That ’s  page 3  go ing  ove r  to  page 4  o f  my  

notes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Oh,  okay.   A l r igh t .   And there  a re  two 

proper t ies  there .    20 

MR MULLER:   That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Okay.    

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  tha t  171.3?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   That ’s  1 .  –  171.3  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And when you look a t  the  proper t ies  

tha t  Mr  Mabunda acqu i red ,  fo rge t  those tha t  were  so ld ,  bu t  

jus t  the  amounts  tha t  were  pa id ,  seeming ly  f rom what  

PRASA had pa id  to  Swi fambo.   Jus t  the  amount ,  the  to ta l  

amount  in  p roper ty  acqu is i t ions  by  Mr  Mabunda.  

MR MULLER:   The to ta l  amount  a f te r  the  cont rac t  was 48,7  

m i l l ion  o f  the  proper t ies  bought .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A l r igh t ,  tha t  to  a  la rge  ex ten t  dea ls  

w i th  the  Cour t ’s  repor t ,  except  fo r  parag raph 10 wh ich  

appears  a t  page 169 o f  the  repor t  i t se l f  Cha i rperson .   10 

MR MULLER:   R igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  the  bund le  in  wh ich  the  repor t  i s  

conta ined.   Page 169 Cha i rperson.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  I  have got  169,  what  about  i t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  paragraph 10.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Mr  Mul le r  now as I  unders tand i t ,  

Voss loh  has been taken over  by  a  German f i rm ca l led  

S tad le r.    

MR MULLER:   I t ’s  a  Swiss  f i rm.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Oh sor ry,  a  Swiss  f i rm I  beg your  

pardon.  

MR MULLER:   Yes,  yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And in  regard  to  –  and they have  

taken over  the  who le  o f  Voss loh?  
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MR MULLER:   That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And w i thout  revea l ing  anyth ing  tha t  

you shou ldn ’ t ,  what  i s  the  present  S ta te  o f  the  dea l ings 

be tween you as  the  l iqu ida to r  o f  Swi fambo,  wh ich  owes  

those b i l l i ons  to  PRASA,  what  i s  the  s ta te  o f  the  

negot ia t ions  or  the  communica t ions be tween you and  

S tad ler?   Wi thout  revea l ing  anyth ing  tha t  can be used th is  

t ime in  the  process . . . [ ind is t inc t ]?  

MR MULLER:   We are  in  an  advanced s tage o f  negot ia t ing  

w i th  bo th  S tad ler  and PRASA in  o rde r,  in  te rms o f  wh ich  10 

S tad ler  has,  has made ce r ta in  p ropos i t ions  where  they can 

ad jus t  the  t ra ins  to  su i t  our  loca l  ra i l s ,  where  they w i l l  

re fu rb ish  the  loca l ,  the  unso ld  t ra ins  wh ich  we have ,  o r  the 

locomot ives .   And wh ich  were  so ld  by  the  l iqu ida tors ,  they  

w i l l  supp ly  spares and back up .   I t  w i l l  be  to  the  benef i t  o f  

PRASA,  to  the  ex ten t  o f  over  a  b i l l i on ,  b i l l i on  and a  ha l f .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  a t  the  end o f  the  day,  PRASA i f  i t  

wants  to  acqu i re ,  s t i l l  acqu i re  these locomot ives ,  i s  go ing  

to  have to  pay.  

MR MULLER:   No,  no t  as ,  as  we cur ren t ly  s tand there  are ,  20 

are  d i f fe ren t  op t ions be ing  pursued l i ke  in  l ieu  o f  the i r  

c la im.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  whatever  e lse ,  i t  won ’ t  be  tha t  

PRASA wi l l  acqu i re  70  more  locomot ives  w i thout  pay ing  

any more  money.   That ’s  more  o r  less  what  i t  had pa id  



25 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 350 
 

Page 146 of 163 
 

Voss loh .   In  te rms o f  i t s  cont rac t  w i th  Swi fambo.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  i t  may be because there  are  

negot ia t ions .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Which  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  no ,  no .  

MR MULLER:   I  th ink  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Very  much.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  ja ,  I  th ink .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Not  be  to  ab le  to  answer  cer ta in  th ings 

because then when the  negot ia t ions  a re  go ing  on … 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   You need to  be ,  to  have opt ions to  … 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Ho ld  your  cards  to  your  chest .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   No sure .  

MR MULLER:   We’ re  t ry ing  to  negot ia te  a  se t t lement  

wh ich ,  wh ich  w i l l  be  benef ic ia l  to  PRASA.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes .   Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now f ina l l y  Mr  Mul le r,  you might  

remember  I  sa id  to  you tha t  Mr  Mashaba had f i led  new 

CM100s.    20 

MR MULLER:   That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And tha t  he  d id  in  Ju ly,  about  f i ve  

months  a f te r  you f i le  your  repor t  to  the  s takeho lde r.  

MR MULLER:   That ’s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now have,  how long have you been a  
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l i qu ida to r?  

MR MULLER:   Th is  i s  my 37 t h  years .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A re  you,  have you had a  s i tua t ion  in  

these years ,  and  I ’m say ing  th is  because I ’ ve  consu l ted  

w i th  you,  have you had a  s i tua t ion  where  a  second CM100 

is  f i led?  

MR MULLER:   No  never.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And can I  jus t ,  jus t  to  show the ,  the  

unusua l  na ture ,  the  CM10 –  the  CM100 is  ac tua l l y  an  

a f f idav i t  by  the  person in  cont ro l  o f  the  en t i t y  to  be  10 

l iqu ida ted .    

MR MULLER:   I t ’s  an  a f f idav i t  s ta t ing  the  assets  and 

l iab i l i t ies .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   On o f?  

MR MULLER:   O f ,  the  l iqu ida tor  end.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   On oath .  

MR MULLER:   That ’s  under  oa th .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And so  now what  you ’ve  go t  i s  a  new 

CM100 is  f i l ed  in  respect  o f  each  o f  these ent i t ies  and i f  

you had a  look a t  the ,  the  two se ts  o f  CM100s?  20 

MR MULLER:   Yes I  have.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And how do they compare  w i th  one 

another?   A re  they re la t i ve ly  reconc i lab le .   Or  they are  

i r reconc i lab le?    

MR MULLER:   They are  to ta l l y  i r reconc i lab le .   A t  the  one 
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hand i t  i s  inso l vent  to  the  tune o f  ca l l  i t  3  b i l l i on .   On the  

o ther  hand i t  i s  so lvent .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t ,  bu t  anyway tha t ’s  what  you a re  

now faced w i th  because tha t ’s  what  you have been  g iven.    

MR MULLER:   That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  jus t  want  to  dea l  w i th  a  –  Mr  Sacks 

dea l t  w i th  most  o f  these mat te rs .   And I  jus t  want  to  look  

very  qu i ck l y  a t  some o f  the ,  the  no tes  tha t  we made.   And 

Cha i rperson I  am aware  tha t  we dea l t  w i th  these in  some 

deta i l  w i th  Mr  Sacks,  bu t  the  fac t  o f  the  mat te r  i s  they were  10 

handed to  Mr  Mul le r  as  the  l iqu ida to r.   And i t  wou ld  be  

impor tan t  to  conf i rm in  fac t  tha t  tha t  i s  what  he ’d  rece ived.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  par t  o f  the  CM100s.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  tha t ’s  f ine .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now can I  ask  you to  look  a t  the 

repor t  aga in  and  tha t  i s  the  one  a t  161 o f  Bund le  C1.   

Sor ry  tha t  s ta r t s  a t  161.   Okay.   We can leave  out  the  

no tes  now because we ’ve  exhausted the  no tes ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  20 

MR MULLER:   Okay,  tha t ’s  good.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now can I  jus t  ask  you to  look  a t  page  

214.70.   .70 .    

MR MULLER:   .70?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.    
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MR MULLER:   I ’ ve  go t  i t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Th i s  i s  in  regards to  leas ing .   There  

does not  seem to  be  much in  regard  to  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  see ,  I  see Mr  Son i  tha t  we w i l l  have to  

be  care fu l  here ,  fo r  pu rposes o f  the  t ransc r ip t .   Because in  

the  document  tha t  we have pag ina ted as  pages 171 and 

171.5  where  he  sa id  to  no te  one note  2  and so  on .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  I  see here  a t  page … 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Oh.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   214.70 That  there  is  no te  1  as  we l l  and  

there  is  no  2 .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   You ’ re  abso lu te ly  r igh t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  when we re fe r  to  no te  1  or  no te  2  we  

have got  to  spec i fy.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Which  one.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   No,  abso lu te l y.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Th i s  w i l l  then and we must  make a  20 

consc ious e f fo r t  here  Cha i rpe rson  o f  say ing  the  no tes  to  

the  CM100.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja ,  tha t ’s  f ine .   Fa i lu re ,  fa i l ing 

wh ich  i t  w i l l  … 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   No abso lu te ly.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Wi l l  jus t  say  page whatever.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Or  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wi thout  say ing  no te  1  or  no te  2 .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   No,  yes .   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because in  the  end i t  does not  make a  

d i f fe rence.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   No abso lu te l y  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  and Mr  Mu l le r,  i f  we a l l  can  jus t  be  

consc ious o f  tha t ,  tha t  i t  wou ld  be  pre ferab le  fo r  the 10 

purposes o f  the  record  to  re fe r  to  page numbers .    

MR MULLER:   Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now a t  page 214.7O,  Mr  Mashaba 

wh ich  is  a  no te  to  h is  CM100,  Mr  Mashaba exp la ins  why he 

is  f i l i ng  the  th ickened CM100 a f f idav i t .    

MR MULLER:   Yes I  see tha t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   And he says tha t  the  or ig ina l  

document  tha t  he  s igned,  the  CM100 tha t  he  s igned ,  o r  he  

purpo r ted  to  s ign  fa i l s  to  comple te ly  and accura te ly  re f lec t  

the  f inanc ia l  in fo rmat ion  tha t  the  Company ’s  Act  requ i res .   20 

You ’ re  a  l iqu ida to r.   What  does tha t  s t r i ke  you tha t  you do 

not  comply  w i th  what  the  Company ’s  Act  requ i res  you to  do  

on  oath?  

MR MULLER:   There ,  I  have got  no  comment  on  tha t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Okay,  and tha t  i s  shar ing .   Okay.  Then  
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he  exp la ins  tha t  Mr  Cameron,  h is  p resent  a t to rney –  I  take  

i t  you ’ve ,  you ’ve  had in te rac t ions w i th  Mr  Cameron? 

MR MULLER:   Yes I  have.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A l r igh t .   He says tha t  based on adv i ce  

he ’d  rece ived f rom Mr  Cameron they dec ided or  he ’s  been 

adv ised to  submi t  th is  new one.   He says someth ing  tha t  

qu i te  impress ing .   He says a t  paragraph 4 ,  he  says:  

“F rom the  new s ta tement  i t  i s  se l f  ev ident  tha t  

leas ing  is  fac tua l l y  fa lse . ”  

 And tha t  I  take  i t  wou ld  be  par t  o f  l iqu ida t ion  10 

process and par t  o f  cour t  app l i ca t ions and a l l  tha t .   But  I ’m 

jus t  p lac ing  i t  on  record  tha t  tha t  is  h is  content ion  in  these  

l iqu ida t ion  proceed ings.  

MR MULLER:   That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And then he makes a  po in t  tha t  the 

c la im o f  PRASA which  had pa id  f rom 2 ,8  b i l l i on  rand to  

Swi fambo is  no t  re f lec ted  as  th is  wou ld  need  to  be 

quant i f ied  in  an  ac t ion  wh ich  Mr  Mashaba has been 

adv ised,  needs to  be  ins t i tu ted  by  PRASA aga ins t  leas ing ,  

tha t ’s  h i s  pos i t ion .   And I ’m not  ask ing  you to  comment .   I  20 

am jus t  say ing  tha t  tha t  i s  h is  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

MR MULLER:   I  unders tand.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And you unders tand tha t  tha t  i s  h is  

pos i t ion?  

MR MULLER:   I  do .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And,  and tha t ’s  why Cha i rpe rson i f  I  

can jus t  make th i s  comment ,  Va ls  D ickens sa id :  

 “The law is  an  ass . ”  

 Because here  is  a  company wh ich  pa id  2 ,8  –  a  

pub l i c  company,  2 ,8  b i l l i on  rand in  purpo r ted l y  i f  I  cou ld  

use tha t  word ,  fo rm ing a  pub l i c  funct ion .   And i t ’s  to ld  tha t  

you don ’ t  have a  c la im,  you must  go  to  cour t  and get  your,  

your  money back .   Anyway,  can I  now ask you to  look  a t  

no te  19 .   Oh sor ry,  page 214.   Page 214.108.    

MR MULLER:   Can you p lease repeat  tha t?  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   214.108.  

MR MULLER:   I ’ ve  go t  i t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Okay,  now these are  the  c la ims tha t  

Mr  Mashaba says Swi fambo pa id  when in  fac t  the  

ob l iga t ion  to  pay fo r  fo rward ing  charges res ted  on PRASA.   

You unders tand tha t .  

MR MULLER:   I  do .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   These are  the  c la ims tha t  a re  made  

by  Sademzi .   He says they pa id  and the  amount  they pa id  

was about  109 m i l l ion  rand so  Sademzi .   You are  aware  o f  20 

tha t?    

MR MULLER:   I ’m  aware  o f  i t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now I  don ’ t  want  to  make too  much o f  

th is ,  I ’ ve  ra ised  i t  w i th  your  a t to rney.   But  there  is  

someth ing  odd about  some o f  the  amounts  re f lec ted  here .   



25 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 350 
 

Page 153 of 163 
 

I f  I  cou ld  jus t  ask  you to  look  a t  page 214.11.   That ’s  an  

invo i ce  da ted the  21s t  o f  November  2014.    

CHAIRPERSON:   P lease jus t  repeat  the  page.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Oh sor ry.   214.111.    

MR MULLER:   I s  i t  110.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   111.  

MR MULLER:   111.   Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  th is  i s  an  invo ice  rendered by  

S ibenza on the  21 s t  o f  November  2014 to  Swi fambo.   You 

see tha t  Mr  Mul le r?  10 

MR MULLER:   I  do .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Wel l  le t ’s  fo rge t  the  fac t  tha t  the  

cont rac t  sa id ,  and th is  i s  a  fac t .   The cont rac t  sa id  tha t  

PRASA i s  respons ib le  fo r  fo rward ing  costs .   These amounts  

on  Mr  Mashaba ’s  vers ion  and i t  seems to  be  reasonab ly  

cor rec t .   Swi fambo pa id  to  S ibenza.   Okay.   And now you 

keep shak ing  your  head.   I  need an answer.  

MR MULLER:   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now I  jus t  want  you to  look  a t  th is ,  

the  c la im re f lec ted  on tha t  invo i ce .   On the  f i rs t  l i ne  you  20 

w i l l  see i t  says ,  cus toms VAT o f  R7 925 489,32.   Now what  

–  I  unders tood VAT is  payab le  on  expenses you incu r,  fo r  

goods you buy.   Or  am I  wrong?  

MR MULLER:   I ’m  not  a  tax  exper t ,  bu t  tha t  i s  how I  

unders tand i t .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  we ’ve  now got  a l ine ,  a  l ine  i tem o f  

a  c la im fo r  R8  000 000,00 but  i t  wou ld  appear  tha t  

Swi fambo s imply  pa id  i t  aga ins t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .   Aga in  I ’m  

jus t ,  I  don ’ t  want  you to  comment ,  I ’m  jus t  po in t ing  i t  ou t  to  

you.   And a l l  I ’d  l i ke  you to  say,  tha t  i s  what  i s  reco rded in  

the  document .  

MR MULLER:   That  i s  what  I  see,  yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Then i f  you  look a t  the  next  one on  

page 213.1 .2  you ’ l l  see  tha t  a  s im i la r  th ing  occurs  where  a  

VAT amount  i s  re f lec ted  w i thout  any expenses be ing  10 

ind ica ted .   The expenses fo r  the  charges and so  on .   And 

you w i l l  see  a lso  tha t  the  VAT amount  they c la im,  tha t  i s  

c la imed a t  the  bo t tom or  the  second las t  f igure  on  tha t  

page,  on  page 214.1 .1  re f lec ts  the  VAT on the  amounts  

c la imed fo r  the  serv i ces  rendered,  p lus  th i s  R320 000,00.   

You see tha t?  

MR MULLER:   I s  tha t  page 2  –  214 .112?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

MR MULLER:   Yes,  I  see tha t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   And i f  you look I  am jus t  go ing  20 

to  take  one more  example .   I f  you  l ook a t  214.1 .1 .4  you w i l l  

see  aga in  customs VAT o f  R1 230 000,00 and tha t  VAT is  

added to  the  VAT fo r  the  serv i ces .   You see tha t?  

MR MULLER:   I  see  tha t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Cha i rperson  I  h igh l igh t  tha t ,  because  
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o f  the  concerns  tha t  have been  ra ised about  an  en t i t y  

wh ich  has no  ob l iga t ion  to  pay,  pay ing  these amounts  and  

i t ,  i t  as  you can see a t  leas t  one o f  the  amounts  i s  a  m i l l ion  

rand.   I ,  I ’ ve  looked a t  more  o f  them,  bu t  I  mere ly  make the 

po in t  to  say tha t  tha t  i s  a  mat te r  tha t  needs  fu r ther  

invest iga t ion .   Cer ta in ly  i f  the  mat te r,  i f  tha t ’s  c la imed f rom 

PRASA,  i t  i s  a  mat te r  tha t  PRASA wou ld  need to  look ,  

because they are  obv ious l y  say ing  now,  we pa id  on  beha l f  

o f  PRASA,  pay us  back.    

MR MULLER:   We wi l l  fo l low tha t  up .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Then can I  ask  you to  look  a t  no te  20  

–  oh  sor ry.   To  page 214.130.   Now th is  i s  the  c la im tha t  Mr  

Mabunda o r  one o f  h is  compan ies  made fo r  payment  o f  a  

to ta l  o f  28  m i l l ion  rand.   And Mr  Mashaba records  tha t  Mr  

Mabunda d id  o f fe r  adv i ce  th rough var ious compan ies ,  bu t  

he  was never  employed by  leas ing  and i t  i s  no t  unders tood  

why he rece ived 28 mi l l ion  rand f rom Swi fambo.   But  tha t ’s  

what ’s  recorded here .   That ’s  a l l  I ’m  say ing .   Do you see  

tha t?  

MR MULLER:   Yes I  saw tha t .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  tha t ’s  someth ing  you can respond  

to ,  because the  payments  are  made by  Swi fambo or  

Swi fambo re la ted  compan ies .  

MR MULLER:   We have ins t i tu ted  va r ious ac t ions,  

inc lud ing  aga ins t  Mr  Mabuda to  recover  mon ies  tha t  was,  
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tha t  was spent  to  h im.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  the  in te res t ing  th ing  though is  

tha t  Mr  Mashaba  appears  to  tu rn  on  Mr  Mabunda and say,  

pay th is  money back.   But  d id  your  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] ,  I  can  

unders tand you have an arm’s  length  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  a l l  

the  benef ic ia r ies .    

MR MULLER:   That  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Mabunda  has been a  benef ic ia ry  

because we ’ve  been th rough i t  o f  the  two ent i t ies  tha t  

rece ived money f rom PRASA,  tha t ’s  Ra i l  and leas ing .   No 10 

sor ry,  Ho ld ings and leas ing .   And now … 

MR MULLER:   That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Mr  Mashaba says,  he  shou ldn ’ t  have  

been pa id  anyth ing .  

MR MULLER:   I  see .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now I  want  you then to  p lease  look a t  

page 214.1 .3 .   Now remember  you  sa id  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   214.?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   214.1 .33  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  thank you.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   You remember  you sa id  you  had a  

c la im aga ins t  Mr  Gomez fo r  R41 400 000,00?  

MR MULLER:   That ’s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now I  am jus t  a le r t ing  you  to  th is  

because i t  i s  a  mat te r  tha t  we are  in te res ted  in  as  we l l .   
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And i f  you look a t  page 214.135 tha t  i s  two pages down.   

Mr  Mashaba says  th is  i s  a  schedu le  o f  donat ions tha t  were  

in tended fo r  the  ANC.   And the  amount  he  re f lec ts  here  is  

79  odd mi l l ion  rand.    

MR MULLER:   I  see ,  I  see.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now i f  you go back to  page 133 he  

exp la ins  how tha t  came about .   And he says tha t  a f te r  the  

cont rac t  was awarded,  Mr  Mashaba and Mr  Mabunda were  

approached by  Ms Gomez and A t to rney S ibe lo .   And under  

p ressure  f rom mis te r,  f rom Ms Gomez and Ms S ibe lo ,  Mr  10 

Mashaba on beha l f  o f  leas ing  ar ranged to  make a  donat ion  

to  the  ANC in  an  amount  equa l  to  88  m i l l ion  rand.   But  I ,  

I ’m ,  I  want  to  dea l  w i th  what  I  regard  as  the  punch l ine .   

Now I  want  to  make a  donat ion  o f  88  m i l l ion  rand,  bu t  I  w i l l  

charge whoever  i t  i s  a  hand l ing  fee  o f  R8 000  000,00.   

That ’s  what  he  says a t  3 .4 .  

MR MULLER:   I  see .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And then the  amount  tha t  was pa id ,  

he  says was R79  400 000,00.   Now in  fa i rness to  t he  ANC 

and to  Mr  Mashaba he then says tha t  Mr  Bade lo  tes t i f ied  a t  20 

the  417 inqu i ry  and sa id  tha t  these amounts  were  no t  

d is t r ibu ted  to  the  ANC.   You were  a t  tha t  inqu i ry.   I s  tha t  

what  happened?   

MR MULLER:   I  can ’ t  reca l l  the  exact  de ta i l s ,  I  w i l l  have to  

go  and doub le  check on  tha t  s i r.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And so  he  says the  amount  owing by  

these two ind iv idua ls  i s  no t  R41 400 000,00 but  in  fac t  

79 ,4  m i l l i on .  

MR MULLER:   That ’s  co r rec t ,  I  see .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Wel l  I  mean,  tha t ’s  what ’s  recorded  

here  and you w i l l  keep tha t  in  m ind as  Mr  Mashaba  say ing  

tha t ’s  what  Swi fambo pa id  to  these peop le .  

MR MULLER:   I  w i l l ,  I  w i l l  fo l low tha t  up .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Then f ina l l y,  we l l  pe rhaps no t  f ina l l y,  

bu t  a t  page 214.149.   Th i s  i s  another  c la im f rom – oh so r ry,  10 

th is  i s  the  main  one tha t  I  –  bu t  perhaps i f  I  cou ld  ask  you  

f i rs t  to  look  a t  214.150 wh ich  is  the  next  page.   Th is  i s  

another  payment  tha t  was made to  Mr  Mabunda or  one o f  

h is  compan ies ,  and i t  was fo r  7 ,2  m i l l ion  rand  and Mr  

Mashaba says no  va lue  was obta ined in  respect ,  in  respect  

o f  th is  payment .  Swi fambo wants  t he  money back.  

MR MULLER:   Yes I  see tha t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Okay,  bu t  now I  want  you to  look  a t  

no te  32 .    

CHAIRPERSON:   A t  page?  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Oh,  so r ry.   I  am sor ry  Cha i rpe rson.   

Page 214.149 i t ’s  the  one jus t  be fo re .   He says subsequent  

to  leas ing  conc lud ing  a  sub cont rac t  ag reement  w i th  

Voss loh ,  and w i thout  the  knowledge o f  leas ing  and i t s  

consent  Voss loh  pa id  to  Mr  Mabunda o r  h i s  compan ies ,  an  
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amount  o f  approx imate ly  75  m i l l ion  rand.   I t  i s  Mr  Mashaba,  

he  cont inues in  the  CM100 as i t  is  my content ion  tha t  th is  

amount  shou ld  have been pa id  by  Voss loh to  leas ing  as  

some fo rm o f  rebate  and accord ing ly  the  leas ing  l iqu ida to rs  

need to  recover  th is  amount  f rom Mr  Mabunda  fo r  h is  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

MR MULLER:   Cha i rman I  can ’ t  see how we can  have a  

cause o f  ac t ion  aga ins t  Voss loh,  no t  be ing  par ty  to  tha t  

payment .   I  do  no t  know how,  how we are  ab le  to  recover  

tha t  money f rom Voss loh .    10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   But  suppose what  he  i s  t ry ing  to  

demonst ra te  i s ,  the  ex ten t  to  wh ich  d i f fe ren t  peop le  who  

were  no t  en t i t led  to  benef i t  o r  p roduce noth ing  o f  va lue  in  

respect  o f  the  cont rac t ,  rece ived such benef i t s  and now the  

company is  in  l iqu ida t ion ,  he  wants  those monies  back.  

MR MULLER:   Yes Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now those are  a l l  the  aspec ts  o f  the 

new CM100 re la t ing  to  leas ing  tha t  I  want  to  ra ise  w i th  you 

now Mr  Mul le r.  

MR MULLER:   Yes.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Cha i rperson I  have ra ised  a l l  the 

mat te rs  tha t  I  wanted to  ra ise  w i th  Mr  Mul le r  and  I  have 

de l ibe ra te ly,  I  d id  o f  course  s t ray  on  the  one occas ion  

when you po in ted  out ,  bu t  I  d id  t ry  to  keep i t  w i th in  the  

conf ines o f  what  Mr  Mul le r  wou ld  be  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   That ’s  the  ev idence we wan t  to  lead 

f rom Mr  Mul le r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no ,  no .   That ’s  f ine .   Thank you very  

much Mr  Mul le r.   I  have no reason to  th ink  your  counse l  

was to  re -exam now,  re -examine.   Mr  C i l l i e rs?  

ADV CILLIERS SC:   Noth ing  f rom our  s ide .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   Thank you ve ry  much Mr  

Mul le r,  we apprec ia te  tha t  you came to  ass is t  the 

Commiss ion .   You are  now excused .  10 

MR MULLER:   Thank you Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   That  i s  the  ev idence tha t  we in tended  

lead ing  th is  week .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And we ’ve  gone th rough  a l l  the 

w i tnesses tha t  we  eventua l l y  thought  were  necessary.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   We’ve  taken note  o f  the  mat te r  tha t  

have been ra ised .   We may requ i re  pe rhaps a  day or  two  20 

more  fo r  PRASA.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Depend ing  on ,  on  what  happens next .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I t  may be one more  day.   But  i t  won ’ t  
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be  more  than tha t .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja  you may,  you may requ i re  t ime 

fo r  some o f  … 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Those invest i ga t ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The w i tnesses you have ment ioned  today.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  in  te rms o f ,  in  te rms o f  o the rs  tha t  

you may have l ined up f rom the  beg inn ing ,  you have 

covered more  or  less  a l l  except  maybe one or  two? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Indeed Cha i rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  we jus t  want  to  cons ider  our  

pos i t ion  w i thout  g iv ing  any names a t  th is  s tage.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I f  you  w i l l  reca l l  we had the  S iyagena  

and the  Swi fambo  cont rac ts  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Be fo re  you.   We jus t  need to  cons ide r  

rea l l y  we ’ve  exhausted a l l  the  w i tnesses.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  okay,  no  tha t ’s  f ine .   I t ’s  15 :50 .   I  am 20 

go ing  to  –  I  th ink  fo r  you tha t ’s  the  end o f  the ,  the  day a t  

the  hear ing .   I ’m  supposed to  hear  the  ev idence re la t ing  to  

the  law enfo rcement  agency fo r  my even ing  sess ion ,  bu t  i t  

was meant  to  s ta r t  a t  17 :00 .   I  don ’ t  see the  ev idence 

leader  a round.   Because i f  he  was around we wou ld  no t  
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wa i t  fo r  17 :00 ,  we wou ld  s ta r t  … 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ear l ie r.   But  I ’m go ing  to  ad jou rn  and i f  

i t ’s  poss ib le  to  s ta r t  be fore  17 :00 we w i l l  s ta r t  be fo re  17 :00  

fa i l ing  wh ich  then we s ta r t  a t  17 :00 .   So we are  go ing  to  

ad journ  so  tha t  the  –  I  w i l l  re tu rn  la te r  fo r  the  even ing  

sess ion .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  you p lease  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We ad jou rn .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And we are  excused Cha i rperson,  the  10 

PRASA team? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  you are  excused.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Thank you Cha i r.    

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you Mr  Son i  fo r  s tay ing .   Ja ,  no ,  

no  i t  appears  tha t  a l though I  in i t ia l l y  may have thought  we  

wou ld  aga in  be  hear ing  the  ev idence re la t ing  to  Mr  Jouber t  

today,  apparent ly  u l t imate ly  i t  was ad journed to  next  

Tuesday.   So there  is  no  even ing  sess ion  fo r  today.    20 

Yes so  we w i l l  ad journ  and tomorrow I  w i l l  hear  

ev idence re la t ing  to  Eskom.   That  i s  fo r  the  benef i t  o f  the 

pub l i c .   One mus t  we lcome every  oppor tun i ty  to  have on ly  

one sess ion  yes.  

We ad journ .  
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INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 26 FEBRUARY 2021  

 


